
CITY OF ELKO 
CITY MANAGER 

1751 COLLEGE A VENUE 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

(775) 777-7110/FAX (775) 777-7119 

The Elko City Council will meet in regular session on Tuesday, June 22, 2021 

at 4:00 P.M., P.D.T. at the Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, 

and by utilizing https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/696054677 

Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 

GoToMeeting.com 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/696054677 

You can also dial in using your phone +1 (872) 240-3412 Access Code: 696-054-677 

Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Council. 

In accordance with NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda was posted on the City of Elko 

Website, http://www.elkocitynv.gov the State of Nevada's Public Notice Website, 

https://notice.nv.gov and in the following locations: 

ELKO CITY HALL 
1751 College Avenue, Elko, Nevada 89801 

Date & Time Posted: Thursday, June 17, 2021 at 8:30 A.M. 

ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE 
571 Idaho Street, Elko, NV 89801 

Date and Time Posted: Thursday, June 17, 2021 at 8:40 A.M. 

ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
1448 Silver Street, Elko, NV 89801 

Date and Time Posted: Thursday, June 17, 2021 at 8:50 A.M. 

ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY 
720 Court Street, Elko, NV 89801 

Date and Time Posted: Thursday, June 17, 2021 at 9:00 A.M. 

Posted by: Diann Byington Recording Secretary 

The public may contact Kim Wilkinson by phone at (775) 
kwilkinson@elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The agenda 
and supporting material is available at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV or on the City 
website at http://www.elkocity.com 

Dated this 17th day of June, 2021 

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assi tance at the meeting are 
requested to notify the Elko City Council, 1751 College Avenue, Elk , evada 0 1, or by calling (775) 
777-7110. 

Curtis Calder, City Manager 
Elko, Nevada 



CALL TO ORDER 

CITY OF ELKO 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
4:00 P.M., P.D.T. 

TUESDAY, JUNE 22, 2021 
ELKO CITY HALL, CHAMBERS 

1751 COLLEGE A VENUE, ELKO, NEV ADA 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/ioin/696054677 

The Agenda for this meeting of the City of Elko City Council has been properly posted for 
this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements. 

ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item 
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda 
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: June 8, 2021 Regular Session 

I. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Presentation of an appreciation plaque by Mayor Keener in recognition of Urijah 
Lortie, for his generous donation to the City of Elko Animal Shelter, and matters 
related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NON ACTION ITEM 

B. Presentation of a proclamation by the Mayor in recognition of August 3, 2021 as 
"National Night Out", and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY -
NON ACTION ITEM 

C. Presentation of the 2021 Public Works Year in Review, and matters related thereto. 
INFORMATION ONLY - NON ACTION ITEM 

II. PERSONNEL 

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of revisions to the position 
description for Animal Control Officer, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

06/22/2021 City Council Agenda 1 



The Animal Control Officer position description has been revised and updated to 
accurately reflect the duties and requirements of the position. SS 

III. APPROPRIATIONS 

A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

B. Review and possible ratification of General Hand-Cut Checks, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

C. Review, consideration, and possible issuance of final acceptance for the Alley 
Water Line Replacement between 41h, 5th, Commercial & Silver Streets, and 
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Great Basin Engineering has completed the work for the alley project. Staff 
recommends the issuance of final acceptance. There was one change order for 
$9,532.70 for standby time and additional quantity adjustments for $4,810.35 for 
materials. The original contract amount was $159,220.91 plus the addition of 
Change Order # 1 and the quantity adjustments for a combined amount of 
$14,343.05, bringing the total project cost to $173,563.96. DJ 

D. Review and possible approval of the Elko Regional Airport Liability Insurance 
Policy for FY 2021/2022, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

LP Insurance Services, Inc. has competitively sought airport liability insurance 
proposals for this coming fiscal year. Two (2) quotes were received. Last year AIG 
Aerospace was our provider for the same coverage amount at $10,834.00 / year. JF 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Deed of Dedication for Right
of-Way, Public Utilities, and Slope Easement on APN 001-770-005, and matters 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The City of Elko has been engaging the property owners of the referenced APN to 
acquire the necessary dedications for utility infrastructure which will be utilized as 
a second water source for the regional hospital. The proposed dedications will also 
facilitate proper roadway development and utility infrastructure for the Elko 
Mountain area east of State Route 227 and the area adjacent to the regional hospital 
on the west side of State Route 227. MR 

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Grant of Easement for Utilities 
and Access on APN 001-630-100, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

06/22/2021 

The purpose of this proposed easement is to allow for the installation of an alternate 
sewer line to serve parcels along the future eastern extension of Silver Street to 

City Council Agenda 2 



Manzanita Lane. This new sewer line would connect to an existing sewer along the 
railroad tracks at the southeasterly edge of this parcel. The existing sewer at the 
intersection of Silver Street and Walters Court is approximately 20' deep, making 
the extension of sewer from that location more difficult for both developers and the 
City. This easement request is in conjunction with a waiver of sewer installation for 
one or more lots on Silver Street to be presented separately. MR 

C. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a request to waive the requirement 
to extend sanitary sewer across the frontage of 1515 Silver Street (APN 001-375-
001), and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The up gradient properties will be serviced by another sewer main. The extension 
of this sewer main is unlikely to serve any new customers in the future based on 
currently available planning and development projections. Future sewer customer's 
will service through the Capps sewer easement crossing their Silver Street Property 
back to the main transmission line to the WRF. DJ 

D. Review and possible approval of the City of Elko Investment Policy, and matters 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Staff will present the City of Elko Investment Policy for City Council consideration 
JB 

E. Review and possible selection of a planning firm to provide planning services for a 
focused planning study at the Elko Regional Airport, and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSBLE ACTION 

The airport has been conducting a search for a planning firm to provide services at 
the airport for an upcoming AIP funded project for a Focused Planning Study. The 
selection committee short listed four (4) firms to continue with the interview 
portion of the process. The interviews were held May 26/27, 2021. The Airport 
selection committee interviewed four (4) engineering/planning firms: Coffman 
Associates, Jviation Inc, Kimley-Hom and Farr West Engineering. The selection 
committee recommends that the Council select Coffman Associates for the focused 
planning study service contract. Upon selection, Staff will negotiate a Professional 
Services Agreement with the successful firm. This new agreement will be brought 
back to Council for review and approval. JF 

F. Consideration and possible authorization for Staff to advertise for four ( 4) vacant 
positions on the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

06/22/2021 

On June 30, 2021 the terms of four (4) board members will expire. All members 
are eligible for reappointment following an advertisement related to the term's 
expiration. JW 

City Council Agenda 3 



'' 

V. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 

A. First reading of proposed Ordinance 863 amending Elko City Code Title 9, Chapter 
6 (Illegal Discharge and Connection to Stormwater), Chapter 7 (Construction Site 
Runoff Control), and Chapter 8 (Postconstruction Runoff Control and Water 
Quality Management), and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The City of Elko Stormwater Program was audited by the Nevada Department of 
Environmental Protection and the Environmental Protection Agency in August 
2020. One of the findings of that audit was that current enforcement regulations 
were lacking in both clarity and implementation. As a result, the audit report 
required the City to update its stormwater codes with enhanced enforcement 
procedures. Other modifications have been proposed to clarify existing policies and 
procedures. MR 

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 18-21, a resolution 
providing for the transfer of appropriations between accounts within the City of 
Elko 2020/2021 Fiscal Budget pursuant to N.R.S. 354.598005, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

This is the annual year-end housekeeping item to transfer funds between functions, 
and funds as required to fund all budgetary changes that occurred during the fiscal 
year. JB 

VI. PETITIONS, APPEALS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a petition for the vacation of a 
13,600 square foot portion of the 15th Street Right-of-Way, filed by the City of 
Elko, and processed as Vacation Nos. 3-21 and 4-21, and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Staff has determined that keeping the small amount of Right-of-Way on 15th Street 
is not in the best interest of the City due to the cost of constructing and maintaining 
a road that goes nowhere. Staff approached both adjacent property owners about 
the possibility of vacating the Right-of-Way back to them, to which they agreed. 
Because there are utilities in the area to be vacated, an easement will need to be 
recorded to allow future access. In addition, a Reciprocal Easement Agreement 
between the property owners is also required. MR 

B. Review, consideration, and possible action to vacate seven feet of the southwesterly 
portion of Golf Course Road for approximately 294 lineal feet northwest from the 
intersection of College Ave. and Golf Course Road involving 2 properties, filed by 
City of Elko and processed as individual Vacations 1-21 and 2-21, and matters 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

06/22/2021 

In discussion with the proposed Great Basin Child Advocacy Center, staff 
requested that the new curb, gutter and sidewalk line up with existing infrastructure 
at the intersection of Cedar St. and Golf Course Rd. This vacation will align the 

City Council Agenda 4 



right-of-way from College Ave. to Cedar Street where it currently is not aligned. 
CL 

C. Review and consideration of a request from Ms. Yvonne Samper regarding the lack 
of a handicap access sidewalk at 307 Elm St., and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

A copy of Ms. Samper's letter has been enclosed in the agenda packet for review. 
cc 

VII. 5:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Second reading and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 862, an Ordinance 
adopting a requirement for a Nonpublic Hospital License and Establishing a 
License Fee, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

On April 27, 2021, the City Council voted to initiate an ordinance which would 
create a "Local Hospital Licensure Fee." As a result of that action, City Staff has 
drafted Ordinance No. 862 for review. A copy of the proposed Ordinance has been 
enclosed in the agenda packet for review. CC 

VIII. REPORTS 

A. Mayor and City Council 
B. City Manager 
C. Assistant City Manager 
E. Public Works 
F. Airport Manager 
G. City Attorney 
H. Fire Chief 
I. Police Chief 
J. City Clerk 
K. , City Planner 
L. Development Manager 
M. Financial Services Director 
N. Parks and Recreation Director 
0. Civil Engineer 
P. Building Official 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item 
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda 
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

06/22/2021 City Council Agenda 5 



NOTE: The Mayor, Mayor Pro Tempore, or other Presiding Officer of the City Council 
reserves the right to change the order of the agenda, and if the agenda has not been 
completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another specified date and time. 
Additionally, the City Council reserves the right to combine two or more agenda 
items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay discussion relating to an 
item on the agenda at any time. 

ADJOURNMENT 

06/22/2021 City Council Agenda 

Curtis Calder 
City Manager 

6 



City of Elko 
County of Elko 
State of Nevada 

) 
) 
) ss June 8, 2021 

The City Council of the City of Elko, State of Nevada met for a regular meeting beginning 
at 4:00 p.m., Tuesday, June 8, 2021. The meeting was held in the council chambers, 1751 College 
Ave., Elko and via GoTo Meeting. 

This meeting was called to order by Mayor Reece Keener. The public can participate in 
person, by phone, tablet, laptop, or computer by registering with the Go To Meeting link provided 
in the agenda. Questions can be sent to cityclerk@elkocitynv.gov. 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

Council Present: Mayor Reece Keener 
Councilman Chip Stone (via GoToMeeting) 
Councilman Clair Morris 

Council Absent: Councilwoman Simons 
Councilman Bill Hance 

City Staff Present: Curtis Calder, City Manager 
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk 
Candi Quilici, Accounting Manager 
Jan Baum, Financial Services Director 
Susie Shurtz, Human Resources Manager 
Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director 
Dale Johnson, Utilities Director 
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
Jim Foster, Airport Manager 
Matt Griego, Fire Chief 
Jack Snyder, Deputy Fire Chief 
Ty Trouten, Police Chief 
Dave Stanton, City Attorney 
Michele Rambo, Development Manager 
James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director 
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer 
DJ Smith, Computer Information Systems Coordinator 
Diann Byington, Recording Secretary 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item 

6/8/2021 City Council Minutes Page 1 ofll 



on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda 
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

There were no public comments. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: May 25,2021 Regular Session 

The minutes were approved by general consent. 

I. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Presentation of an Appreciation Plaque by the Mayor, in recognition of Eurijah 
Lortie for his generous donation to the City of Elko Animal Shelter, and matters 
related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY -ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

This item was not heard due to Mr. Eurijah Lortie being out of town. 

B. Presentation of the 2020 Public Works Year in Review, and matters related thereto. 
INFORMATION ONLY -ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

This item was not heard. 

C. Brief presentation and possible acceptance of a renewal proposal from Nevada 
Public Agency Insurance Pool (POOL), and approval of invoice for payment from 
FY 2021/2022 Funds in the amount of$587,902, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

As a member of the Insurance Pool, the City of Elko owns a share of the equity that 
forms the basis for its financial strength. 

Your agenda packet includes an overview of coverage offered for the following 
Fiscal Year. The City of Elko' s total program costs for FY 2021/2022 are $587,902, 
representing a 14.1 % increase over FY 2020/2021. CC 

Curtis Calder, City Manager, introduced Alan Kalt, POOL/PACT and Dain Uriarti, LP Insurance. 

Dain Uriarti, LP Insurance, explained there is an increase this year. He has seen the increases even 
higher in the private market. He created a loss ratio spreadsheet that shows premiums, date in and 
date claims paid out. The 3-year loss ratio for the City is 41 %. The 5-year loss ratio is 59%. He 
felt this could be improved but the City is within the average. 

Alan Kalt, POOL/PACT, gave a presentation (included in the packet). 

Mayor Keener mentioned the Nevada League of Cities is having a retreat in Elko next week and 
invited Mr. Kalt to attend. 

6/8/2021 City Council Minutes Page 2 ofll 



** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Morris, to accept 
the renewal proposal from Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (POOL) for the Fiscal Year 
2021/2022, in the amount of $587,902. 

The motion passed unanimously. (3-0) 

II. PERSONNEL 

A. Employee Introductions: 

1.) Logan Gibbs, Patrol Officer II, Police Department 

2.) Rachel Hooper, Animal Shelter Worker I 

3.) Dustin Amatori, Lead Golf Maintenance Technician 

Present and introduced. 

Present and introduced. 

Not present. 

III. APPROPRIATIONS 

A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

** A motion was made by Councilman Morris, seconded by Councilman Stone, to 
approve the general warrants in the amount of $1,194,682.99. 

The motion passed unanimously. (3-0) 

B. Review and possible ratification of General Hand-Cut Checks, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

** A motion was made by Councilman Morris, seconded by Councilman Stone, to 
approve the hand-cut checks in the amount of $245,139.41. 

The motion passed unanimously. (3-0) 

C. Review, consideration, and possible authorization for Staff to solicit bids for the 
construction of curb, gutter, sidewalk, and paving on Jennings Way as illustrated in 
the attached plans, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

This is a missing piece of infrastructure that is going to provide drainage as well as 
providing pedestrian access from the Connolly Subdivisions to Adobe Middle 
School. We will only be constructing the section that is on the west side of Jennings 
Way as illustrated in the attached plans. DS 

Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director, explained this is an infill project. We have had some 
concerns brought forward in the past where we have this missing infrastructure. We are expecting 
more foot traffic to and from Adobe Middle School. This project will allow for that missing 
infrastructure to be installed. There is plenty of money in the fund to execute on this project. 

6/8/2021 City Council Minutes Page 3 ofll 



** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Morris, to 
authorize staff to solicit bids for the Jennings Way Sidewalk, Curb and Gutter 
Improvements. 

The motion passed unanimously. (3-0) 

D. Review, consideration, and possible award of the Public Works Department 
Preventive Maintenance Project 2021, to apply Micro Slurry Seal to select City 
streets, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

At their March 23, 2021 meeting, Council authorized Staff to solicit bids for the 
Preventive Maintenance Project 2021. Bids were received until 1 :00 p.m. on June 
1, 2021. Only one bid was submitted. DS 

Mr. Strickland explained the City has a great working relationship with this company. They have 
done this project for a number of years now. Their price was about $0.05 a square yard cheaper 
than it was last year. They gave us a great bid. He recommended award. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Morris, to award 
the base bid for the Public Works Department Street Maintenance Project 2021 to Sierra 
Nevada Construction in the amount of $560,782. 

The motion passed unanimously. (3-0) 

E. Review, consideration, and possible authorization for Staff solicit bids for the 
construction of VFW Drive from Idaho Street to Silver Street, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The new Elko Police Department Building was constructed in approximately 2015. 
At that time, VFW Drive was repaved to fit in the existing easement granted by 
Union Pacific Railroad. Since that time, Staff has acquired, from Union Pacific 
Railroad, the additional Right-of-Way to fully construct VFW Drive, including 
curb, gutter, sidewalk, and additional paving. DS 

Mr. Strickland explained when the PD was done, they didn't have great access to the facility. They 
went in and built 24 feet of asphalt. It is important to finish that work. It provides pedestrian 
access to and from the PD. It will also help with drainage. He recommended approval. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Morris, seconded by Councilman Stone, to 
authorize staff to solicit bids for the construction of VFW Drive from Idaho Street to Silver 
Street. 

The motion passed unanimously. (3-0) 

F. Review, consideration, and possible authorization for Staff purchase a new 
Caterpillar Backhoe model 420-07 C from Cashman Equipment Company through 
Sourcewell Purchasin'g in the amount of 108,491.00, and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

This purchase was approved in the FY 2021/22 Budget. DS 

6/8/2021 City Council Minutes Page 4 ofll 



Mr. Strickland explained the Sourcewell Program benefits the City in many ways. He looked at 
other backhoes from other vendors and they were all similarly priced to this piece of equipment. 
It is $8,491 over what we had budgeted but in visiting with Cashman, he is hoping to bring back 
another Sourcewell option for the motor grader. That one will come in under budget and it will be 
enough to cover the overage on this one. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Morris, to 
authorize staff to purchase a new Caterpillar Backhoe model 420-07 C from Cashman 
Equipment Company through Sourcewell Purchasing in the amount of $108,491. 

The motion passed unanimously. (3-0) 

IV. SUBDIVISIONS 

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Final Map No. 2-21, filed by 
Jordanelle Third Mortgage, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled 
Zephyr Heights Unit 1 involving the proposed division of approximately 25.1 acres 
of property into 18 lots for residential development and 1 remainder lot within the 
R (Multiple-Family and Single-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Subject property is located on the east side of East Jennings Way generally east of 
Puccinelli Parkway. (APN 001-562-010). The Planning Commission considered 
this item on June 1, 2021, and took action to forward a recommendation to 
conditionally approve Final Map 2-21. MR 

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, explained this is Unit 1 of the Zephyr Heights 
Subdivision. There are 11 findings in the report to support the conclusion that the Final Map is in 
compliance. There are 14 conditions that have been placed on it. She recommended conditional 
approval. 

Scott MacRitchie, Jordanelle Third Mortgage, said he could not make it to town for the meeting. 
They are excited to get started on this project. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Morris, to 
conditionally approve Final Map No. 2-21 for the Zephyr Heights Unit 1 Subdivision, subject 
to the findings and conditions as recommended by the Planning Commission. 

The motion passed unanimously. (3-0) 

V. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Review, discussion, and consideration for the possible installation of fitness and 
exercise equipment at Angel Park, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

6/8/2021 City Council Minutes Page 5 ofll 



Staff received a request from Ms. Courtney Nalivka regarding the possible 
installation of some outdoor exercise and fitness equipment within the Elko Park 
System. Ms. Nalivka works in our community as a health professional promoting 
and encouraging fitness and healthy lifestyles. The Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board heard the request at the May 20, 2021 meeting, and recommends the Council 
consider approving the idea of installing equipment at Angel Park, utilizing the 
space where the former tennis courts were located. JW 

James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director, explained a few months ago, Courtney got in touch 
with him and they talked about this idea of outdoor fitness equipment. They brought some 
concepts tonight. Staff was in the process of doing something with the area where they demoed 
the tennis courts at Angel Park. They were preparing to do something there this budget cycle. 
This location for the exercise equipment rose to the top. He will work with Bob Thibault to come 
up with a plan and a design. He thought the funds were in the budget to pull this off. He introduced 
Courtney Nalivka. 

Courtney Nalivka, Registered Dietician, explained her request. She thought this idea of exercise 
equipment could help encourage people to get out and improve their physical health. She 
explained some of the conceptual drawings that were included in the packet. 

* * A motion was made by Councilman Morris, seconded by Councilman Stone, to 
approve the idea of installing outdoor fitness exercise equipment at Angel Park and direct 
staff to prepare a detailed plan and budget for a future final plan in the 2022 fiscal year. 

The motion passed unanimously. (3-0) 

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Performance/Maintenance 
Agreement for subdivision improvements associated with the Zephyr Heights Unit 
1 Subdivision, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Elko City Code 3-3-21 requires the subdivider to have executed and filed an 
agreement between the subdivider and the City for the required subdivision 
improvements, including stipulations on the timeframe for when those 
improvements are to be completed, and to post a performance guarantee in 
accordance with Elko City Code 3-3-22. MR 

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, explained the proposed agreement. She recommended 
approval. 

Scott MacRitchie, Jordanelle Third Mortgage, asked if this is the same type of agreement that they 
have done in the past. 

Ms. Rambo answered this is the same agreement they have for his development at Tower Hill. 

6/8/2021 City Council Minutes Page 6 ofll 



** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Morris, to 
improve a Performance/Maintenance Agreement for subdivision improvements associated 
with the Zephyr Heights Unit 1 subdivision, and require that the developer enter into the 
agreement within 30 days. 

The motion passed unanimously. (3-0) 

C. Review, consideration and possible action to initiate an amendment to Elko City 
Code Title 9, Chapter 6 (Illegal Discharge and Connection to Stormwater), Chapter 
7 (Construction Site Runoff Control), and Chapter 8 (Postconstruction Runoff 
Control and Water Quality Management), and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

The City of Elko stormwater program was audited by the Nevada Department of 
Environmental Protection and the Environmental Protection Agency in August 
2020. One of the findings of that audit was that current enforcement regulations 
were lacking in both clarity and implementation. As a result, the audit report 
required the City to update its stormwater codes with enhanced enforcement 
procedures. 

While reviewing the storm water codes with the City Attorney, it was determined 
that sections other than enforcement needed numerous modifications. This includes 
applicability, definitions, specific processes and/or procedures, and responsibility. 
Modifications to these other provisions have been included as part of this proposed 
code change. MR 

Ms. Rambo explained the proposed code changes. She was in the process of having some ongoing 
discussions with NDEP that may result in some changes to the ordinance in the next week or so. 
Before this is brought back for first reading, she will make sure those changes have been made. 
The Storm Water Advisory Board looked at this earlier in the day and they recommended that this 
initiation be made. 

Mayor Keener said these changes were being driven by the audit. What does this mean to 
developers and builders? 

Ms. Rambo answered if there is a violation, the City has a more detailed process and it helps the 
developers understand the process more. The requirements are not changing. This changes the 
enforcement portion. They don't go straight to criminal liability. There is a whole administrative 
process depending upon the developers' /builders' response. 

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, said this all depends upon the severity of the violations. If there is 
no compliance, these new chapters have more detailed and more specific enforcement provisions. 

Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk, wondered if these changes would require a Business Impact 
Statement? 

Mr. Stanton answered they talked about that and came to the conclusion that this will not impose 
a new significant burden upon businesses. It clarifies existing requirements. 

6/8/2021 City Council Minutes Page 7 ofll 



** A motion was made by Councilman Morris, seconded by Councilman Stone, to 
initiate an amendment to the Elko City Code Title 9, Chapter 6 (illegal Discharge and 
Connection to Stormwater), Chapter 7 (Construction Site Runoff Control), and Chapter 8 
(Postconstruction Runoff Control and Water Quality Management). 

The motion passed unanimously. (3-0) 

VI. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 

A. First reading of Ordinance No. 862, an Ordinance adopting a requirement for a 
Nonpublic Hospital License and Establishing a License Fee, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

On April 27, 2021, the City Council voted to initiate an ordinance which would 
create a "Local Hospital Licensure Fee." As a result of that action, City Staff has 
drafted Ordinance No. 862 for review. A copy of the proposed Ordinance has been 
enclosed in the agenda packet for review. CC 

Curtis Calder, City Manager, explained this is the first draft of the ordinance. We worked out a 
lot of the obvious issues we thought we were going to have with the language. We feel good about 
it at this point but wanted to hear from the hospital. 

Steve Simpson, CEO NNRH, said he appreciates everyone taking a look at this. 

Zach Fichtenbaum, Austin, TX, said the whole purpose of the licensure fee is to figure out a way 
to come up with more public funds to draw down more reimbursements for North Eastern Regional 
Hospital to get paid closer to their costs. Right now there just is not enough state share to draw 
down enough Medicaid payment to cover all of the costs that the hospitals incur when treating 
Medicaid patients. This is another vehicle to generate local funds that the City can then transfer 
to the State to help narrow that cost. 

Mayor Keener asked if the only impact will be on the hospital facility. 

Mr. Fichtenbaum answered it will only impact hospitals, more specifically, NNRH in our area. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Morris, to 
conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 862 and direct staff to set the matter for Second 
Reading, Public Hearing and possible adoption. 

The motion passed unanimously. (3-0) 

BREAK 

VII. 5:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Review, consideration, and possible action to name field # 2 at the Elko Sports 
Complex after Mr. Hal Hibbert and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

6/8/2021 City Council Minutes Page 8 ofll 



The Council reviewed a petition from Ms. Beth Meza and other community 
members regarding the possible naming of field # 2 at the Elko Sports Complex 
after Mr. Hal Hibbert on May 25, 2021. Pursuant to the criteria for naming City of 
Elko Facilities and Parks, Staff requested additional public comment from 
organizations and citizens utilizing the facility. Subject to comments and 
information presented during this public hearing, the City Council may take action 
to name the facility as requested in the petition. JW 

James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director, explained this is the second step in the process before 
adoption. There are a lot of names on a petition (included in the packet) and a lot of comments. 
They are all favorable in naming the field after Hal Hibbert. 

Mayor Keener called for public comments. 

Danny Story, Elko Adult Softball, said they would be honored to have a field at the Sports 
Complex named after Hal Hibbert. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Morris, seconded by Councilman Stone, to name 
field #2 of the Elko Sports Complex after Mr. Hal Hibbert. 

The motion passed unanimously. (3-0) 

VIII. REPORTS 

A. Mayor and City Council 

6/8/2021 

Mayor Keener said he had the opportunity to attend an open house/ribbon 
cutting for Elko Federal Credit Union. He spoke with a contractor when he 
was there and said there is a need to put together some sort of workshop 
regarding the City Development process. We are a customer service 
organization and if they want to develop in the City we need to give them good 
customer service or we can lose out on the development. Maybe even send out 
a survey. He thanked Curtis for his work with the League of Cities and the 
retreat, which is happening next week. 

Councilman Stone said he was downtown and looked at the block ends 
project. There was .a section that looked to have a V pattern that looked like 
water will pool in there. 

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, answered that is a low impact development 
where the stormwater will actually flow through the landscaping. It might 
puddle slightly but it is intended to flow. We created that as a low spot at that 
corner in the curb so they decided to have it flow through the curb and the 
landscaping. 

Councilman Stone said he went through the golf course the other day and 
the grass is looking really good. 

Mayor Keener thanked staff for their help on a presentation he is putting 
together. 

City Council Minutes Page 9 ofll 



B. City Manager - Nevada League of Cities Retreat June 16 - 18, 2021 
Curtis Calder explained the retreat and the planned events. The annual 

conference will be held in Sparks in the Fall. We will have open enrollment in 
the last 2 weeks of June. Everyone is required to go through the open 
enrollment this year. The invites will be coming out shortly. 

C. Assistant City Manager 
D. Utilities Director 

Mayor Keener asked how the new Vac Truck is working. 
Dale Johnson answered it is working really well and has been busy. 
Mayor Keener asked if there has been any resolution to the water issue that 

was reported by the Thorntons. 
Mr. Johnson answered not really. The Thorntons complained about it again 

but there hasn 't been any issue since then. 
E. Public Works 

Dennis Strickland said the crews have been super busy patching the roads 
and getting them ready for the Micro Slurry Project. 

Mayor Keener said he spoke with Jared from Elko Sanitation and he said 
good things about the crew at the Landfill. 

Mr. Strickland said Elko Sanitation are great to work with and the Landfill 's 
biggest customer. The Landfill staff went out of their way to make sure Elko 
Sanitation wasn't super impacted during the scale project. The new scales are 
in and working great. 

Mayor Keener said he spoke with Brad with Facilities and he was talking 
about how the City changed out all the lights up to 7'h Street. Was there an 
update from NV Energy on the 400 and 500 blocks? 

Dennis Strickland said he got an email from Mr. Campbell last week saying 
they are working diligently at getting the damaged lights in the Coffee Mug 
section fixed We are missing 2 luminaires there and one by Roys. We have 
upgraded the lights at 3rd and Silver by making them brighter. There will be a 
radar speed limit sign coming to slow people down in the downtown area. We 
will light up the block ends too with Bob's project. 

Mayor Keener thought it would be helpful to get Dave Zornes involved He 
is who brought the lighting issue to his attention as being a safety concern. 

F. Airport Manager 
G. City Attorney 
H. Fire Chief 

Chief Griego said his crews have been able to get back into the schools for 
their events before the school year ended They look forward to doing it again 
next year. The numbers have been modest but they are getting calls while on 
another call. It used to be rare that we saw two calls at the same time. 

I. Police Chief 
J. City Clerk - Legislative update 

Kelly Wooldridge said she is working on the final spreadsheet on the 
legislative bill; that impact the City. She will get it out to everyone as soon as 
she gets it done. 

K. City Planner 
L. Development Manager 
M. Financial Services Director - ARP A update 

6/8/2021 City Council Minutes Page 10 ofll 



N. Parks and Recreation Director 
Mayor Keener said he noticed a lot of charges in the payables for temps. 

He asked if the temps have worked out. 
James Wiley answered there has been some good luck with some and not so 

good luck with a couple. He didn't think they had any temps right now. 
0. Civil Engineer 

Bob Thibault reported they are laying sod at the Corridor Block Ends 
Project. The 5th Street Park Parking Lot is almost 90% done. It looks great 
and recommended everyone go and take a look at it. 

P. Building Official 

Councilman Stone commented about Elko High School's graduation and the fireworks display. 
People loved it and he has heard nothing but good things. 

Before going into the closed session, Mayor Keener asked if there were any public comments 
without a response. 

II. PERSONNEL (Cont.) 

B. Update regarding Labor Negotiations between the City of Elko and the Elko Fire 
Fighters Association, IAFF Local 2423, and matters related thereto. 
INFORMATION ONLY - NON ACTION ITEM 

Note: This portion of the meeting may be closed pursuant to NRS 288; 
therefore, the Council may move to adiourn the meeting prior to consideration 
of this item. 

Mayor Keener adjourned the meeting and moved to a closed session. At 6:53 pm, he adjourned 
the closed session and re-opened the regular meeting. 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item 
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda 
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

There were no public comments. 

There being no further business, Mayor Reece Keener adjourned the meeting. 

Mayor Reece Keener Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk 

6/8/2021 City Council Minutes Page 11 ofll 



Agenda Item I.A. 

Elko City Council 
· Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Presentation of an appreciation plaque by Mayor Keener in recognition of 
Urijah Lortie, for his generous donation to the City of Elko Animal Shelter, and 
matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NON ACTION ITEM 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: PRESENTATION 

4. Time Required:· 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: N/ A 
Budget amount available: N/A 
Fund name: N/A 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: 

9. Recommended Motion: Information Only - Non Action Item 

10. Prepared by: Curtis Calder, City Manager 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: Urijah Lortie 
Billie Lortie (Mother of Urijah Lortie) 

Created on 6/10/2021 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



Agenda Item I.B. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Presentation of a proclamation by the Mayor in recognition of August 3, 2021 
as "National Night Out", and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY -
NON ACTION ITEM 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. AgendaCategory: PRESENTATION 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: N/A 
Budget amount available: N/A 
Fundname: NIA 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: 

9. Recommended Motion: INFORMATION ONLY - NON ACTION ITEM 

10. Prepared by: Curtis Calder, City Manager 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Actjon: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 6/14/2021 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



2020 
YEAR IN REVIEW 

CITY OF ELKO 

PUBLIC WORKS 







C: 00 '- Cl) 

U) :::l C: C. -c .., 
:::l 0 co 

1--
.... '- '- Cl) '-"' "' "' 

"'C (J co ~ - '- :::l '+-- C: C. u co Cl) 0 0 co ..._ 

~ C. 
.., 

Cl) C) C: C: w "' 
Cl) C: -~ 2 Cl) 

"' 
Cl) co "' > 

0 ~ - C: C: Cl) .., - ·- >. 
'- "' Cl) co co co 

0 
(J 

>. (J Cl) E -c co 

"' - ·-.... .., (J (J 

"' ·- E N Cl) '- u E "' LO 

~ co Cl) co C. 
.c .... 

'+-- "' C) 0 "'C "'C 

0. C. C: :::s C: - T""" 

0 ·- "' - 0 C) '-.., 
>. (J 

"' 
.., .., 

C: ·- C: 0 
"' E co .., ·- '+--

U) >. - "'C ·- C: >. -co 
"' '- J: Cl) co 0 

"'C >. Cl) 00 (J 
.., '- '-:::, "' co C. T""" ·- Cl) C. .., 

C) LO J: '- "' C: 
co I -c '- "' ~ -c 0 Cl) :::s .... 

0 .c E (.0 J: - .... C: C) (J 

N .., C. "' co C: (J 0 co co >. ·-(.0 .... .., ·-w '- I Cl) "' co Cl) .., ~ en C) >. :::s .... 0 "' ~ co -c C) co ...._ C) "' co (J '-z '- "'C "' en .., 
C. C: >. C: .... 

II ·- M >. co T""" ·- C) -c 

cc C) ~ "' (.0 co "'C I co C: Cl) 

E C: '- Cl) "'C '- ·- -c co E '- N Cl) "'C C: co ·- 0 'q" ·-- E "' N (J '- > ...J '- (J ·- '+-- C: 
C) >. 

.., 
~ I >. I C: Cl) 

:::s 0 
0 (J (.0 co C) co co .c '-

...J (J ·- Cl) C: Cl) 
"'C Cl) C. - C. '- Cl) ~ >. (J C: 0 C. >. ·- (J Cl) 

.., 
I '- co .., J: C: en C: w ·- C: .., .... 

C: Cl) '- u co (J co T""" C: "' Cl) "' 0 Cl) I- .., 
C: 

co .., 
E 

.., u "' co "'C C: co '- C: ·- '- -c - Cl) Cl) Cl) .., .., . 
'- J: C. Cl) Cl) E Cl) Cl) (J C: 0 

.., 
> "' ·- .., 

C: - .., .., 
> U) Cl) co 

.., .., 
C: Cl) co C: co co Cl) C: ·- Cl) :::s Cl) - 0 > C) co Cl) ·- .c - E C) Cl) co C) (J 0 

.... 
E ·- C: 2: "' co -

1-1 0 
.., C: "' .., "' ·- 2: co .... co 

"' ·- ~ C.o C: J: ~ C: "' "'C ·-
~ 

'+-- ·- C. 0 Cl) T""" 
Cl) (J >. (J C: ·- .., 

Cl) 
(J 

co '- ·- Cl) co co Cl) Cl) 
'- '- ~ 0 

.., .., C) Cl) 
Cl) J: >< co - '- '- - C. .., 

'- - ·- C: ~ ..J u en co en .., w C. <t u en C en ·-
\ '- \ \ ' ' " " .. " 









C 0 

. ' 

I 

Q 

.. 

. . 





MISCELLANEOUS 
, Hired two new full-time employees. 
, Purchased a new Caterpillar D6 Dozer in November. The new 

dozer is equipped with a GPS system that provides instant 
feedback on elevations on any slope or surface at the landfill, 
thereby eliminating the need for extensive staking by a surveying 

, Due to theft problems, installed additional alarm systems in both 
of the shops and switched the scale house alarm system to the 
same company. 

, Had a new engine installed in the 826 Caterpillar Compactor. 
, The 623 Scraper incurred extensive damage in an incident last 

year. Repairs were made by Cashman Equipment Company and 
the machine is back in full service. 

, The older scale sections, that were not replaced with the last scale 
upgrade, were found to be worn out and in need of replacement 
during the last scale certification; therefore, the scales were 
replaced this year. 



MISCELLANEOUS PROJECTS 
( continued) 

, Spring Take Pride Day was cancelled due to Covid, but during the 
November Free Landfill day, there was two hundred twenty-eight 
loads containing 53.29 tones of trash and 109 tires. There were 228 
vehicles in/out of the Landfill. 

, Continued the Downtown Corridor and Park system trash 
collection program. 

, Continue to upgrade signage at the Landfill. 
, There is a continuing problem with people cutting the perimeter 

fence at the Landfill in order to either cut through Landfill property 
or to commit theft or vandalism. 

, In a continuing effort to comply with the beautification requirement 
of the Landfill permit, the Landfill planted 15 Autumn Purple Ash 
and 11 Austrian Pines. 





















1-z 
w 
:E 
I
~ 

f 
w 
C 
w u 
z 
~ z 
w 
1-z -<( 
:E 
~ 
w 
w 
..J 
LL 



• 
~ 

C 
Q) . . 
E Cl) 

~ Cl. ■-cu ■-

~ 
~ 0.. -0 :J 

-0 Q) Q) C 0-

C Q) ~ cu Q) 

U> - oes cu '+-
.... ~ 
~ ~ 

Q) C 0 ..., .... Cl) (_) ..c Q) 0.. C ~ 
■- ~ C E 0.. I C ■-

C cu (_) cu Q) Cl. :J 
·- ~ E Cl) ..c C C ■-

:J (_) cu ·- -:::, cu 0.. 0- -
Q) ..c ·- cu 
E (_) E ::J Q) E 

Q) Cl) 0- ~ .... 
0.. Q) Cl) 

> E Cl) ~ 
~ 

:J -
Q) cu • 

.... -........ 
(_) .:::t::. ~ ■-

(_) ..., ~ C (_) > (_) Cl) 
0 0 ■-> cu Q) ■-

■- E I 
Cl) 

■- ~ 0.. Q) Cl) Cl. ■- ~ 

u > cu Q) ..c Cl) .:::t::. Cl) '+-~ (_) Cl) "'O .:::t::. (_) 0 Q) ■- C '+- (_) ::J '+-
~ 0 0 Cl. ~ C cu :J ~ Cl) 

::J ..0 Q) Cl) ~ ~ Cl) Q) 
Cl) ~ I- Cl. E Cl) Q) Q) (_) 

-........ ~ (_) E (_) Q) 
~ ~ ~ cu Q) 

Q) ~ Q) ~ Q) ■-

(_) ::J Cl. cu ■- ■- ■-

..c "'O Cl. LL ""O Cl. - 0.. ~ ~ ~ Q) ■- Q) N L() ~ 0 0 (J) s ~ -0 ~ Cf) ~ N ~ ~ 

- ~ - ~ - ~ - ~ - ~ - ~ 



......., 
C 
Q) 

E ......., ......., ,_ 
C ro Q) 

-a Cl. E Q) "'O 
0 

......., 

a, en ,_ 
C 

.::£ ro ro 
U) 

,_ 0) Cl. ro C Q) "" en ,a .a-, (L ■- 0 "'O -
C ro 

.c "'O 
:J 

,_ (.) 

a, en C Q) Q) 
((l u ......., ro s "'O 

E 
C >. "'O Q) "" I.. :J ,_ 

C Cl) en 
:::s ......., Q) ro 0 

C 
......., 

I a. Q) ......., "'O 

0. a, 
E 

,_ 
.::£ ro 

■- E 0 (.) ,_ 

:::s Q) Cl.. :J 
■ ......., 

"'O "'O > 
,_ 

0 
,_ ,_ 

ro Q) <( I- Q) a, er en Cl. I (.) "'O 

~ w .::£ Q) C I Q) ro 
(.) "'O en ro Q) 

......., ,_ en _J en 
:J Q) Q) :J .::£ .::£ 

C C a, ,_ s ..c (.) ■-......., (.) 0 ..C: . ......., 
■- 0 E :J -~ C z Q) - 0 0 

,_ ,_ 
~ <( I- I ..c: Q) 

■- Cl. '+- s E s s s s s s '+- Cl. 
Q) Q) Q) Q) a, Q) 0 :J C C z z z z 

CT 
N ~ N ~ N ~ <( Q) 

~ ~ ~ - ~ - ~ - ~ ~ 









Agenda Item II.A. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of revisions to the position 
description for Animal Control Officer, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: PERSONNEL 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The Animal Control Officer position description has been 
revised and updated to accurately reflect the duties and requirements of the position. 
ss 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: NA 
Budget amount available: NA 
Fund name: NA 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Copy of proposed position description 

9. Recommended Motion: Approve the revised Animal Control Officer position 
description as presented. 

10. Prepared By: Susie Shurtz, Human Resources Manager 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

03/17/2021 Council Agenda Action Sheet 



Agenda Item III.C. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

l. Title: Review, consideration, and possible issuance of rmal acceptance for the Alley 
Water Line Replacement between 4th, 5th, Commercial & Silver Streets, and 
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: Great Basin Engineering has completed the work for the 
alley project. Staff recommends the issuance of final acceptance. There was one 
change order for $9,532.70 for standby time and additional quantity adjustments 
for $4,810.35 for materials. The original contract amount was $159,220.91 plus the 
addition of Change Order # 1 and the quantity adjustments for a combined amount 
of $14,343.05, bringing the total project cost to $173,563.96. DJ 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: $173,563.96 
Budget amount available: $200,000.00 
Fund name: Water 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Quantity Adjustments-Provided by Great Basin 
Engineering and Chang order #1 for time and material standby. 

9. Recommended Motion: Move to issue final acceptance 

10. Prepared by: Dale Johnson, Utilities Director 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 6/16/2021 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



"'

~!~T BASIN 
engineering contractors 

//-,=--~- , " __ /, 

Item No 
1 
2 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 

Description 

Mob&Demob 
Traffic Control 
Saw Cut Ex. Pavement 
Saw Cut Ex. Concrete 
Remove Ex. Pavement 
Remove Ex. Curb & Gutter 
Remove Ex. Concrete 
4" Hot Tap, Materials, Ex & Backfill 
4" Gate Valve (FLGxMJ) 
6"x4" Reducer (FLG) 
4" Adaptor (FLGxMJ) 
6" Adaptor (FLGxMJ) 
6" C900 Waterline 
Install 1" Water Services 
Install 1" Meter Box 
Install Traffic Rated Box 
Remove Ex. Water Serv. & Curb Box 
lnstallValve Boxes, Adj to Grade, Collars 
3" AC Pavement 
9" Type 2 Base 
Type 1 Curb & Gutter 
4" Thick Concrete Sidewalk 

Original Contract Amount 
Change Order 1 - Standby 
Final Quantity Adjustments 

Final Contract Amount 

Bid Qty. 

1 

1 
630 

33 
2,988 

16 
100 

2 
2 
2 
2 
2 

364 
8 
8 
8 
4 
2 

2,851 
2,851 

16 
100 

$159,220.91 

$ 9,532.70 
$ 4,810.35 
$173,563.96 

Unit 

LS 
LS 
LF 
LF 
SF 
LF 
SF 
EA 
EA 
EA 
EA 
EA 
LF 
EA 
EA 
EA 
EA 
EA 
SF 
SF 
LF 
SF 

Rate Total 
$4,486.90 $4,486.90 

$2,574.82 $2,574.82 
$4.04 $2,545.20 
$5.99 $197.67 
$0.81 $2,420.28 

$30.95 $495.20 
$12.44 $1,244.00 

$5,649.47 $11,298.94 
$1,744.33 $3,488.66 

$637.23 $1,274.46 
$500.38 $1,000.76 
$620.07 $1,240.14 

$78.30 $28,501.20 
$2,600.50 $20,804.00 
$2,418.68 $19,349.44 
$1,714.35 $13,714.80 

$599.23 $2,396.92 
$1,124.71 $2,249.42 

$5.05 $14,397.55 
$6.57 $18,731.07 

$149.28 $2,388.48 
$44.21 $4,421.00 

Total: $159,220.91 

Change Qty 

126 

-1187 

54 

17 

2 
2 
2 
2 

-1187 
-1187 

54 

Job No. 21-027 

City of Elko 

Downtown Alley Waterline 

Change Total Project Total 

$0.00 $4,486.90 

$0.00 $2,574.82 

$509.04 $3,054.24 
$0.00 $197.67 

-$961.47 $1,458.81 
$0.00 $495.20 

$671.76 $1,915.76 
$0.00 $11,298.94 
$0.00 $3,488.66 

$0.00 $1,274.46 
$0.00 $1,000.76 

$0.00 $1,240.14 
$1,331.10 $29,832.30 

$5,201.00 $26,005.00 
$4,837.36 $24,186.80 
$3,428.70 $17,143.50 
$1,198.46 $3,595.38 

$0.00 $2,249.42 

-$5,994.35 $8,403.20 
-$7,798.59 $10,932.48 

$0.00 $2,388.48 
$2,387.34 $6,808.34 
$4,810.35 $164,031.26 



CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA 

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER FORM-CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 

Project: 

Contractor: 

Address: 

Water Line Replacement 

Alley between 4th, 5th, Commercial & Silver Steets 

Great Basin Engineering Contractors 

3250 West Idaho Street 

Elko, Nevada 89801 

Date of Issuance: June 15, 2021 

Owners Project#: PWP EL-2021-138 

Engineer: Carter Engineering, LLC 

CONTRACT WORK CHANGE ITEMS: 

BID ITEM NO. WORK DESCRIPTION Qty 

GB21-027 Standby and T & M Billing 

Change In Contract Price 

Original Bid Contract Price 

$159,220.91 

Contract Price Prior to this Change Order 

$159,220.91 

Net Increase or Decrease in Contract Price 

$9,532.70 

' 
New Contract Price with all Change Orders 

$168,753.61 

Reco!ended: ~ 
~,{'6;.«~ tf';L. '.-::> . ~, - -

ngineer 

Approved: 

~ 

Unit Unit Rate AMOUNT 

LS $9,532.70 

Total Change Order Amount: 

$9,532.70 

$9,532.70 

Change In Contract Time 

Original Contract Time 

30 Calendar Days 

Contract Time Prior to this Change Order 

30 Calendar Days 

Net Increase or Decrease in Days 

0 Calendar Days 

New Contract Time with all Change Orders 

30 Calendar Days 

Approved: 

~~~ Contract 



, GREAT BASIN 
engineering contractors 

Name: OtyofElko Great Basin Engineering Contractors 
Project: Downtown Alley Waterline P.O.Box396 

T&MBIIHnc Elko, Nevada 89803 
GBEC Job No: GBZ1-0Z7 Invoice: 

Phase 88-01 • Standby 
Date Clastflcatlon Hours Rate OT Hours OT Rate Total 

5/11/2021 Operator f2) 6 $103.86 $623.16 
Laborer(3) 9 $79.76 $717.84 
CAT 2590 Skid Steer #SS06 3 $39.00 $117.00 
CAT 308E Excavator #EXll 3 $60.00 $180.00 
Ford 2000 Gal. Water Truck #ST107 3 $55.00 $165.00 
Sterllna SYD Dump Truck #ST108 3 $45.00 $135.00 
CAT 938K Loader #l002 3 $75.00 $225.00 
light Vehicle #LV45 3 $17.75 $S3.25 

5/12/2021 Operator (2) 16 $103.86 3 $155.79 $2,129.13 
Laborer(2) 16 $79.76 2 $109.62 $1,495.40 
CAT 2590 Skid Steer #SS06 8 $39.00 $312.00 
CAT 308E Excavator #EXU 8 $60.00 $480.00 
CAT 303.5 Excavator #EX07 8 $43.00 $344.00 
Ford 2000 Gal. Water Truck #ST107 8 $5S.00 $440.00 
Sterlin« SYD Dump Truck #ST108 8 $45.00 $360.00 
CAT 938K Loader #LD02 8 $75.00 $600.00 
Li1ht Vehicle #LV39 8 $17.75 $142.00 

S/19/2021 ODerator (2) 12 $103.86 $1,246.32 
laborer(2) 10 $79.76 $797.60 
CAT 308E Excavator #EXll 4 $60.00 $240.00 
light Vehicle #LV39 4 $17.75 $71.00 

Total: $9,532.70 



., GrNt Sa8#n,Engl1-6rlna Contactors Dallv ,,;..? ~- . --
~~,: Scott Lattin 

·i ~,-: May 11, 2021 

PROJf.CT LOCAtlON AND JOB# Downtown Altey tt..OJ7 

,,,...,_,~- ,,.: lnltllll Ya. , t(o "'Eaumaceo , Pel'HJ\RNI 
Comff.letlon 

Ha-ef4trt,m, I Top& Corr.ctlv• MIion o.ate" 
.. -

JOOl'IIIH 

&IDI-
., 

lrtl,_ v .. 01-(11 02-01 fl.01 04-01 06,01 ot-01 97,01 88-01 

MOb Demo Conemte Main Servtcea Paving Ma~ &andb, 

Sooltuttfn 0 7 ,, 3 - (<<-

Abet Saleuir L 
-

Abarham Gonulu C 

Enrique Cruz C 
-

Ernesto Ochao I. 6 3 

Humbur1o Gontalez L 6 3 

Keelan Sherbrooka 0 

JlmGhai " 6 3 

Jose Romero C 

LUii Leyva C 

Manvel Salazal L 6 3 -- llllltl 

E350 LV07 

F250 LV39 

FJ50 LV45 ~ 3 

F3SO LV48 
- ·-

TraMil LV27 
·-

Taooma I.V35 ,_ ECJ, 
Cat2570 sso, 

Cat2598 SS03 --
Cat 2590 SS05 ,__ -- ·-- -
C.12590 SS06 2 3 

Cat308E EX11 4 3 ,___. - -
Kenworth ST106 - -- '-
Ford Wetar Truck ST107 ' J ,__ - --
Sterlng SYD ST108 i 3 

Cat 14-15 MG07 -
Cat938K L002 2 3 - .... -

·- - --~~for meln mari«,d in wrong location wenl the other way -- ·•· - -
·- l/tJt""INO -+ t I ----i ·7 ., I 

MVIHlflYIMIIWfM:NO . .... : I 
I I I __ _j 

-- ------- - -------



Supertnteilbent: Scott Lattin 

____ _ Date: May 12. 2021 

PROJECT LOCMJON AND JOB I 

Sit. Smty Jnapectlon Petfonned 

Haurds I lltme If oplu 

Sron Lanm 

Abel Salazar 

Humbut10 Gonzelez 

Kaeren Shero,ooke 

Jim Ghsl 

Jose Romero 

Luis Leyva 

c,, .. 

() 

[) 

C 

1 
~ 

1 Manue S0la1.ar 

Plcllup1 t U_n_!c, j 
E35 

1'250 

F350 

F,50 

Transit 

Tacoma 

LV • 

1:Y.~ 
LV45 

LV48 

LV27 

LV35 

, . ___ E_'l}!ll'!'i.•ttt Ud- ·- -EQ f 

. Cal :1570 S501 
I 

Ca12598 

Cat 7590 

( al 2590 

1ca1 JOSE 

Cat 303 5 

Kenv.'Orth 
I 
Ford Water Truck 

Ster u,il 5Y ' 

Cal 14,15 

t~-,1~8K 

I 

f----

S503 

SSC5 

5S06 

EX11 

EX07 

~ T 100 

ST107 

ST\08 

MG07 

L002 

"reat Basin Engineering Contactors Dally 

T ________ _ L 
Downtown Alley 21..011 

lnftlal NO ~ ----· c-:::,:r .. 
Co"9Ctlve Action Date 

Person Resr 

f 
l 

- ---------·- -

01~1 

Mob 

' I 
i 

02-01 

Oomo 

. 

-

- 1 
03-01 

~onCrete . 

-·----

·-

04-01 

Main 

Ll 
- '"'?!.i~ • ·- ---

oty hot tapped wrong pie had to demo more road end find MW pipe 

j ~:::--1... . --_-=i._..::::__ J 
Approved By: 
: T . 7 

I ...._ _____ -

I 

.l 

j -

88-01 

Stan<1oy 

10 ,. 

a 

8 

8 



- - ---·· --- - - - ---- - ------

l,t ... ~ ,- .... ,_.:;,,,.:. _,, In En(i1116in1rill.C.on.tact.oc, t)alli ~ •:.:? r.h~ 
._. ,, ~ :j - . . ..-

~ ~ .. - ; Sc:OUL.attln -
' . ' 

... ""OIi•: May 19, 2021 .. I 
Of;ATJOli'ANp JOB fl 

.. , 
Downtown Alley 21-027 ~. 

~✓=~-i~ 
lnltlal ,,., .. Yffff1J1 ~~nta«.d' ~· ~ ,' ..... l 

,.~~ t.;. ~ 

~ _pletlon ' 
~Acion · Date ; 

I ., i .. 
' .•. 

. Jt ltl'II ... 
.. ·- ,, . • ll't-i/i u.:l .t!J-.. -~ 01'°1 OZ.C,1 I' CIS,01 04-01 09.01 Gl-01 '7o01 ' IN1 " 
" Mab Damo ConCrate f,11111 8eNlcN P8'Jlng ~ eldnl 

Scoll~ 0 2.6 • 4~(' 8 ., 

AbelSalalr L 

HecbOet.lCNz L .. 

~Oelda 
~ 

L ' . 
tbnburtoGonzalez L u- s -

K8111en8hel1'nloke 0 

JlmOha! Ec1 0 ' 
6.5., 5 -

Joseaomeio C ' 
, ..... 

~ 

LulalA)W . !. C ,. 

ManuelSallzat L U • 6 

"~ .......... -.1,., ••. ~-- .., ':. '.!""t-:._ ..... -, ... /"':'! 

E3&0 L'\/07 

1!'260 LY311 . 
F350 LV,.5 41' 4 ,, 

Fil!O• LV48 

Tl'Wllit LV27 

TIOOMe LY.IS 
•• J .,,__ ,,....... ~- ,..,t,J'· -~ "'-W L ' , .. t"•·.n>• 

Cet2570 8801 

cal2698 8803 

c.t259D S805 

Cet2690 8808 2 ,,. 

Cef308E EX11 '! '., 
Ford water Trudi 8T107 

Sterlng 5YO ST108 2,, ' ' . .:u;,,." l:.'.l, .~r•!t, .... -- ,•. ..,..._.;, . ..... Pc!iil:r,..,. ... !-' -~-~ ..-.., 
watar main bclke In alley 81811111d city In l9jllllllng II and ltllllng up tnlftlo Clll11'oll 

.,..: '.:..!.;.·~~, •"IMJ I I . I I I I 
••NO -·: I 
I I C I I I I I I I I 



Agenda Item III.D. 

Elko City Council 

Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review and possible approval of the Elko Regional Airport Liability 
Insurance Policy for FY 2021/2022, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION 

4. Time Required: 5 minutes 

5. Background Information: LP Insurance Services, Inc. has competitively sought 
airport liability insurance proposals for this coming fiscal year. Two (2) quotes were 
received. Last year AIG Aerospace was our provider for the same coverage amount 
at $10,834.00 / year. 

6. Budget Information: 
Appropriation Required: 
Budget amount available: $12,188.00 
Fund name: Airport Enterprise Fund 

7. Business Impact Statement: NI A 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Quotes from LP Insurance Services 

9. Recommended Motion: Move to approve the recommended airport Liability 
insurance quote from Staff. 

10. Prepared by: Jim Foster, Airport Manager 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: N/ A 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: Dain A. Uriarte 

Created on 6/17/21 

LP Insurance Services 
429 Court Street Suite #1 
Elko, NV 89801 
Direct: 775-299-5097 
Office: 775-738-7278 



AIG 2020-2021: $10,834 

Best Rating 

Financial Size 

Annual Premium 

Limits of Liability 

Premises & Operations 

Products/Completed 

Operations 

Hangarkeeper's Liability 

Personal & Advertising 
Injury Liability 

Contractual Liability 

Independent Contractors 

Premises Medical 

Medical Malpractice 

Fire Damage Legal Liability 

Non-Owned A/C Liability 
* Annual Aggregate 

Optional: TRIA 

City of Elko 
Airport Liability Insurance 

Renewal Quotations 
July 1, 2021 to July 1, 2022 

AIG 

A 
xv 

$10,844 

$20,000,000 

Included 

$1,000 Deductible 

Included* 

Included 

$5,000 Deductible 

Included* 

Included 

Included* 

$25,000 Ea. Per. 

Included* 

$1,000,000 

Not Covered 

Add:$3,253 

CA DOI License Number - 0673107 



Agenda Item IV .A. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Deed of Dedication for 
Right-of-Way, Public Utilities, and Slope Easement on APN 001-770-005, and 
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The City of Elko has been engaging the property owners of 
the referenced APN to acquire the necessary dedications for utility infrastructure 
which will be utilized as a second water source for the regional hospital. The 
proposed dedications will also facilitate proper roadway development and utility 
infrastructure for the Elko Mountain area east of State Route 227 and the area 
adjacent to the regional hospital on the west side of State Route 227. MR 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: N/ A 
Budget amount available: N/A 
Fund name: N/A 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Proposed Deed of Dedication with Exhibits 

9. Recommended Motion: Approve the Deed of Dedication for Right-of-Way, Public 
Utilities, and Slope Easement as presented. 

10. Prepared by: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: David Stanton, City Attorney 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 6/10/2021 

Elko Holding Group, LLC 
Attn: Mark Gaughan 
mark@aloharealty.com 

Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



APN 001-770-005 

When Recorded, Mall To: 
CityofElko 
1751 College Avenue 
Elko, Nevada 89801 

DEED OF DEDICATION 
(IUGBT-OF-WAY, PUBLIC UTILITIES AND SLOPE EASEMENTI 

THIS INDENTURE, made and entered into between ELKO HOLDING 
GROUP, LLC, a Nevada limited-liability company, Grantor, and the CITY OF ELKO, 
a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Nevada, Grantee. 

WITNESSETH: 

That the Grantor, for valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, does hereby dedicate to the Grantee a permanent non-exclusive right-of
way (to include, without limitation, streets and roadways), public utilities easement and 
slope easement, over, across, upon, under and through that portion of the Grantor's 
property situate within the City of Elko, County of Elko, State of Nevada, set forth in the 
descriptions attached hereto at Exhibit A (roadway right-of-way), Exhibit C (slope 
easements) and Euibit E (utility easement) and depicted on the maps attached hereto at 
Exhibit B (roadway right-of-way), Exhibit D (slope easements) and Exhibit F (utility 
easement), the right-of-way hereby being dedicated for a public s1reet and right-of-way, 
the slope easement hereby being dedicated for the purpose of adjusting and stabilizing the 
elevation difference between the right-of-way and adjoining property, and the utility 
easement being for the pwpose of installing and utilizing all public utilities, to include 
water and sewer lines, such dedications to include, without limitation, the right of the 
Grantee to perform all associated maintenance thereon. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has caused this indenture to be executed 
I II 
II I 
II I 
II I 
II I 
II I 

Page I of 2 



this 6 day of __ JZ=--i.,,f-~------J 2021. 

GRANTOR: 

ELKO HOLDING GROUP, LLC 

By:dlt4r= 

STATEOFNEVADA ) 

ItB: HM A,~i r1 i N e. M bu,'-
£ U.o ~; ?>1..-- l,1 ~ (di.olA-%7 , LL L 

U~'t\ ) ss. 
COUNTYOF~ ) 

~ -On this ~ day of J ~il, , 2021, personally appeared before me, 
a Notary Public, ?) ~lw\, °" """ GSN:\-e,h°"ID , who acknowledged 
that he/she executed the above instrument. 

Mall tu statement (If agpUcable) to: 

CityofElko 
17S1 College Avenue 
Elko, Nevada 89801 

2~ ~-/~~-•IQ....,_
NOTARY PUBLIC 

-

- NOTARY PUBLIC 
STATE OF NEVADA 

County of Clark 
O'ANDRE MASON•HEMMANS 

No.21.(INR,01 My~&plrea Decamber2, 2024 

Page2of 2 



Exhibit A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR TWO 

ROADWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATIONS 

Portions of APN: 001-770-005 described as follows: 

AREA 1# ELKO MOUNTAIN WAY 

An area of land within the northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of Section 24, Township 34 North, 
Range 55 East, M.D.B. & M. which roughly follows the existing dirt road, formerly known as Powder 
House Road, and Is further described as follows; 

Be1lnnlng at a point along the northeasterly rl&ht-of-way of Lamoille Highway, State Route 227, that 
bears South 54°19' 43" East, a distance of 583.88 feet, from the north quarter comer of said Section 24, 
Township 34 North, Range 55 East; 

Thence, from a tanaent bearing North 61°17'2r East, along a circular curve to the right, with a radius of 
390.00 feet, an arc length of 288.97 feet, and a central angle of 42.27'13"; 

Thence, on a tangent bearing, South 76.15'20" East, a distance of 145.59 feet; 

Thence, afon1 a tangent circular curve to the left, with a radius of 310.00 feet, an arc length of 119.19 
feet, and a central angle of 22°01'46"; 

Thence, on a tangent bearing, North 81°42'55" East, a distance of 269.62 feet; 

Thence, alons a tangent circular curve to the left, with a radius of 25.00 feet, an arc length of 35.61 feet, 
and a central angle of 81 °37'09", more or less, to the east line of said northwest quarter of the 
northeast quarter of Section 24, Township 34 North, Range 55 East; 

Thence, alon1 said east line of the northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of Section 24, South 
0°05'46" West, a distance of 115.65 feet; 

Thence, from a tangent bearing North 36°49'00" West, along a circular curve to the left, with a radius of 
25.00 feet, an arc length of 26.82 feet, and a central angle of 61.28'05"; 

Thence, on a tansent bearing, South 81 °42'55" West, a distance of 255.53 feet; 

Thence, alona a tangent circular curve to the right, with a radius of 390.00 feet, an arc length of 149.95 
feet, and a central angle of 22-01'46"; 

Thence, on a tangent bearing, North 76°15'20" West, a distance of 145.59 feet; 

Thence, along a tangent circular curve to the left, with a radius of 310.00 feet, an arc length of 223.09 
feet, and a central angle of 41 °13'59", more or less, to the northeasterly right-of-way of Lamoille 
Highway, State Route 227; 

Thence, along said northeasterly right-of-way of Lamoille Highway, State Route 227, from a tangent 
bearing North 33-03'10" West, along a circular curve to the left, with a radius of 6177.58 feet, an arc 
length of 74.63 feet, and a central angle of 0°41'32"; 



Thence, on a tangent bearing, North 33°44'42" West, a distance of 5.71 feet, more or less, to the point 
of be1tnnlng. 

This ri1ht-of-way is generally 80' wide, and contains a total of ±65,903 square feet. 

AREA Z, ERRECART BOULEVARD 

An area of land within the northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of Section 24, Township 34 North, 
Ranae 55 East, M.D.8. & M. which follows the exlstlns road known as Errecart Boulevard, and Is further 
described as follows; 

Beginning at a point alon11 the westerly boundary of said northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of 
Section 24, Township 34 North, Range 55 East, which bears South 0•15•47" West, a distance of 635.51 
feet from the north quarter corner of said Section 24; 

Thence, alon1 a non-tangent circular curve to the ri1ht, from a tangent bearing of North 47°59'33" East, 
with a radius of 1075.00 feet, an arc lenath of 161.26 feet, and a central angle of s•35' 42", more or less, 
to the southwesterly ri1ht-of-way line of Lamoille Highway, State Route 227; 

Thence, alon1 said southwesterly right-of-way line of Lamoille Highway, State Route 227, South 
33°44'42" East, a distance of 36.65 feet; 

Thence, continuing alon1 said southwesterly right-of-way line of Lamoille Highway, State Route 227, on 
a tangent circular curve to the right, with a radius of 5,777.58 feet, an arc length of 113.35 feet, and a 
central angle of 1•01•2r; 

Thence, from a tangent bearing South 56°34'21" West, along a circular curve to the left with a radius of 
925.00 feet, an arc length of 286.18 feet, and a central angle of 17°43'35", more or less, to the westerly 
boundary of said northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of Section 24, Township 34 North, Range 
55 East; 

Thence, alons said westerly boundary of said northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of Section 24, 
Township 34 North, Range 55 East, North 0°15'47" East, a distance of 218.60 feet, more or less, to the 
point of beginning. 

This right-of-way contains a total of ±33,263 square feet. 

The Basis of Bearings for this description is the Boundary Line Adjustment Record of Survey for K.R.l. 
Partnership & Cotoko, recorded In the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. S36658, on June 29, 
2005. The right-of-way for Lamoille Highway, State Route 227 was drawn from the record Information 
on the Parcel Map for the City of Elko, Nevada, recorded In the office of the Elko County Recorder as file 
no. 443291, on April 7, 1999, and was rotated to match file no. 536658. 

Description prepared by: 

Robert Thibault, PE, PLS tf 
Civil Engineer for the City of Elko 



N89"38'20"'E 
2857.05' 

N0'15'47"E 
218.80' 

A 
I 
N 

T - ---300' 0 300' 

------ .... 

NOR1ll I alll m:nct1 24 
PGll1IIIII CIILIMAIIII PER 
REICIIRD IIIEISIONI ON 
IOIINIMRY UIE MIJUIIIIDIT, 
REDIIIID CF IIUMT, 
FILE NO.--. 

r,,.. 

\ 
\ 

1111111 t/4 CIOR 
11111111N 14 
FOUND IIUI 
llllllllr/111' 

\ 
\ 

\ 

e1·1r2TE 
TANGENT C13 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

AR&'Af 

NlllfflUllf CX11N1t IBfflON 14 
mJNDGI.OIIRMIIIW' 

S88'48'118"'E 
1302.71S' 

nJCD IIOUN'l'AIN FAJ" 
DMBJ" D.UIC.tn'DC17 
16,908 s, 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ , 

~ 

Curve 

\ 

\ 

C7 

C12 

C13 

C14 

C15 

C18 

C17 

C11 

C8 

C10 

\ 
\ 
\ , 

Curve Table 

II Length Radius Delta 

181,28' 1075.00' e-35•42• 

223.09' 310.00' 41•13•59• 

288.97' 390.00' 42'27'13• 

119. 18' 310,00' 22'01"48. 

148.95' 390.00' 22'01'48. 

28.82' zs.oo· 81"28105· 

35.81' 25,00' 91•37•09• 

74.83' 81n.sa• 0'41'32. 

288.18' 92S.OO' 1743•35• 

113.35' sm.sa· 1'07'27• 

\ 
Line Tobie 

Line # Length Direction 

L4 38.85' N3l'44'42"W 

L5 145.59' N78'15'20"W 

L8 145.59' S78'15'20"E 

' L8 5.71' N33'44'42"W 

\ 
\ 

EXHIBIT B 
ROADWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY 

DEDICATIONS 



Exhibit C 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR TWO 
SLOPE EASEMENTS 

AREAl 

An area of land within the northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of Section 24, Township 34 North, 
Range 55 East, M.D.B. & M. which lies north of the Elko Mountain Way right-of-way described as Area 1 
of Exhibit A of this document, and lies south of the following described line; 

Be1lnnlng at a point along the northeasterly right-of-way of Lamoille Highway, State Route 227, that 
bears South 54•19•43• East, a distance of 583.88 feet, from the north quarter comer of said Section 24, 
Township 34 North, Ran1e 55 East; 

Thence, along said northeasterly right-of-way of Lamoille Highway, State Route 227, North 33•44'42• 
West, a distance of 52.80 feet; 

Thence, North 81 eil' 48" East, a distance of 77.36 feet; 

Thence, North s1 •14•57• East, a distance of 54.54 feet; 

Thence, North 35°19'33,. East, a distance of 133.16 feet; 

Thence, North 53•21'06" East, a distance of 73.34 feet; 

Thence, South 12•45•45• East, a distance of 36.28 feet; 

Thence, South 21 •33•35• East, a distance of 81.02 feet; 

Thence, South 69•01•2gs East, a distance of 180.80 feet; 

Thence, South 79.46'36" East, a distance of 74.76 feet; 

Thence, South 63.54'04" East, a distance of 46.40 feet; 

Thence, North 86•50' 48" East, a distance of 156. 77 feet; 

Thence, North 27•41'25" East, a distance of 113.50 feet; 

Thence, North 53•14• 40" West, a distance of 103.56 feet; 

Thence, North 1a•11• 42" East, a distance of 113. 78 feet, more or less, to the northerly line of said 
Section 24; 

Thence, South 89°49'58" East, along said northerly llne of said Section 24, a distance of 92.38 feet, more 
or less, to the East 1/16 comer of said Section 24; 

Thence, South 0°05'46" West, alon1 the East 1/16 llne of said Section 24, a distance of 276.59 feet, more 
or less, to the northerly boundary of the Powder House Road right-of-way described as Area 1 of Exhibit 
A of this document. 

This area of land contains 2.23 acres (97,211 square feet) more or less. 



AREA2 

An area of land within the northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of Section 24, Township 34 North, 
Range 55 East, M.0.B. & M. which lies south of the Elko Mountain Way right-of-way described as Area 1 
of Exhibit A of this document, and lies north of the following described line; 

Beginning at a point along the northeasterly right-of-way of Lamoille Highway, State Route 227, that 
bears South 51.50'15" East, a distance of 659.56 feet, from the north quarter corner of said Section 24, 
Township 34 North, Range 55 East; 

Thence, along the right-of-way of Lamoille Highway, State Route 227, from a tangent that bears South 
33°44'42" East, along a circular curve to the right, with a radius of 6177.58 feet, an arc lensth of 40.20 
feet, and a central an1le of 0•22'22"; 

Thence, along a non-tangent circular curve to the ri1ht, from a tangent bearing North 63°18'39" East, 
with a radius of 270.00 feet, an arc lensth of 190.54 feet, and a central angle of 40°26'01"; 

Thence, South 76°15'20" East, a distance of 145.59 feet; 

Thence, alon1 a tangent circular curve to the left, with a radius of 430.00 feet, an arc lensth of 165.33 
feet, and a central angle of 2i-01'46"; 

Thence, North a1 •42•ss" East, a distance of 273.53 feet, more or less, to the easterly boundary of said 
northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of Section 24; 

Thence, along the East 1/16 line of said Section 24, North 0-05' 46" East, a distance of 27.23 feet, more 
or less, to the Powder House Road right-of-way described as Area 1 of Exhibit A of this document. 

This area of land contains 0.72 acres (31,364 square feet) more or less. 

The Basis of Bearlnp for this description Is the Boundary line Adjustment Record of Survey for K.R.L. 
Partnership & Cotoko, recorded In the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 536658, on June 29, 
2005. The rl1ht-of-way for Lamoille Highway, State Route 227 was drawn from the record Information 
on the Parcel Map for the City of Elko, Nevada, recorded In the office of the Elko County Recorder as file 
no. 443291, on April 7, 1999, and was rotated to match file no. 536658. 

Description prepared by: 

Robert Thibault, PE, PLS 

Clvll Engineer for the City of Elko 



Nl9'31'209E 
2857.05' 

Line Table 

Line II Length Direction 

L9 52.80' N33"44'42"W 

l10 n.Je' N81°21'48"E 

L11 54.54' N51°14'57"E 

L12 133.18' N35"19'33"E 

l13 73.34' N53"27'08•E 

L14 36.28' S72"48'48"E 

l15 81.02' S21°33'35"E 

l18 74.78' S79"48'38"E 

L17 48.40' S83"54'04 "E 

l18 113.50' N2T41'25•E 

l19 103.58' N53"14'40"W 

L20 113.78' N18'11'42•E 

l23 180.80' S89"07'29"E 

l22 1ss.n· N88"50' 48"E 

l25 92.38' S89"49'58"E 

l28 273.53' N81"42'55•E 

l24 145.59' S78"15'20"E 

l21 27.23' N00-05' 48"E 

Curve Table 

Curve ' Length Radius 

C18 190.54' 270.00' 

C19 185.33' 430.00' 

C20 40.20' &1n.sa· 

-~--

Delta 

Niimi ,l COIi aa:nDN 14 
PIBIIIIN CMa11A1U1 PEI 
IEXIAD IIIIIElmatll 11N 
IIIUNllM\' LINE IIIIJUll'IIDfl', 
lllD:III> Clf' IURWlY, 
AU:ND. ~ 

~ 

\ 
\ 

IDU1H 1/4 CIIR 
11111111111 lM 
1'1111111 IUI --

\ 
\ 

\ 

40"28'0t· 

22"01 148· 

0-22·22· 

1210.37' 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 

AREA 2 
31,384 SF 
0.72 N; 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 

lllllffllrAII' CXIIIIER IEl:IIIIN lM 
l'IIIIIIIU-W 

Sll"48'58"E 
1302.75' 

A 
I 
N 

T 
EXHIBIT D 

EASEMENT DISPLAY MAP 
SLOPE EASEMENTS 



Exhibit E 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR A UTILITY EASEMENT 

An area of land within the northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of Section 24, Township 34 North, 
Range 55 East, M.O.B. & M. which lies north of the public access, utility, and drainage easement 
described as Area 2 of Exhibit A of this document, and is further described as follows; 

Beglnnln1 at a point along the westerly boundary of said northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of 
Section 24, that bears South 0•15• 47" West, a distance of 597 .44 feet, from the north quarter corner of 
said Section 24, Township 34 North, Range 55 East; 

Thence, North 60°01'16" East, a distance of 139.73 feet, more or less, to the southwesterly right-of-way 
of Lamoille Hl1hway, State Route 227; 

Thence, along said southwesterly right-of-way of Lamoille Highway, State Route 227, South 33°44'42" 
East, a distance of 11.24 feet, more or less, to the northerly boundary of the public access, utlllty, and 
drainage easement described as Area 2 of Exhibit A of this document; 

Thence, along said northerly boundary of the public access, utility, and drainage easement described as 
Area 2 of Exhibit A of this document, from a tangent that bears South 56°35'1S" West, on a circular 
curve to the left, with a radius of 1075.00 feet, an arc length of 161.26 feet, and a central angle of 
8°35'42", more or less, to the westerly boundary of said northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of 
Section 24; 

Thence, along said westerly boundary of said northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of Section 24, 
North 0°15'47" East, a distance of 38.07 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning. 

This area of land contains 2,876 square feet more or less. 

The Basis of Bearings for this description Is the Boundary line Adjustment Record of Survey for K.R.L. 
Partnership & Cotoko, recorded in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 536658, on June 29, 
200S. The right-of-way for Lamoille Highway, State Route 227 was drawn from the record Information 
on the Parcel Map for the City of Elko, Nevada, recorded in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file 
no. 443291, on April 7, 1999, and was rotated to match file no. 5366S8. 

Description prepared by: 

Robert Thibault, PE, PLS 

Civil Engineer for the City of Elko 



NDlfflllEl1" CIII 
IICIDI M 
f1IUND IUI 
-QIIP 

Nlt"38'20"E 
2857.05' 

Curve Table 

Curve I Length Radius 

C23 161.28' 1075.00' 

- ,I CIII m:IION 24 PCISITIDlt cw.cuunm PIR 
REIXIAD DIIIEN9GNI ON 

IIIJUNIIM\' LINE -• IIIIIDIID o, IUIWEI', 
FILE Nil..,..._ 

ICIUIII 1/4 CIII 
IECIIIIN M 
f1IUND IUI 
-CW' 

Delta 

a-35•42• 

NIIRIMrMI' COIINIR Bll0lf lM 
FIIUIID IIO -- QIIP 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

----------------

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

EXHIBIT F 
EASEMENT DISPLAY MAP 

UTILITY EASEMENT 

A 
I 
N 

T 
300' 



Agenda Item N.B. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Grant of Easement for 
Utilities and Access on APN 001-630-100, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The purpose of this proposed easement is to allow for the 
installation of an alternate sewer line to serve parcels along the future eastern 
extension of Silver Street to Manzanita Lane. This new sewer line would connect to 
an existing sewer along the railroad tracks at the southeasterly edge of this parcel. 
The existing sewer at the intersection of Silver Street and Walters Court is 
approximately 20' deep, making the extension of sewer from that location more 
difficult for both developers and the City. This easement request is in conjunction 
with a waiver of sewer installation for one or more lots on Silver Street to be 
presented separately. MR 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: N/ A 
Budget amount available: N/A 
Fund name: N/A 

7. · Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Proposed Grant of Easement with Exhibits 

9. Recommended Motion: Approve the Grant of Easement for Utilities and Access as 
presented. 

10. Prepared by: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: David Stanton, City Attorney 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 6/08/2021 

Parrado Partners, LP 
Attn: Andrea Park 
andrea@cappshomes.com 

Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



APN: 001-630-100 

"· After Recordation Return To: 

CityofElko 
City Planner 
17S1 College Avenue 
Elko, Nevada 89801 

GRANT OF EASEMENT 
{Utilities and Access) . 

THIS GRANT OF EASEMENT is entered into this_ day of _____ __. 
2021 by and between P ARRADO PARTNERS, LP, a California limited partnership and 
GLORIA E. CAPPS, as Trustee of the GLORIA E. CAPPS REVOCABLE TRUST OF 
1989, as amended January 25, 2011 ("Grantor") and the CITY OF ELKO, a political 
subdivision of the State of Nevada ("Grantee"). 

WITNESSETH;. 

WHEREAS, Orantor is the owner of certain real property situate in the County of Elko, 
State of Nevada, more particularly described at Exhibit "A" and shown on the map at "Emlbit 
B," Exhibits "A" and "8" being attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof, the 
foregoing property collectively referred to as the ''Easement Property;" and 

WHEREAS, Orantor desires to grant a permanent utility installation, maintenance, and 
access easement to Grantee and its successors and assigns over the Easement Property for the 
purposes of and on the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

NOW THEREFORE, Orantor, for good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged, does here by agree as follows: 

1. Grant of Utillty Easement. Grantor hereby grants to Grantee and its successors, 
assigns, licensees, contractors, invitees and agents, a permanent exclusive 
easement and right-of-way, over, across, upon, under and through that portion of 
the Easement Property described on the "Legal Description for a Utility 
Easement" attached hereto at Emibit "A" and depicted on the map entitled 
"Display Map for a Utility Easement'' attached hereto at Eulblt "B" and made a 
part hereof, the easement being depicted thereon as ''UTILITY EASEMENT 

GOICOECHl!A, DI GRAZIA, COYLI! & STANTON, LTD. 
MlonlepatLaw 

UO ldlhollNlt, P.O. 8-1318 
Elko, Nevada NI01 • (771) 73Ntl91 1 



HEREBY GRANTED," for ingress and egress for the purpose of installation, 
construction, grading, excavation, operation, repair and maintenance of Grantee
owned utilities. 

2. Access; Use. Except as provided in Section 1 above, Grantee shall not traverse, 
trespass on or disturb other portions of the Grantor's Property or other real 
property owned by Grantor without the prior written consent of Grantor. 

THIS GRANT OF EASEMENT and the terms contained herein shall run with the land 
and become and be a burden on the Grantor's Property and shall be binding upon and shall inure 
to the benefit of Orantor and Grantee, and the successors, agents and assigns of Orantor and 
Grantee, and all the rights herein granted may be assigned. 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD all the singular the said premises, granted together with the 
appurtenances, unto said Grantee their successors, agents, contractors, licensees and assigns 
forever. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Orantor and Grantee have caused these presents duly to be 
executed the day and year first above written. 

GRANTOR: GRANTEE: 

PARRADO PARTNERS, LP, a California 
limited partnership 

CITY OF ELKO, a political subdivision of 
the State of Nevada 

By: 

~~(i,~ 
~~~l-U\t 

... By: ____________ _ 

REECE KEENER 
Mayor, City of Elko 

GLORIA CAPPS, TRUSTEE OF THE 
GLORIAE.CAPPSREVOCABLE 
TRUST OF 1989, AS AMENDED 
JANUARY 25TB, 2011 

SEE ATTACHED 
NOTARY CERTIFICATE 

GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA. COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
Allor-,.ltLtlw 

ta0klllllo8lnlll,P.O.IIGK13• 
Elko, Nevacll III01 • (771) .,._1 2 



STATE OF NEV ADA 

COUNTY OF ELKO 

) 
: ss. 
) 

SEE ATTACHED 
Nf'TA~V r-J::RTIFICATE 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this __ day of _____ __, 
2021, by Reece Keener, as City of Biko Mayor, on behalf of said entity, as therein named. 

STATE OF NEV ADA 

COUNTY OF ELKO 

) 
: ss. 
) 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this __ day of _____ _, 
2021,by _____________ _ 

STATE OF NEV ADA 

COUNTY OF ELKO 

) 
: ss. 
) 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this __ day of _____ __, 
2021, by Gloria Capps. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

GOICOl!CHl!A, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
Mlamapatl.aw 

NO Idaho 8lnet, P.O. llc■ 1319 
l!lko, Nevada-01 • (771) 13NDl1 3 



ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

A notary public or other officer completing this 
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 
who signed the document to which this certificate is 
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or 
validity of that document. 

State of cal!fo:'.: / :' 
County of {__gltf fl.A <. o ~ ) 

(ins name and title of the offic r) 

personally appeared :S--G\ k'.'.lf'e5 le.CJ\ > 
who proved to me on the basis ofsatisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within Instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same In 
his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the 
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the Instrument. 

I certify under PENAL TY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 

(Seal) 

········1 RANDY MADERIOS 
Notary Public • California " 

Contra Costa County ! 
Commission 112238197 

My Comm. Expires Apr 15, 2022 



Exhibit A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR A UTILITY EASEMENT 

A twenty-foot wide strip of land within Parcel no. 3, as shown on the Parcel Map for Parrado Partners, 
LP et al, recorded in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 733089, also located within the 
south half of Section 11, Township 34 North, Range 55 East, M.D.B. & M. which is further described as 
follows; 

Beginning at a point along the northwesterly boundary of said Parcel no. 3, which bears South 41 •04•25" 
West, a distance of 1,021.21 feet, from the northerly most corner of said Parcel no. 3; 

Thence, South 48°55'35" East, a distance of 265. 73 feet, more or less, to the southeasterly boundary of 
said Parcel no. 3; 

Thence, along southeasterly boundary of said Parcel no. 3, South 25•29•17• West, a distance of 20.67 
feet; 

Thence, North 4g•55•35• West, a distance of 270.94 feet, more or less, to the northwesterly boundary of 
said Parcel no. 3; 

Thence, along said northwesterly boundary of said Parcel no. 3, North 41°04'25" East, a distance of 
20.00 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning. 

This Utlllty Easement contains ±5,367 square feet. 

The Basis of Bearings for this description Is the Parcel Map for Parrado Partners, LP et al, recorded in the 
office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 733089. 

Description prepared by: 

Robert Thibault, PE, PLS 

Civil Engineer for the City of Elko 



CITY OF ELKO 
1751 COLLEGE AVE 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 
7 5-777-7 

N: 001-8J0-100 
MRADO PARTNERS LP 

PARCEL NO, J 
FILE NO. 7JJ089 

-300' 0 

•55•35 
270.9 

SEE FILE NO. 7J3089 
FOR OTHER EXISTING 

EASEMENlS. 

EXHIBIT B 
DISPLAY MAP FOR A 

UTILITY EASEMENT 

600' 



APN: 001-630-100 

After Recordation Return To: 

City of Elko 
City Planner 
17 51 Co liege A venue 
Elko, Nevada 8980 I 

GRANT OF EASEMENT 
(Utilities and Access) 

THIS GRANT OF EASEMENT is entered into this day of 
2021 by and between PARRADO PARTNERS, LP, a California limited partnership and 
GLORIA E. CAPPS, as Trustee of the GLORIA E. CAPPS REVOCABLE TRUST OF 
1989, as amended January 25, 2011 ("Grantor") and the CITY OF ELKO. a political 
subdivision of the State of Nevada ("Grantee"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Gran tor is the owner of certain real property situate in the County of Elko, 
State of Nevada, more particularly described at Exhibit "A" and shown on the map at "Exhibit 
B," Exhibits "A" and "B" being attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof, the 
foregoing property collectively referred to as the "Easement Property;" and 

WHEREAS, Grantor desires to grant a permanent utility installation, maintenance, and 
access easement to Grantee and its successors and assigns over the Easement Property for the 
purposes of and on the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

NOW THEREFORE, Grantor, for good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged, does here by agree as follows: 

l. Grant of Utility Easement. Grantor hereby grants to Grantee and its successors, 
assigns, licensees, contractors, invitees and agents, a permanent exclusive 
easement and right-of-way, over, across, upon, under and through that portion of 
the Easement Property described on the "Legal Description for a Utility 
Easement" attached hereto at Exhibit "A" and depicted on the map entitled 
"Display Map for a Utility Easement" attached hereto at Exhibit "B" and made a 
part hereof, the easement being depicted thereon as "UTILITY EASEMENT 

GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
Attorneys at Law 

530 Idaho StrNt, P.O. Box 1358 
Elko, Nevada 89801 • (775) 738·8091 



------------ - ~----

HEREBY GRANTED," for ingress and egress for the purpose of installation, 
construction, grading, excavation, operation, repair and maintenance of Grantee
owned utilities. 

2. Access; Use. Except as provided in Section l above, Grantee shall not traverse, 
trespass on or disturb other portions of the Grantor's Property or other real 
property owned by Grantor without the prior written consent of Grantor. 

THIS GRANT OF EASEMENT and the terms contained herein shall run with the land 
and become and be a burden on the Grantor's Property and shall be binding upon and shall inure 
to the benefit of Gran tor and Grantee, and the successors, agents and assigns of Gran tor and 
Grantee, and all the rights herein granted may be assigned. 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD all the singular the said premises, granted together with the 
appurtenances, unto said Grantee their successors, agents, contractors, licensees and assigns 
forever. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee have caused these presents duly to be 
executed the day and year first above written. 

GRANTOR: 

PARRADO PARTNERS, LP, a California 
limited partnership 

GRANTEE: 

CITY OF ELKO, a political subdivision of 
the State of Nevada 

By:~ e,~ ... --~ -~ i:J1'r .- By: 

Its: 

GLORIA CAPPS, TRUSTEE OF THE 
GLORIA E. CAPPS REVOCABLE 
TRUST OF 1989, AS AMENDED 
JANUARY 25m, 2011 

REECE KEENER 
Mayor, City of Elko 

GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
Attorneys al Law 

530 Idaho Street, P.O. Box 1358 
Elko, Nevada 89801 - (775) 738-8091 2 



STATE OF NEVADA 

COUNTY OF ELKO 
: ss. 
) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this day of 
2021, by Reece Keener, as City of Elko Mayor, on behalf of said entity, as therein named. 

ST A TE OF NEV ADA 

COUNTY OF ELKO 

) 
: ss. 
) 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this 
2021, by 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

: ss. 
COUNTY OF~ Sa,, hbf--t.o ) 

""'"'-

day of 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this o:i.. day of ~ne. 
2021, by Gloria Capps. 

MARIBEL SANCHEZ AGUILERA, 
COMM. # 2315478 ~ 

NOTARY PUBUC • CALIFORNIA (j) 
SAN MATEO COUNTY 0 

COMM. EXPIRES DEC.13 2023..l 

GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
Attorneys al Law 

530 Idaho Street, P.O. Box 1358 
Elko, Nevada 89801 - (775) 738-8091 3 



Exhibit A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR A UTILITY EASEMENT 

A twenty-foot wide strip of land within Parcel no. 3, as shown on the Parcel Map for Parrado Partners, 
LP et al, recorded in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 733089, also located within the 
south half of Section 11, Township 34 North, Range 55 East, M.O.B. & M. which is further described as 
follows; 

Beginning at a point along the northwesterly boundary of said Parcel no. 3, which bears South 4l904'2S" 
West, a distance of 1,021.21 feet, from the northerly most corner of said Parcel no. 3; 

Thence, South 48°55'35" East, a distance of 265. 73 feet, more or less, to the southeasterly boundary of 
said Parcel no. 3; 

Thence, along southeasterly boundary of said Parcel no. 3, South 26°29'17" West, a distance of 20.67 
feet; 

Thence, North 48"55'35" West, a distance of 270.94 feet, more or less, to the northwesterly boundary of 
said Parcel no. 3; 

Thence, along said northwesterly boundary of said Parcel no. 3, North 41 °04'25" East, a distance of 
20.00 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning. 

This Utility Easement contains ±5,367 square feet. 

The Basis of Bearings for this description is the Parcel Map for Parrado Partners, LP et al, recorded in the 
office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 733089. 

Description prepared by: 

Robert Thibault, PE, PLS 

Civil Engineer for the City of Elko 



CITY OF ELKO 
1751 COLLEGE AVE 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 
775-777-7210 

APN: 001-630-100 
PARRADO PARTNERS LP 

PARCEL NO. 3 
FILE NO. 733089 

S48"55'35"E 
---265.73' 

S26"29'17"W 
20.67' 

SEE FILE NO. 733089 
FOR OTHER EXISTING 

EASEMENTS. 

EXHIBIT B 

DISPLAY MAP FOR A 

UTILITY EASEMENT 



Agenda Item IV.C. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of a request to waive the 
requirement to extend sanitary sewer across the frontage of 1515 Silver Street (APN 
001-375-001), and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS · 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The up gradient properties will be serviced by another 
sewer main. The extension of this sewer main is unlikely to serve any new customers 
in the future based on currently available planning and development projections. 
Future sewer customer's will service through the Capps sewer easement crossing 
their Silver Street Property back to the main transmission line to the WRF. DJ 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: NI A 
Budget amount available: NIA 
Fund name: NIA 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Request letter from Shanks Engineering 

9. Recommended Motion: Move to approve waiver request 

10. Prepared by: Dale Johnson, Utilities Director 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 611512021 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



Shanks Enterprises Inc. 
May 14, 2021 

Dale Johnson 

City of Elko 
Utilities Director 

RE: Igloo sewer extension along Silver St. 

Dear Mr. Johnson, 

On behalf of the Igloo Inc., and as the project engineer and member of the board of directors I am 

requesting a waiver to not install the sewer along the Igloo's frontage. Extending the sewer main would 
not provide service to any up-gradient properties. All up-gradient properties from the Igloo would be 

serviced through the Easement provided by the Capp's Silver Street Property. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Shanks Enterprises Inc. 
The Igloo Inc. 

Michael E. Shanks, P.E. 

Cc: Matt Burwell, President of the Igloo Inc 
Gary Klug, Treasurer 

982 S. Wolf Cn~ek Drive - Spring Nevada 89801 T75.9.'i4.93'i6 ·· shankseng@gmail.com 



Action Item IV.D. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review and possible approval of the City of Elko Investment Policy, and 
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: Staff will present the City of Elko Investment Policy for 
City Council consideration JB 

6. Budget Impact Statement: 

Appropriation Required: NIA 
Budget amount available: N/A 
Fund name: N/A 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: N/A 

9. Recommended Motion: Approve the City of Elko Investment Policy 

· 10. Prepared by: Jan Baum, Financial Services Director 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 6/15/202 l Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



CITY OF ELKO 
INVESTMENT AND PORTFOLIO POLICY 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................................. 3 

II. SCOPE ................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Ill. OBJECTIVES .......................................................................................................................................................... 3 

IV. AUTHORIZATION ................................................................................................................................................ 3 

V. STANDARDS OF CARE ......................................................................................................................................... 4 

VI. AUTHORIZED AND PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS ............................................................................................. 5 

VII. INVESTMENT PARAMETERS ............................................................................................................................. 8 

VIII. FUNDS INVESTED WITH THE STATE TREASURER ................................................................................ 9 

IX. SAFEKEEPING/CUSTODY AND DELIVERY .............................................................................................. 9 

X. AUTHORIZED BROKER/DEALERS, INVESTMENT ADVISORS, AND FINANCIAL BANK INSTITUTIONS ....... 9 

XI. REPORTING ....................................................................................................................................................... 10 

XII. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION ............................................................................................................... 10 

XIII. INTERNAL CONTROLS ............................................................................................................................. 11 

XIV. INVESTMENT OF BOND PROCEEDS ............................................................................................................... 11 

XV. ADOPTION ........................................................................................................................................................ 11 

21Page 



I. INTRODUCTION 

It is the policy of the City of Elko ("City") to invest cash resources to obtain market rates of 
return on investments, while meeting the daily cash flow demands, in a safe and prudent 
manner. The purpose of this Investment Policy is to establish the investment objectives, 
delegation of authority, standards of prudence, eligible investments and transactions, internal 
controls, reporting requirements and custodial procedures necessary for the prudent 
management and investment of the City's funds. 

This policy will ensure the prudent investment of the City financial resources, adherence to 
the NRS 355.170 and 355.171 applicable to the investment of public funds, maintenance of 
daily liquidity requirements, anticipation of future cash requirements and realization of 
competitive rate of return on investment. 

II. SCOPE 

This Policy applies to the investment activities of the City's "pooled" financial assets. Except 
for funds in certain restricted and special funds, the City commingles its funds to maximize 
investment earnings and to decrease inefficiencies regarding investment pricing, safekeeping 
and administration. Investment income will be allocated to the various funds based on the 
cash balance of the fund at the end of the month corresponding with the month the interest is 
earned. Pooled funds include, but are not limited to; General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, 
Capital Project Funds, Enterprise Funds, Debt Service Funds, Internal Service Funds, Trust and 
Agency Funds. Non-pooled investments, if any, consist of special assessment bond proceeds. 

Ill. OBJECTIVES 

The primary objectives of the City's investment activities, in priority order are as follows: 

a. Safety - Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. 
Investments shall be undertaken to ensure the preservation of principal in each 
account. 

b. Liquidity- The City's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the 
City to meet all operating requirements which might be reasonably anticipated. 

c. Return on Investment -The City's portfolio shall be invested with the objective of 
obtaining an appropriate market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic 
cycles, taking into account the investment risk constraints of safety and cash flow needs 
of the City. 

IV. AUTHORIZATION 

Funds of the City will be invested in compliance with the provisions of Nevada Revised 
Statutes (NRS) Chapter 355.167 through 355.200, and other applicable statutes including 
Chapter 350.659. Investment will be in accordance with these policies and written 
administrative procedures. Investment of any tax-exempt borrowing proceeds and of any 

31Page 



Debt Service Fund will comply with the 1986 Tax Reform Bill provisions to the Internal 
Revenue Code Sections 148 which deals with arbitrage. 

~ STANDARDS OF CARE 

A. Prudence: The standard of prudence to be used by the delegated staff in the course of their 
investment activities shall be the "prudent person" standard and shall be applied in the 
context of managing an overall portfolio. Delegated staff acting in accordance with written 
procedures, this Policy, and exercising due diligence shall not be held personally liable for an 
individual security's credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from 
expectations are reported and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments 
in a timely manner. 

As used in this Policy, the "prudent person" standard means the delegated staff "shall 
exercise the judgement and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which a person of 
prudence, discretion and intelligence exercises in the management of his or her own affairs, 
not in regard to speculation, but in regard to investment, considering the probable income 
as well as the probably safety of his or her capital." 

B. Delegation of Authority: The investment function of the City of Elko is performed by the 
Financial Services Director (or "Investment Officer'') under the Supervision of the City 
Manager and guidance of this policy and acknowledgement of the Elko City Council. 
Responsibility for the operation of the investment program is hereby delegated to the 
Investment Officer, who shall act in accordance with established written procedures and 
internal controls for the operation of the investment program consistent with this 
investment policy. The Financial Services Director, as the Investment Officer, may further 
delegate the authority to invest City funds to additional City Finance personnel. At a 
minimum, procedures should include references to the following: safekeeping, delivery vs. 
payment, investment accounting, repurchase agreements, wire transfer agreements, and 
collateral/depository agreements. The Investment Officer shall be responsible for all 
transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of 
subordinate officials. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as 
provided under the terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Investment 
Officer. All participants in the investment process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians 
of the public trust. 

C. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest: Officers and employees involved in the investment process 
shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the proper execution 
and management of the investment program, or that could impair their ability to make 
impartial decisions. Employees and officers shall refrain from undertaking personal 
investment transactions with the same individual with whom business is conducted on 
behalf of the City. 

41Page 



VI. AUTHORIZED AND PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS 

All temporarily idle or surplus funds of the City shall be invested in accordance with the 
principles of sound treasury management and in accordance with the provisions of 
Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) Chapters 355.170 -171 and this Investment Policy. The 
investments authorized in the City's Investment Policy are more restrictive than the universe of 
investment options allowable in NRS, keeping in line with the City's program objectives and risk 
parameters. 

A. The following are authorized investments 

U.S. Treasury Bonds, Debentures, Bills and Notes (NRS 355.170 l(a) & l(e)) 

US Agency Obligations of the following agencies/instrumentalities of the United States of 

America including both debentures and mortgage-backed securities (NRS 355.170 l(f)) 

1. Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 

2. Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) 

3. Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 

4. Federal Farm Credit Banks Funding Corporation (FFCB) 

5. Other departments and agencies of the United States including Government National 

Mortgage Association (GNMA) and other agency or instrumentality of the United States 

of America or corporate sponsored by the government. 

6. Purchases of US Agency Obligations in aggregate can represent 100% of the total 

portfolio. 

Supranational Notes, bond or other obligations issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the 

International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the International Finance Corporation, 

or the Inter-American Development Bank that: (NRS 355.170 l(b) 

1. Is denominated in United States Dollars 

2. Is a senior unsecured unsubordinated obligation. 

3. At the time of purchase have a remaining term to maturity of no more than 5 years. 

4. Are rated by at least one nationally recognized rating service as "AA-" or its equivalent, 

or better. 

5. Purchases of Supranational may not exceed 15% on day of purchase. 

Corporate Securities: Notes, bonds, and other unconditional obligations for the payment of 

money issued by corporations organized and operating in the United States (Corporates) (NRS 

355.1711 (a)). 

1. Are purchased from a registered broker-dealer. 

2. At the time of purchase have a remaining term to maturity of no more than 5 years. 

3. Are rated by at least one nationally recognized rating service as "A-" or its equivalent, or 

better. 

SI Page 



4. Not more than 25% of such investments may be in notes, bonds, and other 

unconditional obligations issued by any one corporation (no more than 5% per 

counterparty). 

Foreign Corporate or Government Notes, bond or other obligations publicly issued in the 

United States by a foreign financial institution corporation or government: (NRS 355.170 l(c) 

1. Is denominated in United States Dollars. 

2. Is a senior unsecured unsubordinated obligation. 

3. Is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission in accordance with the 

provisions of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 

4. Is publicly traded. 

5. Is purchased from a registered broker-dealers. 

6. At the time of purchase has a remaining term of 5 years or less; and 

7. Is rated by a nationally recognized rating services as AA- or its equivalent, or better. 

8. Purchases of Foreign Corporates or Governments in aggregate may not exceed 10 

percent as determined on the date of purchase. 

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations (CMOs) (NRS 355.171 l(b)) 

1. Must be rated "AAA" or equivalent by an NRSRO. 

2. CMOs may not exceed 25 percent as determined on the date of purchase. 

Asset-Backed Securities (ABSs) (NRS 355.171 l(c)) 

1. Must be rated "AAA" or equivalent by an NRSRO. 

2. ABS may not exceed 25 percent as determined on the date of purchase. 

Municipal Obligations (NRS 355.170 l(j) & 1(1)) 

1. Obligations of local governments within the State of Nevada pursuant to NRS 350.087 to 

350.095, inclusive. Subject to limitations contained in NRS 355.177. 

2. Obligations of all other state and local governments of states other than Nevada if the 

interest on the obligation is federally tax exempt and rated "A- "or higher by one or 

more Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (NRSRO). 

3. Municipals may not exceed 20 percent as determined on the date of purchase. 

Commercial Paper (NRS 355.170 1 (m)) 

1. Issued by a corporation organized and operating in the U.S. or by a depository 

institution licensed by the U.S. or any state operating in the U.S. 

2. Purchased from a registered broker/dealer. 

3. At the time of purchase has a remaining term to maturity of no more than 270 days. 
4. Is rated "A-1", "P-1", "F-l"or equivalent or better by at least one NRSRO. 

5. Commercial paper may not exceed 25 percent as determined on the date pf purchase. 

6IPage 



Negotiable Certificates of Deposit (NCD's) (NRS 355.170 l(g)) 

1. Negotiable certificates of deposit issued by commercial banks, credit unions, or savings 

and loan associations. 

2. Is rated by a nationally recognized rating services as A- or its equivalent, or better. 

3. Purchase of negotiable Certificates of Deposit may not exceed 20 percent as determined 

on the date of purchase. 

Non-Negotiable Certificate of Deposit (CD's) (NRS 355.170 l(i) 

1. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit issued by insured commercial banks, insured credit 

unions, or insured savings and loan associations. Certificates above the limits of FDIC 

insurance must be collateralized pursuant to NRS 356.133. 

2. Certificates of deposit may not exceed 20 percent as determined on the date of 

purchase. 

Demand Deposits, Time and Savings Deposits (NRS 356.300) 

1. Issued by insured commercial banks, insured credit union or insured saving and loan 

associations, either within the limits of insurance provided by an instrumentality of the 

United States and/or collateralized as required under the Nevada pooled collateral 

program (NRS 356). 

2. Holdings of bank deposits may not exceed 50 percent ofthe total portfolio. 

Money Market Mutual Funds (NRS 350.658 1 (b)) 

1. Use of money market mutual funds are limited to funds which are registered with the 

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), are rated "AAA" by a NRSRO and invest only 

in securities issued by the federal government or agencies of the federal government or 

repurchases agreements fully collateralized by such securities in accordance with NRS 

350.658 1 (b)). 

2. Holdings of money market mutual funds may not exceed 50 percent of the total 

portfolio. 

Bankers' Acceptances (NRS 355.170 l(k)) 

1. Bankers' acceptances ofthe kind and maturities made eligible by law for rediscount with 

Federal Reserve Banks, and generally accepted by banks or trust companies of the 

Federal Reserve system. Eligible bankers' acceptances may not exceed 180 days' 

maturity. 

2. Purchases may not exceed 20 percent of the money available by a local government for 

investment as determined at time of purchase. 

State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool ("LGIP") (NRS 355.167) as established by 

the Nevada State Treasurer for the benefit of local agencies. 

71Page 



B. Prohibited Investments: NRS 355.170 does not specifically address the use of derivatives. 
For the purpose of this regulation and the City's investment program, a derivative is a 
financial instrument created from or whose value depends on the value of one or more 
underlying assets or basket of assets and is prohibited. This definition and prohibition do not 
include some investments, such as callable bonds with embedded options and floating rate 
notes, that are allowable under NRS 355.170. 

C. Downgrade Action: If the credit rating of the security is subsequently downgraded 
below the minimum rating level, the Financial Services Director or designated staff 

will evaluate the downgrade on a case-by-case basis in order to determine if the 
security should be held or sold. The Financial Services Director or designated staff 
will apply the general objectives of safety, liquidity, yield and legality to make the 
decision. 

VII. INVESTMENT PARAMETERS 

A. Diversification: 
Assets held in the investment portfolio shall be diversified to eliminate the risk of 
loss resulting from over-concentration of assets in a specific class of securities. With 
the exception of United States Treasury, government agency securities, money 
market funds, and FDIC insured certificate of deposits, no more than 25% of the total 
market value of the portfolio will be invested in a single security type, and no more 
than 5% shall be invested in any one issuer. The constraints will provide for a disciplined 
guide in making investment decisions. 

Maximum% Maximum% Maturity at Ratings 
Issuer Holdings Par Per Issuer Par Time of Equivalent 

Value Value Purchase S&P, Moody's 
or Fitch 

US Treasury Obligations 100% N/A 10 years N/A 
US Agency Obligations 100% 35% 10 years N/A 
Supranationals (IBRD, IFC, IADB Only) 15% 5% 5 years M-/Aa3/M-
US Corporate Securities 25% 5% 5 years A-/A3/A-
Foreign Corporate of Government Notes 10% 5% 5 years M-/Aa3/M-
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 25% 5% 5 years** MA/Aaa/AM 
Asset-Backed Securities 25% 5% 5 years** MA/Aaa/AM 
Municipal Bonds 20% 5% 5 years M-/Aa3/M-
Commercial Paper 25% 5% 270 days Al/Pl/Fl 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 20% 5% 5 years A-/A3/A-
Non-Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 20% 10% 5 years • 
Money Market Funds 50% 25% N/A MAm 
Demand Deposits 50% None N/A • 
Bankers' Acceptance Notes 20% 5% 180 days N/A 
State LGIP 50% None N/A N/A 

*Nevada Pooled Collateral Program 
•• Weighted Average Life is used for mortgage securities 

B. Maturity Constraints: 



1. Liquidity: To the extent possible, investment maturities must match the 
anticipated cash flow requirements. Portfolio management procedures will 
provide for the assessment of net cash flow positions for at least a month period. 

2. Market Risk: Market risk relates to the continuous price fluctuations of 
marketable securities that may result in a loss to the City if cash flow 
requirements force a premature sale. Portfolio maturities must be structured to 
avoid the forced sale of securities in any but the most severe circumstances. To 
this end, portfolio management procedures will provide for the projection of a 
"Minimum Liquidity Requirement" for the City's operating fund. 

3. Minimum Liquidity Requirement: This is defined as the total cash flow needed to 
pay City obligations for a period of four weeks. All securities to be included in the 
"Minimum Liquidity Requirement" must mature within 30 days. 

4. Intermediate Market Investment: That portion of City funds remaining after 
deletion of the "Minimum Liquidity Requirement" may be invested in the 
intermediate market, defined herein as instruments maturing between zero and 
ten years. 

5. Long-Term Investments: No US bonds, debentures, bills, notes, agency 
obligations or other securities may have a maturity date of more than 10 years 
from the date of purchase. ABS and CMO securities are an exemption to this rule 
and the expected maturity (weighted average life) will be used. 

VIII. FUNDS INVESTED WITH THE STATE TREASURER 

Funds invested with the State Treasurer in the LGIP or NVEST portfolios may be invested 
as permitted by NRS 355.167. 

The City may utilize the managers under the State of Nevada's Long-Term Investment Program 
(NVEST). The City requires the managers to invest within the constraints of this investment 
policy. 

It is understood that monies invested in the NVEST program are not needed to meet a 
Participant's liquidity or cash flow needs. The treasurer or other official responsible for the 
administration and management of any city funds shall determine what amount of funds are 
available for investment in NVEST based on historical and projected cash flow requirements and 
other factors. Nevertheless, only relatively liquid marketable securities will be purchased by 
the Investment Manager so that in unforeseen circumstances or in the case of the termination of 
the NVEST account or Investment Manager by the Participant, securities may be efficiently sold 
in the open market. 

IX. SAFEKEEPING/CUSTODY AND DELIVERY 

Securities purchased by the City of Elko, as well as collateral for time certificates of 
deposit over the current FDIC insurance limit, shall be delivered against payment and 
held in a custodial safekeeping account with the trust department of a bank acting as a 
third-party custodian. (NRS 355.172) 

91Page 



X. AUTHORIZED BROKER/DEALERS, INVESTMENT ADVISORS, AND FINANCIAL BANK 
INSITITUTIONS 

A. Broker/Dealers: 
The City Financial Services Director will maintain a list of approved broker/dealers 
and financial institutions which are authorized to provide investment services to the 
City. Authorized broker/dealers will be limited to "primary" dealers or other dealers 
that qualify under SEC Rule 15C3-l, the Uniform Net Capital Rule. 

The City Financial Services Director or designee may utilize an investment advisor's 
approved broker/dealer list in lieu of the City's own approved list. The advisor must submit 
the approved list to the City annually and provide updates throughout the year as they 
occur. The advisor must maintain documentation of appropriate license and professional 
credentials of broker/dealers on the list. 

The annual investment advisor broker/dealer review procedures include: 
a. FINRA Certification check: 

i. Firm Profile 
ii. Firm History 
iii. Firm Operations 
iv. Disclosures of known arbitration awards, disciplinary and regulatory events 
v. State Registration Verification 

b. Financial review of acceptable FINRA capital or letter of credit for clearing 
settlements. 

B. Investment Advisors: 
The City Financial Services Director may contract with investment managers. Any 
such investment manager shall hold the 'Registered Investment Advisor' designation 
with the SEC. Such mangers shall sign contracts affirming their acceptance of 
fiduciary responsibility for funds under their management and follow the precepts of 
the City's investment policy and any other written restrictions placed upon them. 
Such money managers, once approved by the State Board of Finance, may 
additionally invest in securities as defined in NRS 355.171. 

C. Financial Bank Institutions: 
The City will hold deposits in qualified public depositories by insured commercial banks, 
insured credit union or insured saving and loan associations, either within the limits of 
insurance provided by an instrumentality of the United States and/or collateralized as 
required under the Nevada pooled collateral program (NRS 356). 

XI. REPORTING 

The City Financial Services Director will make available at any time upon request of the 
Finance Department or City Manager sufficient information to permit an evaluation of 
the performance of the investment program. The purpose for these reports will be 
formulate suggestions for improved future performance, and to verify that authorized 
city finance personnel have acted in accordance with the investment policy. 

10 I Page 



XII. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

The City's portfolio will be invested to obtain a rate of return consistent with its cash 
flow requirements and risk constraints, and the dependence upon budgetary and 
economic factors. The City's investment strategy is generally that of a "buy-and-hold" 
investor, but the City also has the ability to take advantage of market opportunities as 
they occur by analyzing projected cash flow to assess the availability of uncommitted 
money. Given this strategy, the benchmark used by the City to determine whether 
competitive market yields are being achieved will be comparing the portfolio's yield to a 
custom benchmark that contains the "prominent and persistent" characteristic of the 
portfolio. This benchmark will be adjusted periodically when material, long-term changes 
of the portfolio's sector allocations and weighted average maturity occur. 

XIII. INTERNAL CONTROLS 

The investment portfolio will be audited annually by the City's independent auditor. 

XIV. INVESTMENT OF BOND PROCEEDS 

If bond covenants are more restrictive than this policy, the bond proceeds will be 
invested in full compliance with those restrictions. 

XV. ADOPTION 

Adopted by the Elko City Council 

Mayor Reece Keener 

Date: 

lllPage 



Agenda Item IV .E. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review and possible selection of a planning firm to provide planning services 
for a focused planning study at the Elko Regional Airport, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUISNESS 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The airport has been conducting a search for a planning 
firm to provide services at the airport for an upcoming AIP funded project for a 
Focused Planning Study. The selection committee short listed four (4) firms to 
continue with the interview portion of the process. The interviews were held May 
26/27, 2021. The Airport selection committee interviewed four (4) 
engineering/planning firms: Coffman Associates, Jviation Inc, Kimley-Horn and 
Farr West Engineering. The selection committee recommends that the Council 
select Coffman Associates for the focused planning study service contract. Upon 
selection, Staff will negotiate a Professional Services Agreement with the successful 
firm. This new agreement will be brought back to Council for review and approval. 
JF 

6. Budget Information: N/A 

Appropriation Required: 
Budget amount available: 
Fund name: 

7. Business Impact Statement: NIA 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Selection Scores of Interviewed Firms and the 
Initial Submittal Review Ranking Sheet. 

9. Recommended Motion: Move to select Coffman Associates for the focused planning 
study at the Elko Regional Airport, and direct Staff to negotiate a Professional 
Services Agreement with them. 

10. Prepared by: Jim Foster, Airport Manager 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: N/ A 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: Matt Quick 

Created on 6/17 /2 l 

4835 E. Cactus Rd., Suite 235 
Scottsdale, AZ 85254 
mguick@coffmanassociates.com 



... ... 
0 ... ... 
c 
◄ z 
0 

~ ... 
0 
~ ... ... 
:c ... ... 
S! 
► ... 
::, 
::;; 
t.:I 
!: 
z 
z 
~ ... ... ... .,. 
::, ... 
S! 

-" M. ~-
I M. ~• ·" s, --;: .. 

-. .. ·- .. 

I 
II 1: :: ~ 

I 
i --:: .. .. --
I --. -:: .. 
! 
;, ,1 -~ 

,I s J ,,Bf 
I .. I •U 
! h !i:i 

- " M. 

I 
:l! == 

I 

-- --
! 
:: ·-
I 
:: :: 

! 
== -. 

I 

i -
I I JC" I I •i· .E .. ! 



Agenda Item IV .F. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Consideration and possible authorization for Staff to advertise for four ( 4) 
vacant positions on the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: On June 30, 2021 the terms of four (4) board members will 
· expire. All members are eligible for reappointment following an advertisement 
related to the term's expiration. JW 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: 
Budget amount available: 
Fund name: 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: 

9. Recommended Motion: Authorize Staff to advertise for four ( 4) vacant positions on 
the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board. 

10. Prepared by: James Wiley, Director of Parks and Recreation 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 6/17/21 



Agenda Item V .A. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: First reading of proposed Ordinance 863 amending Elko City Code Title 9, 
Chapter 6 (Illegal Discharge and Connection to Stormwater), Chapter 7 
(Construction Site Runoff Control), and Chapter 8 (Postconstruction Runoff 
Control and Water Quality Management), and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: ORDINANCE 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The City of Elko Stormwater Program was audited by the 
Nevada Department of Environmental Protection and the Environmental Protection 
Agency in August 2020. One of the findings of that audit was that current 
enforcement regulations were lacking in both clarity and implementation. As a 
result, the audit report required the City to update its stormwater codes with 
enhanced enforcement procedures. Other modifications have been proposed to 
clarify existing policies and procedures. MR 

The City Council initiated the proposed changes on June 8; 2021. MR 

6. · Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: N/ A 
Budget amount available: N/A 
Fund name: N/A 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Copy of Ordinance No. 863 

9. Recommended Motion: Conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 863 and direct City 
Staff to set the matter for second reading, public hearing, and possible adoption. 

10. Prepared by: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: Dave Stanton, City Attorney 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: 

Created 06/10/2021 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



ORDINANCE 863 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ELKO CITY CODE TITLE 9, CHAPTER 6 (ILLEGAL DISCHARGE AND 

CONNECTION TO STORMWATER), CHAPTER 7 (CONSTRUCTION SITE RUNOFF CONTROL), AND 

CHAPTER 8 (POSTCONSTRUCTION RUNOFF CONTROL AND WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT) TO 

MODIFY REGULATIONS REGARDING ENFORCEMENT OF STORMWATER AND OTHER RELEVANT 

MODIFICATIONS 

WHEREAS, the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection and the Environmenta l Protection 
Agency conducted an audit of the City's stormwater program in August 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the aud it report identified several deficiencies with the City enforcement program of 
stormwater regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council initiated Ordinance 863 on June 8, 2021 to modify the stormwater 
regulations to conform with current state and federal permit requirements . 

NOW THEREFORE, IT BE ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA. 

Section 1: Title 9, Chapter 6 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

9-6-1: PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this e~hapter is to provide for the health, safety and general welfa re of the citizens 
residents of the City through regulation of non::stormwater discharges to the municipal separate storm 
sewer system (MS4), waters of the United States, and er sterrnwater watercourses . This e~hapter 
establishes methods for controlling the introduction of pollutants into the rn1:1nicipal separate sey.•er 

s•1stern (MS'1) in erder to comply with the R~ ational p.e_ollutant dQischarge e£1imination s~ystem 
(NPDES) permit process and to : 

A. Regulate the contribution of pollutants to the rn1:1nicipal separate sterrn1.•,ater sewer s•1stern 
fMS4) b•1 sterrnwater resulting from discharges b•1 an•11:1ser, 

B. Prohibit illegal connections and discharges to the rn1:1nicipal separate sterrn sewer s•1stern MS4 

and 

C. Establisl:i legal a1:1tl:ierit•1 te carr•1 e1:1t all Provide for the inspection, surveillance and monitoring 
procedures necessary to ensure compliance with this e~hapter. (Ord. 670, ~ H 2007) 

9-6-2: DEFINITIONS: 

!=er tl:ie p1:1rpese ef tl:iis cl:iapter, tl:ie fellewing sl:iall rnean As used in this Chapter, unless the context 
otherwise requires, the words and terms defined in this section shall have the following meanings: 

AUTMORllH) ENl=ORCEMENT AGENCYi Tl:ie directer ef tl:ie rn1:1nicipal agency designated te enferce 
tl:iis cl:iapter er tl:ie directer ernple•1ees er tl:ie directer designees. 



BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPs): Schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, general 
good housekeeping practices, pollution prevention and educational practices, maintenance 
procedures, and other management practices to prevent or reduce the discharge of pollutants 
directly or indirectly to the MS4, a watercourse, or waters of the United States, to include 
stormwater, receiving water, or stormwater conveyance systems.,_; and also BMPs include 
treatment practices, operating procedures, and practices to control site runoff, spillage or leaks, 
sludge or water disposal, or drainage from raw materials storage . BMPs may be structural or 
nonstructural. 

CITY: The City of Elko, Nevada to include its departments, agencies, officials, and employees. 

CLEAN WATER ACT: The federal water pelh,,tien control act (33 USC 1251 et seq.), and an't' 
subsequent amendments thereto.The Clean Water Act (formerly referred to as the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act or Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972) Pub. L. 92-500, 
as amended Pub. L. 95-576, Pub. L. 96-483, and Pub. L. 97-117, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. 

COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY: A task, conduct, enterprise, or undertaking of any kind with the goal of 
earing an economic profit. 

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY: .'\ctiYities An activity subject to an NPDES construction stormwater 
general permits issued by the s~tate of Nevada. The term "construction activity" includes NPDES 
construction activities on a land disturbance of one filacre or more . The term "construction 
activity" also includes a land disturbance of less than one (1) acre if part of a larger common plan 
of development or sale that disturbs, or is proposed to disturb, one (1) acre or more. Construction 
actiYities en from Si)( thousand (i,000} square feet to one acre net subject to NPDES construction 
permits are also included in this definition. Such activities include, but are not limited to, clearing 
and grubbing, grading, excavating and demolition. 

CONTAMINANT: Any physical, chemical, biological, or radiological substance or matter which is 
added to water. 

DIFFUSE SOURCE: Any source of water pollution which is diffused to the extent that it is not 
readily discernible and cannot be confined to a discrete conveyance. This term is intended to be 
equivalent to the term "nonpoint source" as used in federal statutes and regulations. 

DISCHARGE: Any addition of a contaminant, pollutant, or pollutants to the MS4, waters of the 
United States, or a watercourse, including a "discharge of pollutant" as defined in 40 CFR § 122.2. 

DISCHARGER: A person who permits or causes a discharge into the MS4 or a watercourse. 

ENFORCEMENT AGENCY: The City department or agency designated to enforce this Chapter, to 
include its director, employees, and designees. 

ENFORCEMENT OFFICIAL: The City Environmental Coordinator, City Code Enforcement Officer, or 
any other City employee designated to serve as an Enforcement Official by the City Council to 
enforce the provisions of this Chapter. 



FACILITY, OPERATION OR ACTIVITY: Any source of a discharge, including land or appurtenances 
thereto, that is subject to regulation under an NPDES permit. The foregoing includes an action 
performed by or associated with a person or organization, such as a business organization, in the 
production of goods or delivery of services. 

GENERATOR: Any person, by site location, whose act, or process produces "solid waste" as 

defined in NRS 444.490, "hazardous material" as defined in NRS 459.7024, extremely hazardous 

material" as defined in NRS 459.7022, or "hazardous waste" as defined in NRS 459.432. 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS: Any material, substance or waste that is or has the characteristic of being 

hazardous, toxic, ignitable, reactive or corrosive, including, without limitations, petroleum, PCBs, 
asbestos, materials known to cause cancer or reproductive problems and those materials, 
substances and/or waste, including infectious waste, medical waste, and potentially infectious 
waste, which are or later become regulated by any local governmental authority, the state of 
Nevada, or the United States government, including, but not limited to, substances defined as 

"hazardous substances", "hazardous materials", "toxic substances", or "hazardous wastes" in the 

comprehensive environmental response, compensation and liability act of 1980, as amended, 43 
USC section 9601 et seq .; the hazardous materials transportation act, 40 USC section 1801 et seq .; 
the resource conservation and recovery act, 43 USC section 6901 et seq.; all corresponding and 
related state of Nevada and local statutes, ordinances and regulations, including, without limitation, 

any dealing with underground storage tanks; and in any other environmental law, regulation or 
ordinance now existing or hereinafter enacted. 

ILLEGAL CONNECTIONS: AR illegal €8RRectieR defiRed as e_;ither of the following: 

A. Any drain or conveyance, whether on the surface or subsurface, which allows an illegal 

discharge to enter the storm water conveyance system including, but not limited to, any 
conveyances which allow non:stormwater discharge including, but not limited to, sewage and 
process wastewater to enter the storm water conveyance system and any connections to the 
storm water conveyance system from indoor drains and sinks, regardless of whether said drain 
or connection had been previously allowed, permitted, or approved by an authorized 

enforcement agency; or 

B. Any drain or conveyance connected from a commercial or industrial land use to the storm water 
conveyance system which has not been documented in plans, maps, or equivalent records and 
approved by an authorized enforcement agency. 

ILLEGAL DISCHARGE: Any direct or indirect non: stormwater discharge to the sterm \ti'ater 

ceRve·1aRce s·1stem er sterm water MS4, a watercourse, or waters of the United States, except as 
exempted in section 9-6-6(A) of this chapter. 

INDUSTRIAL ACTIVITY: Actiti'ities An activity subject to ~ NP DES industrial permits as defiRed set 
forth in 40 CFR section 122.26(b)(14). 

MUNICIPAL SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM (MS4): A collection of structures (retention basins, 

ditches, underground pipes, etc.) owned and operated by the City and not connected to the 
sanitary sewer system that is designed to gather stormwater and discharge it, without treatment, 
into local streams and rivers. 



MUNICIPAL SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM (MS4) PERMIT: A permit allowing the City to 

legally discharge stormwater into local streams and rivers through the municipal separate storm 
sewer system. 

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) STORM WATER DISCHARGE 
PERMIT: A permit issued by EPA (or by a state under authority delegated pursuant to 33 USC 
1342(b)) that authorizes the discharge of pollutants to waters of the United States, whether the 
permit is applicable on an individual, group, or general area wide basis . 

NON:STORMWATER DISCHARGE: Any discharge to storm water een•.ie•1anee S'/Stem and/er storm 

watef that is not composed entirely of storm water. 

PERSON: Any individua l, association, organization, partnership, firm, corporation or other entity 
recognized by law and acting as either the owner or the owner's agent. 

PERSONAL SERVICE: Hand delivery by and to an adult. 

POLLUTANT, POLLUTION, OR POLLUTE: Anything which causes or contributes to pollut ion, either 
directly or indirectly. Pollutants may include, but are not limited to : sediment, petroleum products, 
paints, varn ishes, and solvents; oil and other automotive fluids; nonhazardous liquid and solid 
wastes and yard wastes; refuse, rubbish, garbage, litter, or other discarded or abandoned objects, 
ordnances, and accumulations, so that the same may cause or contribute to pollution; floatables; 
pesticides, herbicides, and fertilizers; hazardous substances and wastes sewage, fecal coliform and 
pathogens; dissolved and part iculate metals; animal wastes; wast e and residues that result from 
constructing a building or structure; site development of any kind; and noxious or offensive matter 

of any kind . 

PREMISES: Any building, lot, parcel of land, or portion of land whether improved or unimproved 
including adjacent sidewalks and parking strips . 

RESPONDENT: A person to whom a Notice of Violation, Stop Work Order, citation, or notice of civil 
infraction has been issued pursuant to this Chapter or a person who is formally accused by the 

City of violating this Chapter. The term "respondent" shall include any person defending a Notice 
of Violation Sto Work Order citation notice of civil infraction or com la int issued on the basis 
of a violation of this Chapter or who is otherwise subject to any punitive measure pursuant to this 

Chapter. 

STOP WORK ORDER: An order issued by the Enforcement Official which requires that all sources 
and/or causes of a non-stormwater discharge or polluted stormwater, to include activities not 
permitted under an approved Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan on a site, be stopped. 

STORMWATER: Any surface flow runoff, and drainage consisting entirely of water from any form of 
natural precipitation, and resulting from such precipitation . 

STORMWATER CONSTRUCTION GENERAL PERMIT: A permit issued by the Nevada Division of 
Environmental Protection for stormwater disharges associated with construction activity. 



STORMWATER CONVEYANCE SYSTEM: Publicly owned facilities by which storm water is collected 
and/or conveyed, including, but not limited to, any roads with drainage systems, municipal streets, 
gutters, curbs, inlets, piped storm drains, pumping facilities, retention and detention basins, natural 
and human made drainage channels, reservoirs, and any other drainage structures. 

STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) : A document, approved by federal, state, 
or local agencies in accordance with federal, state, or local law, which describes the best 
management practices and activities to be implemented by a person or business to identify sources 
of pollution or contamination at a site and the actions to eliminate or reduce pollutant discharges to 
stormwater, stormwater conveyance systems, and/or receiving waters to the maximum extent 
practicable and posted on-site . 

WASTEWATER: Any water or other liquid, other than uncontaminated storm water, discharged from 
a facility . 

WATERCOURSE: Any drainage or structure through wh ich water may pass or drain and any body of 
water, including, but not limited to, lakes, ponds, rivers, streams, and bodies of water which have 
been delineated by federal, state, or local agencies in accordance with federal, state, or local laws. 
(Ord. 670, ~ B :l007} 

In the event a term is used in this Chapter is not defined in this Chapter, but is defined in another 
Chapter in this Title 9, the definition contained in the other Chapter shall apply. 

9-6-3: APPLICABILITY: 

This c;~hapter shall appl•t te regulates all water generated on any developed and undeveloped lands 
that enters the MS4, a watercourse, or waters of the United States, unless explicitl•1 properly 
exempted by an authorized enforcement agency. eRteriRg the storm v,ater ceR•Je'/aRce S'/Stem er 
storm water. (Ord. 670, ~ H 2007} The provisions of this Chapter 6, to include enforcement 
provisions, shall be in addition to and not in lieu of the provisions of Chapters 7 and 8 of this Title 9. 

9-6-4: RESPONSIBILITY FOR ADMINISTRATION: 

The E~ity ef ~Ike er its desigRee shall administer, implement, and enforce the provisions of this 
E~hapter to include delegating enforcement authority in a manner consistent herewith. AR'/ pewers 
graRted er duties impesed upeR the autherized eRfercemeRt ageRC\' ma\' be delegated iR writiRg b•1 
the directer ef the autherized eRfercemeRt ageRC'/ te perseRs er eRtities actiRg iR the beRefidal 
iRterest ef er iR the emple•1 ef the ageRC'/. (Ord. 670, ~ H 2007} 

9-6-5: ULTIMATE RESPONSIBILITY: 

The standards set forth here in and promulgated pursuant to this E~hapter are minimum standards; 
therefore compliance with this E~hapter does not iRteRd Rer impl'I that cempliaRce b'/ aR'/ perseR •.viii 
ensure that there will be no contamination, pollution, nor unauthorized discharge of pollutants . The 

prevention of contamination, pollution, or unauthorized discharges of pollutants is the responsibility 
of each erson sub· ect to the a Ii cable rovisions of Title 9 of the Cit Code federal and state law 
and the holder of an NPDES permit or other permit pertaining to discharges. The acts and omissions 
of employees and agents in the course and scope of their employment or official duties shall be 



deemed the acts and omissions of their employers and principals, except as otherwise provided by 
law. (Ord. ~70, ~ H 2007) 

9-6-6: DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS: 

A. Prohibition Qg_f Illegal Discharges: No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged into the 
muAicipal sterm water cem.'e't'aAce &;'Stem er waterceurses MS4, a watercourse, or waters of 
the United States any materials, including, but not limited to, pollutants and hazardous material 
or waters containing any pollutants, as described herein, tha t cause or contribute to a violation 

of applicab le water quality standards, other than storm water. 

The commencement, conduct or continuance of any illegal discharge to the sterm water 

cem.•e\•aAce s•tstem MS4, a watercourse, or waters of the United States is prohibited except as 
fellews that the following discharges are exempt from discharge prohibitions established by 

this Chapter: 

1. The felle•NiAg discharges are eMempt frem discharge prehibitieAs established b't' this 

chapter: w Water line flushing or other potable water sources, landscape irrigation or lawn 
watering, diverted stream flows, rising ground water, foundation or footing drains (not 
including active ground water dewatering systems), crawl space pumps, air conditioning 
condensation, natural springs, noncommercial washing of vehicles, natural riparian habitat 

or wetland flows, swimming pools (if dechlorinated Q typicall•t less thaA 1 part per millieA 

chleriAe and in compliance with all federal and state requirements ), or firefighting 
activities, aAd aAy ether seurce Aet ceAtaiAiAg pellutaAts er haii!ardeus materials . 

2. Discharges specified in writing by the autherirnd enforcement agency as being necessary to 

protect public health and safety. 

3. Dye testingso long as is aA allewable discharge, but requires a •Jerbal notification ~ 
provided to the autheriii!ed enforcement agency prior to the time of the test. 

4. The prehibitieA shall Aet appl't' te a8 ny non:stormwater discharge pe rmitted under an 
NP DES permit, waiver, or waste discharge order issued to the discharger and administered 
under authority of the federal or state environmental protection agency with ·urisdiction 

provided that the discharger is in full compliance with all requirements of the permit, 
waiver, or order and other applicable laws and regulations, and provided that written 
approval has been granted for any discharge to the sterm i.•.iater ceA¥eyaAce &;'Stem MS4. 

B. Prohibition Qf Against Illegal Connections : 

1. The construction, use, maintenance or continued existence of illegal connections to the 
sterm water ceA'i.le\•aAce s•tstem MS4 is prohibited . 

2. This The foregoing prohibition expressly includes, without limitation, illegal connections 
made in the past, regardless of whether the connection was permissible under the City 

Code, law, or practices applicable or prevailing at the time of connection. 



3. A person is considered to be in violation of this e~hapter if the person connects a line 
conveying sewage to the MS4, or allows such a connection to continue . (Ord. fi70, 3 13 

W07} 

9-6-7: SUSPENSION OF MS4 ACCESS: 

A. Suspension Due T! o Illegal Discharges Ji n Emergency Situations: The E~ity ef Elke may, without 
prior notice, suspend MS4 discharge access to a person when such suspension is necessary to 
stop an actual or tt:ireateRed impending discharge which presents or may present imminent and 
substantial danger to the environment, or to the health or welfare of persons, or to the MS4t.E. 
watercourse, or waters of the United States. If the violator fails to comply with a suspension 
order issued in an emergency, the autt:ierized enforcement agency may take such steps as 
deemed necessary to prevent or minimize damage to the MS4 or waters of the United States, or 
to minimize danger to persons. 

B. Suspension Due T! o The Detection 0 Qf Illegal Discharge : Any person discharging to the MS4 in 
violation of this e~hapter may have their MS4 access terminated if such termination would 
abate or reduce an illegal discharge. The authorized enforcement agency will notify a violator of 
the proposed term ination of its MS4 access. The violator may petitieR tl=te autl=terized 

eRfercemeRt ageRcy fer a receRsideratieR aRd l=teariRg appeal the decision following the 
process set forth in Section 9-6-14 below. 

C. A person commits an offense if tl=te perseR reiRstates by reinstating MS4 access to the premises 
termiRated after access was terminated pursuant to this section, without the prior approval of 
the autt:ierized enforcement agency. Violations are subject to enforcement pursuant to Section 
9-6-13 below. (Ord. fi70, 3 13 2007) 

9-6-8: COMMERCIAL OR INDUSTRIAL ACTIVITY, INCLUDING QR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY: 

Any person who discharges non-stormwater into the MS4, a watercourse, or waters of the United 
States shall comply with the applicable provisions of this Chapter. Any person who is subject to an 
iRdustrial er ceRstructieR acth,•ity NPDES stormwater discha rge permit issued by any local, state, or 

federal entity shall comply with all provisions of such permit . Proof of compliance with saW the permit 
may be required in a form acceptable to the e~ity prior to allowing ef discl=targes a discharge of any kind 

into the MS4. la Rd disturbaRce activities eR a la Rd parcel ef siM tl=teusaRd (fi,000) square feet te eRe 

acre Ret subject te NPDES ceRstructieR permits are alse iRcluded iR tl=tis requiremeRt. (Ord. fi70, 3 13 

W07} 

9-6-9: MONITORING OF DISCHARGES: 

A. Applicability: This section appl ies to all facilities that have stormwater discharges associated 
with industrial activity, including construction activity. 

B. Access T! o Facilities : 

1. The city ef Elke er its desigRee shall be permitted The owner or operator of any facility 
shall permit the City to enter and inspect facilities subject to regulation under this E~hapter 
as often as may be necessary to determine compliance with this E~hapter to include 



disengaging security devices and notifying onsite personnel, such as security guards. U-a 
dischaFgeF has secYFit'I R'leasYFes in foFce which FeEtYiFe prnpeF identificatien and 

cleaFance befeFe entF'{ inte its pFeR'lises, the dischaFgeF shall R'lake the necessaF't' 

aFFangeR'lents te allew access te FepFesentafr,es ef the aYtheFized enfoFceR'lent agenc•/. 

2. A J;.facility owner or operators shall aUGW provide the €~ity ef Elke eF its designee Fead'I 

reasonable access to all parts of the premises for the purposes of inspection, sampling, 
examination and copying ef records that must be kept YndeF the cenditiens ef maintained 

pursuant to a an NPDES permit to discharge stormwater, and the performance of any 
additional duties pertaining to discharges as defined by local, stateL and federal law. 

3. The €~ity ef Elke eF its designee shall ha¥e the Fight is authorized to set-Yp install on any 
permitt ed facility such devices as are necessary in the opinion of the aYtheFized 
enfeFceR'lent agenc'{ City to conduct monitoring and/or sampling of the facility's 
stormwater discharge. 

4. The €~ity ef Elke eF its designee has the Fight is authorized to require the discharger t o 
install monitoring equipment as necessary to measure stormwater flow and quality. The 
facility's sampl ing and monitoring equipment shall be maintained at all times in a safe and 
proper operating condition by the discharger at its own expense . All devices used to 
measure storm water flow and quality shall be calibrated to ensure their accuracy. 

5. Any teR'lpeFaF'I eF peFR'lanent ebstFYctien impediment to safe and easy access to the 
facility to be inspected and/or sampled shall be promptly removed by the operator at the 
written or~ verbal request of the €~ity ef Ell,e and shall not be replaced until authorized 
by the City. The cests ef cleaFing SYch to remove such impediment to safe and easy access 
shall be borne by the owner or operator. 

6. An Y.!!_nreasonable delays in allewing providing the €~ity ef Ellw eF its designee Jccess to a 
permitted facil ity is to investigate a potential violation of a stormwater discharge permit 
shall be a violation am! of this €~hapter. A peFsen whe is t! he owner or operator of a 
facility with an required to maintain an NP DES permit to discharge stormwater associated 
with industrial activity ceR'lR'lits an effense if the peFsen denies the aYtheFized 

enfoFceR'lent agenc'{ violates this Chapter by failing or refusing to provide the City 

reasonable access to the permitted facility for the purpose of conducting any activity 
authorized or required by this €~hapter. 

7. If the €~ity ef Elke eF its designee has been I?. refused access to any part of the pFeR'lises ~ 

facility fFeR'l ',Yhich steFR'l wateF is dischaFged, and he/she is able te deR'lenstFate pFebable 

caYse te belie•,e that theFe R'la'/ be a Yielatien ef this chapteF, eF that and if the City 
determines it must them is a need te inspect and/or sample a discharge as paFt ef a 
FeYtine inspectien and saR'lpling pFOgFaR'l designed to verify compliance with this €~hapter 
or any order issued hereunder, or to protect the overall public health, safety, and welfare of 
the community, then the aYtheFized enfoFceR'lent agenc't' City may seek issyance ef a ~ 

for an administrative search warrant from any court of competent jurisdiction. (OFd. €;7Q, 3 
H 2QQ7) 



9-6-10: REQUIREMENT TO PREVENT, CONTROL, AND REDUCE STORM WATER POLLUTANTS BY THE USE 

OF BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES OR PROPER WASTE MANAGEMENT: 

All generators shall manage the discharge of waste in accordance with all federal, state, and local 
laws. The eit'{ of Elko requires the ideRtifieatioR Generators shall also identify all waste to ensure 
compliance with applicable laws and shall use of best maRagemeRt praetiees (BMPs} for any act ivity, 
operation, or facility wh ich may result in a discharge, or cause or contribute to pollution or 
contamination of storm water, the storm \'.'ater eoRYe'{aRee S'{Stem, or waters of the YRited States the 
MS4 or a watercourse, except as otherwise provided under federal, state, and local waste disposal 
laws. The eit't' of Elko requires as a miRimum the Operators shall use of its 8MP maRual to ideRtif'I aRd 
utilize appropriate BMPs for all activities regulated by this Chapter. A person who holds a valid permit 
authorizing the discharge of stormwater associated with an industrial activity or construction activity 
shall comply with the terms and conditions thereof. The owRer or operator of a eommereial or 

iRdYstrial establishmeRt shall pro-.•ide, at their 0 1...,R expeRse, reasoRable proteetioR from aeeideRtal 
diseharge of prohibited materials or other wastes iRto the m1,1Rieipal storm water eoRYe•yaRee s•rstem 
or water eourses through the use of these strnetmal or RORstrnet1,1ral 8MPs. J;1,1rther, aA'/ persoR 
respoRsible for a propert't' or premises, whieh is, or ma'{ be, the so1,1ree of aR illegal diseharge, ma'{ be 
required to implemeRt, at said persoR's expeRse, additioRal struet1,1ral aRd RORstruet1,1ral 8MPs to 
preYeRt the forther diseharge of poll1,1taRts to the MS4. CompliaRee 11i.'ith all terms aRd eoRditioRs of a 
1.'alid NPQES permit a1,1thoriiiRg the diseharge of storm water assoeiated with iRd1,1strial aetiYit'I, to the 
exteRt praetieable, shall be deemed eompliaRee with the proYisioRs of this seetioR. These BM Ps for all 
activities regulated by this Chapter shall be part of included in a s~torm w Water pe_ollution 
pe_revention p _e_lan (SWPPP) as to the extent necessary for eompliaRee to comply with the requirements 
of the an NP DES permit. 

VlheReYer In the event the eQty of Ellrn fiRds determines that a person has not properly implemented 
the storm water poll1,1tioR preYeRtioR plaR a SWPPP or that the storm water poll1,1tioR pre•.ieRtioR plaR 

SWPPP requires modification to prevent the discharge or possible discharge of po llutants into the sterm 

water eoRYe•yaRee s•rstem or storm water MS4 or a watercourse, the e~ ity of Ell,o may, at in its sole 
discretion, allow a time frame instruct the person to correct the specified deficiencies Rot to exeeed 

within ten (10) calendar days for the persoR to eorreet the ideRtified defieieReies. (Ord. (170, 3 B 
W07} 

9-6-11: WATERCOURSE PROTECTION: 

~ Any person owRiRg who owns, occupies, or possesses property (to include a lessee) through 
which a watercourse passes, or s1,1eh persoR's lessee, shall keep and maintain that part of the 
watercourse within the property free of trash, debris, excessive veget ation, and other obstaeles 

materials or object that may that wo1,1ld pollute, contaminate, or significantly~ restrict the flow of 
water through the watercourse . In addition, the owner, occupant, or lessee person in possession shall 
maintain existing privately owned structures within or adjacent to a watercourse, so that such structures 
will not become a hazard to the use, function, or physical integrity of the watercourse . (Ord. (}7Q, 3 B 
W07} 

9-6-12: NOTIFICATION OF SPILLS: 

NotwithstaRdiRg other req1,1iremeRts of law, as sooR as !! any person responsible for a fac ility or 
operation, or respoRsible for emergency response for a fac ility or operation has information ef 



pertaining to any known or suspected release of materials which are res1:1ltiRg cause or may result in 
illegal discharges, er pell1:1taRts disehargiRg iRte sterm water, the sterm water eeRveyaRee s•;stem, er 

water ef the URited States, said that person shall promptly take all reasonablynecessary steps to 
ensure the discovery, containment, and cleanup of such release. In the event of SYth ~ release of 
hazardous materials, said the person shall immediately notify emergency response agencies of the 
occurrence via emergency dispatch services. In the event of a release of nonhazardous material, said the 
person shall notify the a1:1therized appropriate e~ity eRforeemeRt ageRE't' department or official either 
in person, 0fe by telephone, orb•; faesimile er by electronic mail no later than the next business day. 
Notifications in person or by telephone shall be confirmed by written notice addressed and mailed to 
the E~ity ef ~Ike within three (3) business days of the in-person or telephonej_f notice . If the discharge of 
prohibited materials emanates from a commercial or industrial establishment, the owner or operator of 
such establishment shall also retain an on site written record of the discharge and the actions taken to 
prevent its recurrence . Such records shall be retained for at least three (3) years. The foregoing 
notification requirements are in addition to and not in lieu of any applicable notification requirements 
under federal and state law. The failure to rovide notice as re uired in this section shall constitute a 
violation of this Chapter. (Ord. 670, ~ 13 2007) 

9-6-13: ENFORCEMENT: 

A. Netiee Of VielatieR: WheRe11er the eittti ef ~Ike fiRds that a perseR has •••ielated a prehibitieR er 
failed te meet a req1:1iremeRt ef this ehapter, the a1:1therized eRfereemeRt ageRey ma•; erder 
cempliaRce b•; writteR Retice ef vielatieR te the respeRsible perseR. S1:1ch Retice ma•; req1:1ire 
withe1:1t limitatieR: 

1. The perfermaRee ef meRiteriRg, aRalyses, aRd repertiRg; 

2. The elimiRatieR ef illegal ceRRectieRs er discharges; 

~- That 11ielatiRg discharges, practices, er eperatieRs shall cease aRd desist; 

4. The abatemeRt er remediatieR ef stermv.•ater pell1:1tieR er ceRtamiRatieR hazards aRd the 
resteratieR ef aR't' affeeted preperty; a Rd 

S. The implemeRtatieR ef se1:1rce ceRtrel er treatmeRt RMPs. 

8. DeadliRe: If abatemeRt ef a YielatieR a Rd/er resteratieR ef affected preperty is req1:1ired, the 
Retice shall set ferth a deadliRe withiR •.vhieh s1:1ch remediatieR er resteratieR m1:,1st be 
cempleted. Said Retice shall f1:1rther ad\•ise that, she1:1ld the •1ielater fail te remediate er 
restere withiR the established deadliRe, the werl< will be deRe b•; a desigRated g0•1erRmeRtal 
ageRC't' er eeRtracter a Rd the expeRse thereef shall be charged te the •1ielater. (Ord. 670, ~ 13 

~ 

A. Notice of Violation: In the event the City determines that a person has violated a prohibition 
or failed to meet a requirement of this Chapter 61 the City may compel compliance by serving 
a written Notice of Violation or Stop Work Order upon the discharger or the discharger's agent 
or re resentative b ersonal service. A Notice of Violation issued under this section ma 
require, without limitation: 



1. The performance of monitoring, analyses, and reporting; 

2. The elimination of illegal connections or discharges; 

3. That discharges, practices, or operations causing nonpoint source pollution immediately 
cease and desist; 

4. The abatement or remediation of storm water pollution or contamination hazards and the 

restoration of any affected property; 

5. The payment of a fine established by this Chapter or by resolution of the City Council to 

cover administrative and remediation costs; and/or 

6. Implementation of source control or treatment BMPs. 

B. Stop Work Order: In the event an unlawful or unpermitted discharge threatens the MS4, 

waters of the United States or a watercourse, or endangers the health or safety of any person, 
the City shall issue a Stop Work Order to the discharger, which shall be served by personal 
service upon the discharger or the discharger's agent or representative. If the discharger fails 
to obey the Stop Work Order immediately, the City shall take such action as may be necessary 
to insure compliance with this Chapter 6, including, but not limited to, submitting a request 
for the arrest of the discharger by a peace officer and/or an order for the immediate cessation 
of the discharger's ability to discharge, to include the immediate stoppage of all work at a 
construction site or other development. A Stop Work Order issued pursuant to this section 
shall remain in effect until the City determines that the respondent has completed all 
abatement, remediation, restoration activities and/or other requirements therein specified. 

C. Deadline: If abatement of a violation and/or restoration of affected property is required, the 
Notice of Violation shall set forth a deadline by which such remediation or restoration must 
be completed. Should the respondent fail to perform the remediation or restoration therein 
specified by the deadline, the work may be done by the City or a designated governmental 
agency or contractor and the expense thereof shall be charged to the respondent. 

D. Citations: The Environmental Enforcement Official or her or his designee shall have the 
authority to prepare, sign and serve written citations on persons accused of violating a 
provision of this Chapter where there is a criminal sanction. All citations so issued and served 
shall comply with the requirements of NRS 171.1773 and NRS 171.17751(5). 

E. Civil liability instead of criminal sanction: Any person who violates this Chapter may be subject 
to civil liability to the City in an amount not to exceed $500 instead of a criminal sanction. 

F. Civil liability; notice of civil infraction: The Environmental Enforcement Official or her or his 
designee may issue a notice of civil infraction to any person who violates this Chapter. The 
notice of violation must be issued on a form containing the following information: 

1. The location where the violation occurred; 

2. The date and time of the violation; 



3. The signature of the Environmental Enforcement Official or other authorized person who 
issues the notice of civil infraction; 

4. The section of this code that allegedly is being violated; 

5. Information about the manner and time within which the notice of civil infraction must be 

answered; 

6. The amount of the civil fine; and 

7. Any other information relevant to the violation and applicable provisions of this Chapter. 

G. Civil liability; duties of respondent: 

1. A person who responds to a notice of civil infraction must either: 

a. Admit the commission of the infraction and pay the appropriate civil fine; or 

b. Deny liability for the infraction. 

2. A person may admit commission of the infraction by paying to the municipal court the civil 
fine shown on the notice of civil infraction. 

3. A person who denies liability for the infraction must appear in person before the 
municipal court. 

H. Commencement of civil action; procedure: Judicial enforcement of a notice of civil infraction 
must be by way of a civil suit in the municipal court if a person denies liability. A civil action 
may be commenced by the filing of a complaint in the name of the City and the issuance of a 
summons with respect thereto, and service of such complaint and summons on the defendant 
must be made by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the defendant at 
his/her last known address or in any other matter which is authorized by law. The proceedings 
in municipal court for actions commenced pursuant to this Chapter shall be governed by Rules 
1 and 3 through 87 of the Justice Court Rules of Civil Procedure. 

I. Civil Fines: A respondent who commits a civil infraction under this Chapter shall subject to a 
civil fine in the amount of $500.00 per infraction. 

9-6-14: APPEAL OF NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND/OR STOP WORK ORDER: 

An'/ person receiving a notice of '.'iolation ma'/ appeal the determination of the aYthorized 
enforcement agenq•. The notice of appeal mYst be received •Nithin t hirt•1 (30) da•1s from the date of 
the notice of violation. Mearing on appeal before the Elko cit'/ coYncil shall take place v,ithin fort'/ five 
(4§) da•1s from the date of receipt of the notice of appeal. The decision of the mYnicipal aYthorit'I or 
their designee shall be final. (Ord. ~70, 3 n 2007) 



A. A Notice of Violation or Stop Work Order issued pursuant to this Chapter 6 shall include a 
written notice setting forth the respondent's appeal rights pursuant to this Section 9-6-14. 

B. A respondent served with a Notice of Violation or Stop Work Order may, within fourteen (14) 
calendar days of service thereof, appeal the determination of the Enforcement Official to the 
City Manager by filing a "Notice of Appeal to the City Manager" with the City Clerk containing 

a statement of the basis for the appeal. The City Manager or the City Manager's designee shall 
schedule and conduct a hearing on the Notice of Violation or Stop Work Order within fourteen 
(14) calendar days thereafter, upon no less than seven (7) calendar days' advance notice to 
the respondent, unless otherwise agreed by the respondent and the City. At the hearing 
before the City Manager or the City Manager's designee, the respondent and the City shall 

each be given an opportunity to present arguments and evidence, to include witness 
testimony. The rules of evidence shall not apply. The City Manager or the City Manager's 

designee may terminate the hearing at a time determined in advance by the City Manager or 
the City Manager's designee, provided a reasonable time shall be given to permit the 
respondent and the City to present their respective arguments and evidence. The City 

Manager or City Manager's designee may terminate a hearing at any time upon a 
determination that the additional evidence and argument to be proffered by the respondent 

and the City will be duplicative or not relevant to the issues to be resolved. The City Manager 
or the City Manager's designee shall issue and serve a written decision upon the respondent 
with five (5) business days of the hearing. 

C. A respondent may, within fourteen (14) calendar days of service thereof, appeal the decision 

of the City Manager or the City Manager's designee to the City Council by filing a "Notice of 
Appeal to the City Council" with the City Clerk containing a statement of the basis for the 
appeal. The City Council shall, within forty-five (45) calendar days thereafter, conduct a 
hearing on the decision of the City Manager or City Manager's designee. At the hearing 

before the City Council, the respondent and the City shall each be given an opportunity to 
present arguments and evidence, to include witness testimony. The rules of evidence shall not 
apply. The City Council may terminate the proceeding at a time determined in advance by the 

City Manager or the City Manager's designee, provided a reasonable time shall be given to 
permit the respondent and the City to present their respective arguments and evidence. The 

City Council may terminate a hearing at any time upon a determination that the additional 
evidence and argument to be proffered by the respondent and the City will be duplicative or 

not relevant to the issues to be resolved. The City Council shall render a decision at the 
hearing, to include a continuation thereof in the event the hearing is tabled. 

D. Service upon the respondent for purposes of this Section 9-6-14 shall mean service by certified 

mail, return receipt requested. 

E. A respondent to whom a Notice of Violation or Stop Work Order has been issued must comply 
with the requirements stated therein pending an appeal or appeals pursuant to this Section 9-

6-14. 

F. The failure of a respondent to appeal a decision within the times required in this Section 9-6-
14 shall result in the waiver of those appeal rights. 



G. The decision of the City Council at an appeal hearing pursuant to this Section 9-6-14 shall be 
final for purposes of judicial review. Any action for judicial review shall be commenced by 
filing a petition with the District Court for the Fourth Judicial District, in and for the County of 
Elko, State of Nevada, no more than thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the decision of 
the City Council at an appeal hearing pursuant to this Section 9-6-14. 

9-6-15: INJUNCTIVE RELIEF: 

It shall be 1mlawfl:1I fer a Ry perseR te •.'ielate aR't' previsieR er fail te eemply 11,•ith aR'/ ef the 
reE1YiremeRts ef this ehapter. If a person has violated or cont inues to violate the provisions of this 
E~hapter, the aYtherized eRfereemeRt ageRey City may petition for a preliminary or permanent 
injunction restraining the person from activities which could create further violations or compelling the 
person to perform abatement or remediation of the violation . (Ord. 670, ~ H 2007) 

9-6-16: VIOLATIONS DEEMED A PUBLIC NUISANCE: 

In addition to the enforcement processes and penalties provided, any condition caused or permitted to 
exist in violation of any of the provisions of this E~hapter is hereby determined to be a threat to public 
health, safety, and welfare, and is declared and deemed a nuisance, and may be abated pursuant to the 
provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes E~hapter 268 or restored at the violator's expense, and/or civil 
action to abate, enjoin, or otherwise compel the cessat ion of such nuisance may be taken. The 

provisions of this Section 9-6-16 and the City Nuisance Code are in addition to and not in lieu of the 
other enforcement provisions set forth in this Chapter. (Ord. 670, ~ H 2007) 

9-6-17: CRIMINAL PROSl!CIJTION PENAL TIES: 

Any person that who has violated or continues to violate the requirements of this E~hapter, to include 
any requirement set forth in a Notice of Violation or Stop Work Order issued under this Chapter, shall 
be liable te erimiRal preseeYtieR aRd shall be subject to a criminal penalty of one thousand dollars 
($1,000.00) per '.'ielatieR per day. Each day a person violates this Chapter or remains in violation of 
this Chapter shall be a separate violation. In addition, any person that who has violated or continues to 
violate this E~hapter may be subject to criminal prosecution under federal or state laws. 

The aYtherized eRfereemeRt ageRE't' City may recover all attorney fees, court costs and other expenses 
asseeiated with incurred in the enforcement of this E~hapter, includ ing sampling and monitoring 
expense$. (Ord. 670, ~ n 2007} 

9-6-18: REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE: 

The remedies listed in this E~hapter are not exclusive of any other remedies available under any 
applicable federal, state or local law and it is within the discretion of t he authorized enforcement agency 
to seek cumulative remedies. (Ord. 670, ~ H 2007} 

9-6-19: STORMWATER MANAGEMENT UTILITY FEES: 

To offset the cost of operating the City MS4, there is hereby established a Stormwater Management 
Utility Fee. The Stormwater Management Utility Fee shall be charged to each person who is provided 

water service by the City, shall be in addition to all other charges assessed under Title 9, Chapter 1 



(Elko Water Code), and may be billed monthly. The s~tormwater m M anagement t:1.!l_tility f_Eee for the 

lailliRg peried estalalished B'/ the cit•/ :;hall be calculated on the basis of the sewer fixture unit (SFU) 
count of the water user's premises, as follows: 

A. Stermwater MaRagemeRt Utilit'I Fee: 

1. A fee le>Jied te rn•,er the eperatieR, maiRteRaRce a Rd replacemeRt ef the dt•/'s 

stermwater ceR>Je'/aRce &'/Stem aml te pre>Jide for the meRiteriRg ef stermwater qYalit>j. 

2. Stermwater maRagemeRt 1:Jtilit•1 fees shall he eased YpeR the follewiRg sewer fixtYre YR its 
aRd shall he set B'/ reselYtieR: 

Residential : 

50 SFU (minimum) $1.00 

Commercial or Industrial : 

1 to 50 SFU (minimum) 1.00 

51 to 500 SFU 0.02 per SFU 

501 to 3,000 SFU 0.01 per SFU 

3,001 or more 0.005 per SFU 

(Ord. 716, 9 28 2Q1Q) 

Section 2: Title 9, Chapter 7 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

9-7-1: PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this G~hapter is to provide for the health, safety and general welfa re of the dtizeRs 

residents of the City through regulation of construct ion activities to manage and control pollution from 
construction sites affecting the MS4, waters of the United States, and watercourses. This Chapter 

establishes methods for controlling the introduction of pollutants into the MS4 to comply with the 

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit process and to: . This chapter 

estalalishes metheds for ceRtrelliRg pellYtieR frem £0Rstr1:JctieR sites iR accerdaRce ',Yith the RatieRal 

pellYtaRt discharge elimiRatieR &'/Stem (NPDE:S) permit precess iR erder te: 

A. Provide for protection of stormwater, ground water, water bodies, watercourses, and wetlands 
pursuant to and consistent with the G~lean w Water a8 ct, and the NP DES permit graRted issued 
to the G~ity ef E:lke, 

B. Manage and control the amount of pollutants in stormwater discharges aRd into the mYRicipal 

sterm sewer &'/Stems MS4, soil erosion, sediment discharge, and sediment on public roadways, 
and 

C. Ensure adequate drainage, stormwater management and soi l conservation measures are 
utilized at the site ef construction acti>,it•1 sites . (Ord. 671, 4 lQ 2QQ7) 



9-7-2: DEFINITIONS: 

!=or the pyrposes of this chapter, the followiRg shall meaR; As used in this Chapter, unless the context 
otherwise requires, the words and terms defined in this section shall have the following meanings 
ascribed to them: 

AUTMORIZE:D ENl=ORnMENT AGENCY; The director of the mYRicipal ageRcy desigRated to eRforce 

this chapter or the director emplo•1ees or the director desigRees. 

BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPs) : Schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, general 

good housekeeping practices, pollution prevention and educational practices, maintenance 
procedures, and other management practices to prevent or reduce the discharge of pollutants 
directly or indirectly to the MS4, a watercour5se, or waters of the United States, to include 

stormwater, receiving water, or stormwater conveyance systems; aRd also BMPs include treatment 
practices, operating procedures, and other practices to control site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge 
or water disposal, or drainage from raw materials storage. BMPs may be structural or 
nonstructural. 

CITY: The City of Elko, Nevada, to include its departments, agencies, officials and employees. 

CLEAN WATER ACT: The federal ',Yater pollYtioR CORtrol act (33 USC 1251 et seq.), aRd aRy 
sYbseqYeRt ameRdmeRts thereto. The Clean Water Act (formerly referred to as the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act or Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972) Pub. L. 92-500, 
as amended Pub. L. 95-576, Pub. L. 96-483 and Pub. L. 97-117, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. 

CLEARING : Any activity which removes the vegetative cover. 

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY: Acfr.•ities An activity subject to an NPDES construction stormwater 
general permits issued by the s~tate of Nevada . The term "construction activity" includes NP DES 
construction activities on a land disturbance of one ill_acre or more. The term "construction 
activity" also includes a land disturbance of less than one (1) acre if part of a larger common plan 
of development or sale that disturbs, or is proposed to disturb, one (1) acre or more. CoRstrnctioR 

acti1Jities OR from SiM thOYSaRd (€i,OQQ) sqyare feet to ORe acre Rot SYbject to NPDES CORStrnctioR 

permits are also iRclYded iR this defiRitioR. Such activities include, but are not limited to, clearing 
and grubbing, grading, excavating and demolition . 

CONSTRUCTION SITE: Any laRd ,...,here parcel of land on which !.!.construction activity", as defiRed iR 

this sectioR, is performed. 

DISCHARGE: Any addition of a contaminant, pollutant or pollutants to the MS4, waters of the 
United States or a watercourse, including a "discharge of pollutant" as defined in 40 CFR § 122.2. 

ENFORCEMENT OFFICIAL: The City of Elko Environmental Coordinator, City Code Enforcement 
Officer, or any other City of Elko employee designated to serve as an Enforcement Official by the 
City Council to enforce the provisions of this Chapter. 

EROSION CONTROL: Any measure that pre1JeRts designed to prevent erosion . 



GRADING: ~xca·.iatieR er fill ef material, iRcl1:1diRg tl:ie res1:1ltiRg ceRditieRs tl:iereef. The work of 

ensuring a level base, or one with a specified slope, for a construction work such as a foundation, 
the base course for a road or a railway, or landscape and garden improvements, or surface 
drainage. Grading may involve excavation, placement of fill material, or both. 

MUNICIPAL SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM (MS4): A collection of structures (retention basins, 

ditches, underground pipes, etc.) owned and operated by the City and not connected to the 
sanitary sewer system that is designed to gather stormwater and discharge it, without treatment, 
into local streams and rivers. 

MUNICIPAL SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM (MS4) PERMIT: A permit allowing the City to legally 
discharge stormwater into local streams and rivers through the municipal separate storm sewer 
system. 

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) STORM WATER DISCHARGE 

PERMIT: A permit issued by EPA (or by a state under authority delegated pursuant to 33 USC 
1342(b)) that authorizes the discharge of pollutants to waters of the United States, whether the 
permit is applicable on an individual, group, or general areawide basis . 

NON:STORMWATER DISCHARGE: Any discharge to storm water conveyance system and/or storm 

water that is not composed entirely of storm water. 

PERIMETER CONTROL: A barrier that prevents sediment from leaving a site either by filtering 
sediment: laden runoff, or diverting it to a sediment trap or basin . 

PERSON: Any individual, association, organization, partnership, firm, corporation or other entity 

recognized by law and acting as either the owner or the owner's agent. 

PHASING: Clearing a parcel of land in distinct phases, with stabilization of each phase before clearing 
the next phase. 

POLLUTANT: Anything which causes or contributes to pollution either directly or indirectly. 
Pollutants may include, but are not limited to : sediment, petroleum products, paints, varnishes, and 
solvents; oil and other automotive fluids; nonhazardous liquid and solid wastes and yard wastes; 
refuse, rubbish, garbage, litter, or other discarded or abandoned objects, ordnances, and 
accumulations, so that the same may cause or contribute to pollution; floatables; pesticides, 
herbicides, and fertilizers; hazardous substances and wastes; sewage, fecal coliform and pathogens; 

dissolved and particulate metals; animal wastes; wastes and residues that result from constructing a 
building or structure; site development of any kind; and noxious or offensive matter of any kind. 

PREMISES: Any bu ilding, lot, parcel of land, or portion of land, whether improved or unimproved, 
including adjacent sidewalks and parking strips. 

RESPONDENT: A person to whom a notice of violation, stop work order, citation or notice of civil 
infraction has been issued pursuant to this Chapter or a person who is formally accused by the 
City of violating this Chapter. The term "respondent" shall include any person defending a notice 
of violation, stop work order, citation, notice of civil infraction or complaint issued on the basis of 



a violation of this Chapter or who is otherwise subject to any punitive measure pursuant to this 
Chapter. 

SEDIMENT CONTROL: Any measure that prevents sediment from leaving the site . 

STABILIZATION: Any practice that prevents exposed soil from eroding. 

START OF CONSTRUCTION : The first land disturbing activity associated with development, including 
land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling, installation of streets and walkways, 
excavation for basements, footings, foundations, and erection of temporary forms . 

STOP WORK ORDER: An order issued by the Enforcement Official which requires that all sources 
and/or causes of a non-stormwater discharge or polluted stormwater, to include all activities not 

permitted required under an approved Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan on a site, be 
stopped. 

STORMWATER: Any surface flow runoff, and drainage cons isting entirely of water from any form of 
natural precipitation, and resulting from such precipitation. 

STORMWATER CONSTRUCTION GENERAL PERMIT: A permit issued by the Nevada Division of 
Environmental Protection for stormwater discharges associated with construction activity. 

STORMWATER CONVEYANCE SYSTEM: Publicly owned facilities by which storm water is collected 

and/or conveyed, including, but not limited to, any roads with drainage systems, municipal streets, 
gutters, curbs, inlets, piped storm drains, pumping facilities, retent ion and detention basins, natural 
and human made drainage channels, reservoirs, and any other drainage structures. 

STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) : A document, approved by federal, state, 
or local agencies in accordance with federal, state, or local law, which describes the best 
management practices and activities to be implemented by a person or business to identify sources 
of pollution or contamination at a site and the actions to eliminate or reduce pollutant discharges to 
stormwater, stormwater conveyance systems, and/or receiving waters to the maximum extent 
practicable and posted on-site. 

WATERCOURSE: Any drainage or structure through which water may pass or drain to any body of 
water, including, but not limited to, lakes, ponds, rivers, streams, and bodies of water which have 
been delineated by tl:1e eit•; of ~Ike federal, state, or local agencies in accordance with federal, 
state, or local laws. {Ord. €i71, 4 1Q 2007) 

9-7-3: APPLICABILITY: 

This Chapter regulates all water discharged from any construction site subject to an NPDES 
Construction Stormwater General Permit issued by the State of Nevada. Included in these regulations 
are protections against 0 Qff:site impacts of erosion and sedimentation from a construction site~ 
including prohibitions against are prol:tibited aRd polluting substances such as construction materials 
and waste . This Chapter also contains or incorporates regulations requiring on-site containment shaU 
be eoRtaiRed oR tl:te site , .... 1:tere Sl:lel:t sl:lbstaRees eaRROt draiR to prevent drainage or be traRsported 
transportation by stormwater into the MS4, a watercourse, or tl:te storm1 .... ater eoRYeyaRee s•;stem 



waters of the United States. 8est management praetiees shall The regulations further require that 
BMPs be implemented f&F at all construction sites. The performance standards set forth in the G~ity~ ef 
~ "Construction Site Best Management Practices Handbook" (the "BMP Manual") tegether with sueh 
addendum including addenda and updates, all of which are en depesit in the effiee ef the eit't' ef flke 
available for review and copying at the City offices, are hereby adopted by reference and incorporated 
herein and made a part hereef as if set forth in full for the purpose of establishing the appropriate 
BMPs and standards related thereto. (Ord. 671, 4 10 2007) 

9-7-4: RESPONSIBILITY FOR ADMINISTRATION: 

The eity ef flke er its designee shall administer, implement, and enferee the pre>,iisiens ef this ehapter . 
.'\ny pewers granted er duties impesed upen the autherized enfereement agene•1 ma•1 be delegated in 
1A'riting b•1 the direeter ef the autherized enfereement agene>/ te persens er entities aeting in the 
benefieial interest ef er in the emple•1 ef the agene11. (Ord. 671, 4 10 2007) 

The City shall administer, implement, and enforce the provisions of this Chapter, to include delegating 
enforcement authority in a manner consistent herewith. 

9-7-5: ULTIMATE RESPONSIBILITY: 

The standards set ferth herein and premulgated pursuant te this ehapter are minimum standards; 
therefere this ehapter dees net intend ner imply that eemplianee by an•/ persen will ensure that there 
11,•ill be ne eentaminatien, pellutien, ner unautherized diseharge ef pellutants. (Ord. 671, 4 10 2007) 

The standards set forth herein and promulgated pursuant to this Chapter are minimum standards; 
therefore, compliance with this Chapter does not ensure that there will be no contamination, 
pollution, or unauthorized discharge of pollutants. The prevention of contamination, pollution, or 
unauthorized discharges of pollutants is the responsibility of each person subject to the applicable 
provisions of Title 9 of the City Code and federal and state law, and the holder of an NPDES permit or 
other permit pertaining to discharges. The acts and omissions of employees and agents in the course 
and sco e of their em lo ment or official duties shall be deemed the acts and omissions of their 
employers and principals, except as otherwise provided by law. 

9-7-6: STORMWATER CONSTRUCTION GENERAL PERMIT; CONSTRUCTION SITE DISCHARGE 
REGULATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS: 

A. Censtruetien permit A valid Stormwater Construction General Permit issued by the State 
submittal is required nn for all projects that may require grad ing, site development, build ing, 
site drainage, or encroachment that will disturb an area of six theusand (6,000) square feet one 
(1) acre or more or construction activities disturbing less than one (1) acre if part of a larger 
common plan of development or sale that would disturb one (1) acre or more (including public 
works projects). 

B. Prior to issuance of any of the above referenced permits (grading, site development, building, 
site drainage, or encroachment). the following must be submitted to the Development 
Department for review: 

1. Construction permit submittal checklist; 



2. Performance standards compliance checklist; 

3. Copy of a RJ"!otice of i! ntent (NOi) submitted to the Nevada Division of Environmental 
Protection · 

4. Copy of sigRed eoRfirmatioR letter Proof of acceptance of the NOi by the Nevada Division 
of Environmental Protection; and 

5. Copy of the project SWPPP. 

C. The iRstallatioR a Rd maiRteRaRee of storm water eoRtrols are to be iR aeeordaRee with 
staRdards as set forth iR the 8MP mam1al or maRufaeturer's speeifieatioRs. (Ord. 671, 4 10 
~ The City will issue a grading permit to an applicant only upon approval by the City of the 
items set forth in Section 9-7-6(8) 1 to include a SWPPP that satisfies all applicable federal, 
state and City requirements. 

D. The installation and maintenance of storm water controls shall comply with the City-approved 
SWPPP. 

E. A person commits a violation of this Chapter by permitting, authorizing, directing or engaging 
in a construction activity without a valid Stormwater Construction General Permit issued by 
the State, unless otherwise exempt pursuant to the City Code or federal or state law. 

9-7-7: REQUIREMENT TO PREVENT, CONTROL, AND REDUCE STORM WATER POLLUTANTS BY THE USE 
OF BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES: 

The eity of Elko requires the ideRtifieatioR aRd use of best maRagemeRt praetiees (8MPs) for aR't' 
aetiYit'/, operatioR, or faeility whieh ma•t eause or eoRtribute to pollutioR or eoRtamiRatioR of storm 
water, the storm •,t.iater eoR•.ieyaRee system, or waters of the URited States. The eity of Elko requires as 
a miRimum the use of its Any person who engages in or is responsible for a construction activity, to 
include grading on a construction site, shall identify and implement BMPs consistent with the 
standards set for the City BMP manual to ideRtify aRd utilize appropriate 8MPs. The owRer or 
operator of a eommereial or iRdustrial establishmeRt shall proYide, at their O'NR eMpeRse, reasoRable 
proteetioR from aeeideRtal diseharge of prohibited materials or other wastes iRto the muRieipal storm 
._ .. ,ater eoR•.ie•taRee s•tstem or watereourses through the use of these struetural or RORstruetural 8MPs. 
Further, The City may require any person engaged in or responsible fo r a propert•t or premises, whieh 
is, or ma•t be, the souree of aR illegal diseharge, ma•t be required a construction activity to implement, 
at said persoR's eMpeRse, additional structural and nonstructural BMPs to prevent the further discharge 
of pollutants into the MS4, a watercourse, or waters of the United States. Compliance with all terms 
and conditions of a valid NPDES permit and/or Stormwater Construction General Permit authorizing 
the discharge of storm water associated with iRdustrial construction activity, to the eMteRt praetieable, 
5haU may, at the discretion of the City, be deemed equivalent to compliance with the provisions of this 
section. These BMPs shall be part of a storm water pollutioR pre•.ieRtioR plaR included in a {SW PPP} as 
Reeessary if the BMPs are required for compliance with requiremeRts of the an NP DES permit and/or a 
Stormwater Construction General Permit . (Ord. 671, 4 lQ 2QQ7) 

9-7-8: INSPECTION: 



A. All eeRstr1,1etieR sites whieh foll withiR this ehapter shall be s1o1bjeet te the iRspeetieR 
previsieRs previded hereiR, The City may inspect any location where a construction activity is 
occurring in accordance with the provisions of this Section 9-7-8. 

B. The owner or occupant of any property where a construction activity is occurring shall permit 
:J:! he e~ity ef flke er its desigRee shall be permitted to enter and inspect aR'/ eeRstrnetieR site 
the property to determine compliance with this Chapter and to take any enforcement action 
permitted under this Chapter. 

C. >JJheRe•Jer the eity ef flke er its desigRee fiRds In the event the City determines that a person 

holding a Stormwater Construction General Permit has not properly implemented the an 

approved s~torm w Water p~ollution p~revention p~lan or that the s~torm w Water p~ollution 
p~revention p~lan requires modification to prevent the discharge or possible discharge of 
pollutants to the sterm water eeR•JeyaRee system er sterm water MS4, a watercourse, or 
waters of the United States, the e~ity ef flke er its desigRee may, at its sele diseretieR, allew a 
time frame grant the person a period not to exceed ten (10) calendar days fer the perseR to 
correct the identified deficiencies. If aR iRspeeter the City det ermines the iRstalled sterm •Nater 
existing erosion, perimeter, or sediment controls are insufficient or place plaeiRg the e~ity ef 
Wffi at risk of violating its NP DES permit, the iRspeeter City may erder ehaRge te the sterm 
wate-F order the person to remove, place, or modify the controls . If the ehaRge te the sterm 

water eeRtrels is Ret aeeeptable er is Ret immediatel't' implemeRted, eRfereemeRt aetieR may 
be takeR. The failure of a person to comply with an order issued pursuant to the preceding 
sentence shall, without limitation, be a violation of this Chapter. 

D. fmergeRey eeRtrel meas1o1res A Stop Work Order may be erdered issued to a person engaged 

in or responsible for a construction activity wheR pell1o1taRts are aet1,1ally leaviRg the site if the 
City determines that there is an unlawful or unpermitted discharge at the construction site. 

E. A complaint of any violat ion of this Chapter that is submitted to the City shall be promptly 

investigated b•1 iRspeetieR . (Ord. fi71, 4 1Q 2007) 

9-7-9: ENFORCEMENT: 

A. Notice 0 Qf Violation : >JJheRe•Jer In the event the e~ity ef fllEe er its desigRee fiRds determines 

that a person has violated a prohibition or failed to meet a requirement of this e~hapter, the 
a1o1therized eRfereemeRt ageRey ma•1 erder the City may compel compliance by serving a 
written R~ otice of v-~ iolation tG upon the respeRsible perseR discharger or the discharger's 
agent or representative by certified mail, return-receipt requested. A Notice of Violation 
issued under this section shall require that the violation(s) be corrected within no more than 

ten (10) calendar days. S1o1eh Retiee A Notice of Violation issued under this section may require, 
without limitation : 

1. lJielatiRg diseharges, praetiees, er eperatieRs That the acts or omissions resulting in a 
discharge 5-haU immediately cease a Rd desist; 

2. The A~batement or remediation of storm water pollution or contamination hazards and the 

restoration of any affected property; and 



3. The P..Qayment of a fine established by the Chapter or by resolution of the City Council to 
cover administrative and remediation costs; and 

4. Implementation of source control or treatment BMPs. 

B. Stop Work Order: In the event an unlawful or unpermitted discharge from a construction 
activity threatens the MS4, waters of the United States or a watercourse, or endangers the 
health or safety of any person, the City shall issue a Stop Work Order to the discharger, which 
shall be served by personal service upon the discharger or the discharger's agent or 
representative. If the discharger fails to obey the Stop Work Order immediately, the City shall 
take such action as may be necessary to insure compliance with this Chapter, including, but 
not limited to, submitting a request for the arrest of the discharger by a peace officer and/or 
an order for the immediate cessation of the discharger's ability to discharge, to include the 
immediate stoppage of all work at a construction site. For purposes of this section, an 
unpermitted discharge shall include a discharge from a construction site that has not 
implemented the proper source control or treatment BMPs. A Stop Work Order issued 

ursuant to this section shall remain in effect until the Cit determines that the res ondent 
remediation restoration activities and or other re uirements 

therein specified. 

C. Deadline: If abatement of a violation and/or restoration of affected property is required, the 
RNotice of Violation shall set forth a deadline within which such remediat ion or restoration 
must be completed . Said Rotice shall fyrther ad11ise that, shol:lld the 11iolator fail to remediate 
or restore withiR the established deadliRe, the work will be do Re by a desigRated 
go11ernmeRtal ageRcy or coRtractor a Rd the expeRse thereof shall be charged to the violator. 

(Ord. €;71, 4 10 2007} Should the respondent fail to perform the remediation or restoration 
therein specified by the deadline, the work may be done by the City or a designated 
governmental agency or contractor and the expense thereof shall be charged to the 
respondent. 

D. Citations: The Environmental Enforcement Official or her or his designee shall have the 
authority to prepare, sign and serve written citations on persons accused of violating a 
provision of this Chapter where there is a criminal sanction. All citations so issued and served 
shall comply with the requirements of NRS 171.1773 and NRS 171.17751(5). 

E. Civil liability instead of criminal sanction: Any person who violates this Chapter may be subject 
to civil liability to the City in an amount not to exceed $500 instead of a criminal sanction. 

F. Civil liability; notice of civil infraction: The Environmental Enforcement Official or her or his 
designee may issue a notice of civil infraction to any person who violates this Chapter. The 
notice of violation must be issued on a form containing the following information: 

1. The location where the violation occurred; 

2. The date and time of the violation; 



3. The signature of the Environmental Enforcement Official or other authorized person who 
issues the notice of civil infraction; 

4. The section of this code that allegedly is being violated; 

5. Information about the manner and time within which the notice of civil infraction must 
be answered; 

6. The amount of the civil fine; and 

7. Any other information relevant to the violation and applicable provisions of this Chapter. 

G. Civil liability; duties of respondent: 

1. A person who responds to a notice of civil infraction must either: 

a. Admit the commission of the infraction and pay the appropriate civil fine; or 

b. Deny liability for the infraction. 

2. A person may admit commission of the infraction by paying to the municipal court the civil 
fine shown on the notice of civil infraction. 

3. A person who denies liability for the infraction must appear in person before the 
municipal court. 

H. Commencement of civil action; procedure: Judicial enforcement of a notice of civil infraction 
must be by way of a civil suit in the municipal court if a person denies liability. A civil action 
may be commenced by the filing of a complaint in the name of the City and the issuance of a 
summons with respect thereto, and service of such complaint and summons on the defendant 
must be made by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the defendant at 
his/her last known address or in any other matter which is authorized by law. The proceedings 
in municipal court for actions commenced pursuant to this Chapter shall be governed by Rules 
1 and 3 through 87 of the Justice Court Rules of Civil Procedure. 

I. Civil Fines: A respondent who commits a civil infraction under this Chapter shall subject to a 
civil fine in the amount of $500.00 per infraction. 

J. Lien: The City shall have a lien pursuant to NRS 108.222 on any property upon which work is 
performed by the City or its contractor in correcting a violation of this Chapter pursuant to this 
Section 9-7-9. The lien shall be calculated, perfected and enforced in accordance with NRS 
108.221, et seq. (Mechanics' and Materialmen's Liens). 

K. Withholding of Approvals: Should the City perform work on the installation, maintenance, or 
removal of stormwater control measures pursuant to this Section 9-7-9, the respondent shall 
reimburse the City the full amount of that expense prior to issuance of any permit, final 
approval or certificate of occupancy associated with property upon which the work is 
performed, and the City shall withhold all permits, final approvals and/or certificates of 



occupancy for the property or which have been requested by the respondent until the 
expense is fully reimbursed to the City. 

9-7-10: APPEAL OF NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND/OR STOP WORK ORDER: 

Any person recei>.•ing a notice of Yiolation may appeal the determination of the aYthorizeEI 

enforcement agenc•,', The notice of appeal myst be recei•,eEI •.Yithin thirty (~O} Ela•,'s from the Elate of 
the notice of •1iolation. Mearing on appeal before the E:lko dty coyndl shall take place v,ithin fort',' fiYe 

(4S} Ela•,'s from the Elate of receipt of the notice of appeal. The Eledsion of the mYnicipal aYthorit\' or 
their Elesignee shall be final. (OrEI. G71, 4 10 2007} 

A. A Notice of Violation or Stop Work Order issued pursuant to this Chapter 7 shall include a 
written notice setting forth the respondent's appeal rights pursuant to this Section 9-7-10. 

B. A respondent served with a Notice of Violation or Stop Work Order may, within fourteen (14) 
calendar days of service thereof, appeal the determination of the Enforcement Official to the 
City Manager by filing a "Notice of Appeal to the City Manager" with the City Clerk containing 
a statement of the basis for the appeal. The City Manager or the City Manager's designee 
shall schedule and conduct a hearing on the Notice of Violation or Stop Work Order within 

fourteen (14) calendar days thereafter, upon no less than seven (7) calendar days' advance 

notice to the respondent, unless otherwise agreed by the respondent and the City. At the 
hearing before the City Manager or the City Manager's designee, the respondent and the City 

shall each be given an opportunity to present arguments and evidence, to include witness 
testimony. The rules of evidence shall not apply. The City Manager or the City Manager's 

designee may terminate the hearing at a time determined in advance by the City Manager or 
the City Manager's designee, provided a reasonable time shall be given to permit the 
respondent and the City to present their respective arguments and evidence. The City 

Manager or City Manager's designee may terminate a hearing at any time upon a 
determination that the additional evidence and argument to be proffered by the respondent 

and the City will be duplicative or not relevant to the issues to be resolved. The City Manager 
or the City Manager's designee shall issue and serve a written decision upon the respondent 

with five (5) business days of the hearing. 

C. A respondent may, within fourteen (14) calendar days of service thereof, appeal the decision 
of the City Manager or the City Manager's designee to the City Council by filing a "Notice of 
Appeal to the City Council" with the City Clerk containing a statement of the basis for the 

appeal. The City Council shall, within forty-five (45) calendar days thereafter, conduct a 
hearing on the decision of the City Manager or City Manager's designee. At the hearing 
before the City Council, the respondent and the City shall each be given an opportunity to 
present arguments and evidence, to include witness testimony. The rules of evidence shall not 
apply. The City Council may terminate the proceeding at a time determined in advance by the 

City Manager or the City Manager's designee, provided a reasonable time shall be given to 
permit the respondent and the City to present their respective arguments and evidence. The 
City Council may terminate a hearing at any time upon a determination that the additional 
evidence and argument to be proffered by the respondent and the City will be duplicative or 

not relevant to the issues to be resolved. The City Council shall render a decision at the 
hearing, to include a continuation thereof in the event the hearing is tabled. 



D. Service upon the respondent for purposes of this Section 9-7-10 shall mean service by certified 
mail, return receipt requested. 

E. A respondent to whom a Notice of Violation or Stop Work Order has been issued must comply 
with the requirements stated therein pending an appeal or appeals pursuant to this Section 9-
7-10. 

F. The failure of a respondent to appeal a decision within the times required in this Section 9-7-
10 shall result in the waiver of those appeal rights. 

G. The decision of the City Council at an appeal hearing pursuant to this Section 9-7-10 shall be 
final for purposes of judicial review. Any action for judicial review shall be commenced by 
filing a petition with the District Court for the Fourth Judicial District, in and for the County of 

Elko, State of Nevada, no more than thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the decision of 
the City Council at an appeal hearing pursuant to this Section 9-7-10. 

9-7-11: INJUNCTIVE RELIEF: 

It shall be 1:1nla'llfl:d for an•1 person to violate an'/ provision or fail to eornpl•1 'llith any of the 
req1:1irernents of this ehapter. If a person has violated or continues to violate the provisions of this 
E~hapter, the a1:1thori;zed enforeernent ageno1 City may petition for a preliminary or permanent 
injunction restraining the person from activities which could create further violations or compelling the 
person to perform abatement or remediation of the violation. (Ord. 671, 4 1Q 2007) 

9-7-12: VIOLATIONS DEEMED A PUBLIC NUISANCE: 

In addition to the enforcement processes and penalties provided, any condition caused or permitted to 
exist in violation of any of the provisions of this E~hapter is hereby determined to be a threat to public 
health, safety, and welfare, and is declared and deemed a nuisance, and may be abated pursuant to the 
provision of Nevada Revised Statutes E~hapter 268 or restored at the violator's expense, and/or civil 
action to abate, enjoin, or otherwise compel the cessation of such nuisance may be taken . The 

provisions of this Section 9-7-12 and the City Nuisance Code are in addition to and not in lieu of the 

other enforcement provisions set forth in this Chapter. (Ord. 671, 4 1Q :,W07) 

9-7-13: CRIMINAL PROS~CUTION PENALTIES: 

Any person that who has violated or continues to violate the requirements of this E~hapter, to include 
any requirement set forth in a Notice of Violation or Stop Work Order issued under this Chapter shall 
be liable to erirninal prosee1:1tion to the follest eMtent of the lai.•,, and shall be subject to a criminal 
penalty of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) per violation per day. Each day a person violates this 

Chapter or remains in violation of this Chapter shall be a separate violation. In addition, any person 
that who has violated or continues to violate this E~hapter may be subject to crim inal prosecution under 
federal or state laws. 

The a1:1thori;zed enforeernent ageney City may recover all attorney fees, court costs and other expenses 
assoeiated i.•tith incurred in the enforcement of this chapter, including sampling and monitoring 
expenses. (Ord. 671, 4 10 2007) 



9-7-14: REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE: 

The remedies listed in this €~hapter are not exclusive of any other remedies available under any 
applicable federal, state or local law and it is within the discretion of the authorized enforcement agency 
to seek cumulative remedies . (Ord. 671, 4 10 2007) 

Section 3: Title 9, Chapter 8 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

9-8-1: PURPOSE: 

The pYrpese ef this chapter is te establish minimYm sterm•A•ater management reqYirements and 
centrals te pretect and safegYard the general healtl:1, safety, and 1.Yelfare ef tl:le pYblic residing in 
watersl:leds witl:lin tl:lis jYrisdictien, and te pretect nearby waterways by redyeing tl:le qyantit•1 ef 
pellYtants tl:lat stermwater picks YP and carries inte sterm s•1stems dYring sterm events. Tl:lis cl:lapter 
seeks te meet tl:lat pyrpese tl:lreygl:1 tl:le fellewing eejecti>.•es: 

A. Minimize increases in sterm•.t.•ater rnneff frem any de•.•elepment in erder te redYce fleeding, 
siltatien, increases in stream temperatYre, and stream bank eresien, and maintain tl:le 
integrity ef stream cl:lannels. 

R. Minimize increases in nenpeint seYrce pellYtien caYsed b\1 stermwater rnneff frem 
de'.•elepment tl:lat may cayse er centribYte te de,.•mstream vielatiens ef , .... ater qYality 
standards ef an\• pellYtant ef cencern. 

C. Minimize the tetal annYal •10lyme ef syrface water rnneff wl:licl:1 flews frem any specific site 
dYring and follewing develepment te net eMceed tl:le predevelapment hydrelagic regime ta 
tl:le maMimYm eMtent practicable. 

D. Redyce stermwater rYneff rates and •1alYmes, sail eresian and nanpaint seYrce pallYtien, 
wl:lere•.•er possible, tl:lreYgl:1 starmwater management centrals and ta ensyre tl:lat tl:lese 
management centrals are praperl•1 maintained and pase na tl:lreat ta pYblic safet•/. 

~. Central and minimize tl:le aba•,e impacts tl:lreYgl:1 implementation ef approved 
pastcanstrnctien stermwater qYality management plans tl:lat place a strong empl:lasis an 
implementing law impact develepment (UD) principles and tecl:lniqYes tl:lat inclYde, bYt are 
net limited te, distyrbing enly tl:le smallest area necessar>1, minimizing sail campactien and 
imperviaYsness in drainage and recl:large areas, preser>.•ing natYral drainages, vegetation and 
byffer zones, and Ytilizing an site starmwater treatment tecl:lniqYes ta tl:le maMimYm eMtent 
practicable. (Ord. 776, 11 12 2013) 

This Chapter implements the City's Post-Construction Stormwater Management BMP Program for 
new development and significant redevelopment (NDSR) projects as described in the City of Elko 
Stormwater Management Plan; Best Management Practices Manual, NPDES Post-Construction 
Stormwater Controls for New Development and Significant Re-Development Projects, City of Elko, 
Nevada and an subse uent revisions that are ado ted b resolution of the Cit Council the "BMP 
Manual"); and National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) General Permit for 
Discharges from Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (Permit No. NVS040000 as of the 
date of enactment of this Ordinance). This Chapter furthers the City's goals of preventing 



downstream violations of water quality standards by pollutants of concern to the maximum extent 
practicable caused or contributed to by stormwater discharges from post-construction projects, and 
promoting the improvement of ambient water quality by reducing the discharge of pollutants in 

stormwater. 

9-8-2: DEFINITIONS: 

i;:or the t=rnrposes of this ehapter, the followiAg shall FReaA: As used in this Chapter, unless the context 

otherwise requires, the words and terms defined in this section shall have the following meanings 
ascribed to them: 

ACCELERATED EROSION : Erosion caused by development activities that exceeds the natural 
processes by which the surface of the land is worn away by the action of water, wind, or chemical 

action. 

APPLICANT: A propert•/ owAer or ageAt of a propert\• owAer person who has filed an NDSR 
aB_pplication for a storFRwater FRaAageFReAt perFRit. 

BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPfil : "8est FRaAageFReAt praetiees" as it pertaiAs to 
storFR'Nater FRaAageFReAt iA this ehapter. More speeifieally, "8MP" refers to the aornFReAt "8est 
MaAageFReAt Praetiees MaAlml, NPD~S Post CoAstn1etioA StorFRwater CoAtrols", KlieAfelder 
CoAs1:1ltaAts, 2012. Schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, general good housekeeping 
practices, pollution prevention and educational practices, maintenance procedures, and other 
management practices to prevent or-"Teduce the discharge of pollutants directly or indirectly to 
the MS4, a watercourse or waters of the United States, to include stormwater, receiving water, or 
stormwater conveyance systems. BMPs include treatment practices, operating procedures, and 

other practices to control site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or water disposal, or drainage from 
raw materials storage. BMPs may be structural or nonstructural. 

BMP OWNER: Any person, such as a property owner or developer, who seeks to own, operate, 
conduct, develop or maintain a Project. 

CHANNEL: A natural or artificial watercourse with a definite bed and banks that conducts 
continuously or periodically flowing water. 

CITY: The City of Elko, Nevada, to include its departments, agencies, officials and employees. 

CLEAN WATER ACT: The Clean Water Act (formerly referred to as the Federal Water Pollution 

Control Act or Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972) Pub. L. 92-500, as 
amended Pub. L. 95-576, Pub. L. 96-483 and Pub. L. 97-117, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. 

DEDICATION : The deliberate appropriatioA of propert>j 9'/ its 0 1.YAer for geAeral p1:1blie 1:1se. The 
appropriation of land, or an easement or other interest therein, by the owner, for the use of the 
public, and accepted for such use by or on behalf of the public. 

DETENTION: The temporary storage of storm runoff iR as part of a stormwater management 
practice with the goals of controlling peak discharge rates and provid ing gravity settling of 
pollutants . 



DETENTION FACILITY: A detention basin or alternat ive structure designed for the purpose of 
temporary storage of stream flow or surface runoff and gradual release of stored wate r at 
controlled rates . 

DEVELOPER: A person who undertakes land disturbance activities. 

DEVELOPMENT: Any disturbance of land including clearing, grubbing, or grading in add ition to the 
construction of facil ities . "Development" does not include "construction activities" as that term is 
defined in Elko City Code Section 9-7-2, tenant improvements, or other similar building 

improvements not involving site work. 

DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT: The City of Elko Development Department or any other City of Elko 
department appointed to implement and/or enforce the provisions of this Chapter. 

DISCHARGE: Any addition of a contaminant, pollutant or pollutants to the MS4, waters of the 
United States or a watercourse, including a "discharge of pollutant" as defined in 40 CFR § 122.2. 

DRAINAGE EASEMENT: A legal rigl=it graRteEt by a laREI01A'Rer to a graRtee allowiRg tl=ie YSe of 
pri•,ate laREI for stormwater maRagemeRt pyrposes. The right to use the land of another for the 
removal or conveyance of stormwater. 

ENFORCEMENT OFFICIAL: The City of Elko Environmental Coordinator, City Code Enforcement 
Officer, or any other City of Elko employee appointed to serve as an Enforcement Official by the 
City Council to enforce the provisions of this Chapter. 

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN: A plan designed to minimize accelerated erosion and 
sediment runoff at a site EIYriRg coRstrYctioR activities development. 

EROSION CONTROL: Any measure that designed to prevent erosion. 

FACILITY: A Stormwater Facility, On Site Facility or Off Site Facility. 

HYDROLOGIC SOIL GROUP (HSG): A natural resource conservation service (USDA-NRCS) classification 
system in which soils are categorized into four (4) runoff potential groups. The groups range from 
"A" soils, with high permeability and little runoff production, to "D" soils, which have low 

permeability rates and produce much more runoff. 

IMPERVIOUS COVER: Those surfaces that cannot effectively infiltrate ra infall (e .g., building rooftops, 
pavement, sidewalks, driveways, etc.). 

INDUSTRIAL STORMWATER PERMIT: A AJ"!ational p~ollutant dQischarge ef limination s~ystem 
(NPDES) permit issued to a commercial industry or group of industries wh ich regulates the pollutant 
levels associated with industrial stormwater discharges or specifies on site pollution control 
strategies. 

INFILTRATION: The process of percolating stormwater into the subsoil. 



JURISDICTIONAL WETLAND : An area that is inundated or saturated by surface water or groundwater 
at a frequency and duration sufficient to support a prevalence of vegetation typ ically adapted for 
life in saturated soil conditions, commonly known as hydrophytic vegetation. 

LAND DISTURBANCE ACTIVITY: Any activity that increases the volume or peak flow discharge rate of 
rainfall runoff from the land surface. This may include grading, grubbing, digging, cutting, scraping, 
or excavating the soil; also included within the definition of "land disturbance activity" are 
compaction, placement of fill materials, paving, construction, substantial removal of vegetation, or 
any activity wh ich bares soil or rock or involves the diversion or piping of any natural or manmade 
watercourse. 

LANDOWNER: Tl:ie legal or heReficial O'NRer of laRd, iREh,1diRg tl:iose 1:ioldiRg tl:ie rigl:it to J3~rel:iase 
or lease tl:ie laRd, or aRy otl:ier t3ersoR l:ioldiRg f3FOJ3rietary rigl:its iR tl:ie laRd. One who is 
recognized and held responsible by the law as the owner of real property. 

LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT (LID): LID features are considered public domain treatment controls. 
LID is an approach to land development or redevelopment that works to manage stormwater 
close to its source. LID employs principles and techniques used in designing sites (starting from 
site layout, and grading and compaction phases of construction) that disturb only the smallest 
area necessary, minimize soil compaction and imperviousness, preserve natural drainages, 
vegetation and buffer zones, and utilize on-site stormwater treatment techniques. LID sites 
reduce and compensate for a development's impact(s) on hydrology and water quality. Rather 
than conventional hardpiping from impervious surfaces, implementing LID principles and 
practices, stormwater can be managed in a way that reduces the impact of built-up areas and 
promotes the natural movement of stormwater within an ecosystem or watershed. Applied on a 
broad scale, LID can support and promote a watershed's hydrologic and ecological functions. 

MAINUNANCE AGRHME:NT: A legally reeorded doE~FReRt tl:iat aets as a t3rot3ert11 deed 
restrietioR, aRd wl:iiEl:i f3FOYides for loRg terFR FRaiRteRaREe of storFR'Nater FRaRageFReRt t3raetiEes. 

MAXIMUM EXTENT PRACTICABLE (MEP): Refers to the technology-based discharge standard for 
MS4s to reduce pollutants in stormwater discharges established by CWA § 402(p). 

MUNICIPAL SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM (MS4): A collection of structures (retention basins, 
ditches, underground pipes, etc.) owned and operated by the City and not connected to the 
sanitary sewer system that is designed to gather stormwater and discharge it, without treatment, 
into local streams and rivers. 

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) STORM WATER DISCHARGE 
PERMIT: A permit issued by EPA (or by a state under authority delegated pursuant to 33 USC 
1342 b that authorizes the dischar e of ollutants to waters of the United States whether the 
permit is applicable on an individual, group, or general areawide basis. 

NDSR APPLICATION: A document submitted to the City requesting permission to engage in an 
NDSR, subject to approval of a PSQMP and execution of an O&M Contract. Approval of the NDSR 
Application, without more, does not constitute approval by the City to engage in an NDSR. 



NEW DEVELOPMENT OR SIGNIFICANT REDEVELOPMENT (NDSR): Land-disturbing activities, 

structural development, redevelopment and/or creation of impervious surfaces on a site, whether 
or not the site was previously developed. 

NONPOINT SOURCE POLLUTION: PollutioR from aR'/ souree other thaR from aR'/ Eliseernilale, 
eoRfiReEI, or Eliserete eoR¥e•1aRee, aREI shall iReluEle, laut Rot lae limited to, pollutaRts from 
agrieulture, sil>.•ieulture, miRiRg, eoRstruetioR, sulasurfaee disposal, aRd urlaaR ruRoff sourees. 8. 
source of waterborne sediments, nutrients or organic and toxic substances originating from 
activities involving the use of land, such as agriculture, mining, forestry, urban development or 

construction. The term does not include a discharge at a specific, single location such as a pipe. 

NONSTRUCTURAL BMP: Refers to techniques that aim to change human behavior to reduce the 
amount of pollutants that enter stormwater systems (pollution prevention). Nonstructural 
measures may include minimization and/or disconnection of impervious surfaces, development 
design that reduces the rate and volume of runoff, public outreach and education, and/or 
restoration or enhancement of natural areas. A list of nonstructural BMPs is shown in Table 6-1 of 

the BMP Manual. 

OFF:SITE FACILITY: A stormwater management measure located outside the subject property 

boundary and described in the pefmit application submittal for land development activity. 

ON:SITE FACILITY: A stormwater management measure located within the subject property 
boundary and described in the pefmit application submittal for land development act ivity. 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE (O&M) CONTRACT: A recorded legally-binding agreement 
between the City and a BMP Owner that acts as a property deed restriction, and which provides 
for long term maintenance of stormwater management practices. The O&M Contract serves to 

document the agreed upon maintenance schedule and commitment by the BMP Owner to 
perform maintenance. 

PERMIT: The current National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System {NPDES) General Permit for 
Discharges from Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems, (Permit No. NVS040000 at the 
time of enactment of this Ordinance), issued to the City of Elko and other public entities. 

PERSON: Any individual, association, organization, partnership, firm, corporation or other entity 
recognized by law and acting as either the owner or the owner's agent. 

POSTCONSTRUCTION STORMWATER: A term used to distinguish stormwater practices used during 
site construction (otherwise known as "construction stormwater" or "erosion and sediment 
control") from those that are used on a permanent basis to control runoff once construction is 
complete and a Notice of Termination has been approved by the Nevada Division of 
Environmental Protection (NDEP). 

POSTCONSTRUCTION STORMWATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT PLAN (PSQMP): A document which 
describes the BMPs and activities to be implemented by a person or business at a development to 
preserve the integrity of the MS4, waters of the United States and watercourses, including 

maintenance and protection of the physical, biological, and chemical qualities of watercourses; to 
prevent an increase in the rate of stormwater runoff; to minimize any increase in stormwater 



runoff volume; to minimize impervious (i.e. paved) areas; to maximize the protection of existing 
drainage features and existing vegetation; to minimize land clearing and grading; to minimize soil 
compaction; and to use other structural or nonstructural BMPs that prevent or minimize changes 
in stormwater runoff. As used in this Chapter, a PSQMP shall be equivalent to and shall meet the 
requirements applicable to an "operations and maintenance plan" as that term is used in the BMP 
Manual. 

PROJECT: An NDSR or any "project" listed in Subsection 3.2.1 (Project Applicability) (together with 
any amendments thereto) of the BMP Manual. 

RECHARGE: The repleRishR'leRt of 1:mdergro1:md \1,ater reser\'es. A hydrologic process where water 
moves downward from surface water to groundwater. 

REDEVELOPMENT: Development, rehabilitation, expansion, or demolition of phased projects that 
disturb~ the ground surface or increase~ the impervious area on ~ previously developed or 
disturbed sites iR areas where eMistiRg laRd 1:1se is high deRsit'I COR'lR'lercial, iRd1:1strial, iRstit1:1tioRal 
or R'11:1lti faR'lil'I resideRtial. 

RESPONDENT: A person to whom a notice of violation, citation or notice of civil infraction has 
been issued pursuant to this chapter or a person who is formally accused by the City of violating 
this chapter. The term "respondent" shall include any person defending a notice of violation, 
citation, notice of civil infraction or complaint issued on the basis of a violation of this chapter or 
who is otherwise subject to any punitive measure pursuant to this chapter. 

REVEGETATION: The recreation of plant communities that cannot be easily distinguished from the 
healthy native plant communities surrounding them or in their general proximity. 

SOURCE CONTROL: Techniques that aim to reduce the quantity and improve the quality of 
stormwater at or near its source by using infrastructure, natural physical resources or changes in 
practices. 

STOP 'AIORK ORDER; AR order iss1:1ed b•/ the cit'I or its desigRee 1.vhich reei1:1ires that all 
coRstr1:1ctioR acti>.•it'I OR a site be stopped. 

STORMWATER: Any surface flow runoff, and drainage consisting entirely of water from any form 
of natural precipitation, and resulting from such precipitation. 

STORMWATER BMP: A generic term used interchangeably with "stormwater practice" or 
"stormwater treatment practice." Stormwater BMPs can be either "structural" or "nonstructural." 

STORMWATER CONVEYANCE SYSTEM : Publicly owned facilities by which stormwater is collected 
and/or conveyed, including, but not limited to, any roads with drainage systems, municipal streets, 
gutters, curbs, inlets, piped storm drains, pumping facilities, retention and detention basins, 
natural and human made dra inage channels, reservoirs and any other drainage structures. 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT: The use of structural or nonstructural practices that are designed to 
reduce stormwater runoff po llutant loads, discharge volumes, peak flow discharge rates and 
detrimental changes in stream temperature that affect water quality and habitat . 



STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (SWMP): A comprehensive program to manage the 
quality of stormwater discharged from the MS4. 

STORM'A'AHR PObLYTION PREVENTION PbAN (SWPPP); /', dec1:1meRt which describes the best 

maRagemeRt practices (8MPs) aRd acti'fities te be implemeRted b•t a perseR er b1:1siRess te 

ideRtif't' se1:1rces ef pell1:1tieR er ceRtamiRatieR at a site aRd the actieRs te elimiRate er red1:1ce 
pell1:1taRt discharges te sterm•.vater, stermwater ceR•.•e11aRce S'J'Stems, aRd/er recei'.'iRg 'Naters te 
the maxim1:1m exteRt practicable. 

STORMWATER QYAblTY M.''.NA<;EMENT PbAN: The dec1:1meRtatieR ef the basis fer desigR, 
ceRstr1:1ctieR, eperatieR a Rd maiRteRaRce ef stermwater maRagemeRt facilities prepesed iR 
accerdaRce with this chapter (see sectieR 9 ~ ~ ef this chapter). 

STORMWATER RUNOFF; Flew ef water res1:1ltiRg frem precipitatieR eR the s1:1rface ef the gre1:1Rd. 

STORMWATER TREATMENT DEVICE: An invention, contrivance or machine designed to capture 

pollutants and contaminants from surface water runoff before they reach the MS4, waters of the 
United States, a watercourse or a body of water. 

STRUCTURAL BMPS OR STRUCTURAL TREATMENT CONTROLS: Public domain treatment controls 
or manufactured (proprietary) treatment controls. Public domain treatment controls are those 

that can be designed by an engineer and have been implemented and tested by numerous 
communities through the nation. Manufactured (proprietary) treatment controls are patented 
devices that have been engineered and constructed by private companies. In either case, 
engineering plans must be developed. A list of structural BMPs is shown in Table 7-1 of the BMP 
Manual (together with any amendments thereto). A list of manufactured (proprietary) treatment 
controls is shown in Table 8-1 of the BMP Manual (together with any amendments thereto). 

WATER QUALITY VOLUME (WOv): The storage needed to capture and treat ninety percent (90%) of 
the average annual stormwater runoff volume. Numerically, WOv will vary as a function of long term 

rainfall statistical data . 

WATERCOURSE: A permaReRt er iRtermitteRt stream er ether bed•/ ef water, either Rat1:1ral er 
h1:1maRmade, 1A1hich gathers er carries s1:1rface ,.,.,ater. (Ord. 776, 11 12 20H) /\ny drainage or 
structure through which water may pass or drain and any body of water, including, but not limited 

to, lakes, ponds, rivers, streams, and bodies of water which have been delineated by federal, 
state, or local agencies in accordance with federal, state, or local laws. 

In the event a term used is this Chapter is not defined in this Chapter, but is defined in another 
Chapter in this Title 9, the definition contained in the other Chapter shall apply. 

9-8-3: APPLICABILITY: 

This chapter shall be applicable te appre•.ied pestceRstr1:1ctieR sterm•Nater Ell:lalit•1 maRagemeRt plaRs 
a Rd stermwater treatmeRt de•,ices. Access a Rd maiRteRaRce agreemeRts are reE11:1ired for the 
fellewiRg de•,elepmeRt acti'fities 1:1Rless waii.•ed accerdiRg te the terms e1:1tliRed iR sectieR li..Z, 
"Wai•,ers Te Applicability", ef this chapter: 



A. An•; new or significant rede>Jelopment in• .. ol>.·ing the follo•Ning: 

1. Rwilding permits, conditional wse permits, or site plan re>Jiews that wowld create ne•N 
indwstrial, commercial, or ci>Jic strwctwres; 

2. Swbdi>Jisions fi,.•e (5) acres or greater in size; 

3. An't' new Ele>Jelopment that wow Id specificall't' enable owtdoor material storage; owtdoor 
material loading/wnloading; fweling areas; owtdoor work, maintenance and wash areas; 
spill pre>Jention, containment and deanwp; ·Naste handling and disposal wses; an'/ 
indwstrial wse/awtomoti>Je repair shop that has been assigned a standard indwstrial 
classification (SIC) code of 5013, 7532, 7533, 7534, 7S37, 7S38, and 7S3Q; 

4. Grading and site permits in• .. ol• .. ing one or more acres of land except for indi>.·idwal single 
famil't' homes which are not swbject to cit't' of Elko hillside Ele>Jelopment regwlations, 
section 

5. Qe>Jelopment acfr .. ities defined in swbsections A2 and A3 of this section that are smaller 

than one acre if swch acfr.·ities are part of a larger common plan or Ele• .. elopment, even 
thowgh mwltiple separate and distinct land development acfr .. ities ma•; t ake place at 
different times on different schedwles; or 

~- Qm,•elopment that will indwde constrncted open channels and local or regional detention 
basins for flood management. 

In addition, all plans mwst be re· .. iewed b't' the cit'/ of Elko to protect established water 
qwalit't' standards after development of the site and to enswre that postconstrwction rnnoff 
le•.·els are consistent i.•,ith local and regional watershed plans. The cit't' of Elko shall not 
appro¥e plans that fail to compl't' with this chapter or an't' applicable watershed plans. 

R. Complete applications for applicable Ele• .. elopment permits and entitlements that ha¥e been 
swbmitted before the effecfr .. e Elate hereof are exempt from the reqwirements of this section. 

Q. Permits and other appro•.·als that were issweEI b•; the cit't' of Elko before the effecti>Je Elate of 
this section shall not be swbject to this section as long as the accompan't'ing permit is >Jalid. 
(Ord. 77~, 11 12 2013) 

This Chapter applies to all Projects during planning, design and/or construction. 

9-8-4: RESPONSIBILITY FOR ADMINISTRATION AND COMPLIANCE: 

The cit't' of Elko shall administer and enforce the pro>Jisions of this chapter. (Ord. 77~, 11 12 2013) 

The Development Department shall implement and enforce this Chapter through the Development 
Application and PSQMP review processes, the enforcement provisions of this Chapter and an 
Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Contract. Projects that do not satisfy the requirements of this 
Chapter (including those portions of the SWMP, BMP Manual and Permit that are incorporated herein 



by reference), will not receive approval by the Development Department and may not commence or 

proceed. Development Department approval of the PSQMP is required for final approval by the City. 

This Chapter incorporates portions of the SWMP, BMP Manual and Permit by reference. These 
documents are available for inspection and copying during normal business hours at the office of the 
City of Elko Environmental Coordinator, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, Nevada. References to the BMP 
Manual and Permit shall include any subsequent amendments thereto, to include renumbered or 
retitled provisions containing the applicable substantive requirements. 

The standards set forth herein and promulgated pursuant to this Chapter are minimum standards; 

therefore, compliance with this Chapter does not ensure that there will be no contamination, 
pollution, nor unauthorized discharge of pollutants. The prevention of contamination, pollution, or 
unauthorized discharges of pollutants is the responsibility of each person subject to the applicable 
provisions of Title 9 of the City Code, federal and state law, and the holder of an NPDES permit or 
other permit pertaining to discharges. The acts and omissions of employees and agents in the course 
and scope of their employment or official duties shall be deemed the acts and omissions of their 
employers and principals, except as otherwise provided by law. 

9-8-5: PERMIT PROnDURES AND REQUIREMENTS NDSR APPLICATION, POSTCONSTRUTION 
STORMWATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT PLAN (PSQMP) REVIEW AND O&M CONTRACT: 

A. Permit ReE41:1ired: Ne lande•nner er land eperater shall recehrn an11 ef the b1:1ilding, grading er 
ether land de1Jelepment permits reE41:1ired fer land dist1:1rbance acti1Jities withe1:1t first meeting 
the reE41:1irements ef this chapter prier te eemmencing the prepesed actii.•it•/. Project 
Requirements: No Project subject to this Chapter, the BMP Manual, or the Permit shall 
commence or continue unless: 

1. A properly completed NDSR Application has been approved by the Development 
Department; 

2. A PSQMP has been (a) determined to satisfy the requirements of this Chapter, (b) 
approved by the Development Department and (c) recorded with the Elko County 
Recorder; and 

3. An O&M Contract has been (al executed by the BMP Owner and the City and (bl recorded 
with the Elko County Recorder. 

B. De1Jelepment Applicatien: An 11 persen s1:1bmitting an't' ferm ef applicatien 1:1nder this sectien 
fer de•.ielepment ef prepert't' te the city ef Elke fer appre1Jal shall cenc1:1rrent l11 s1:1bmit te the 
city ef Elke a pestcenstr1:1ctien stermwater management plan as a part ef the applicatien. 
NDSR Application: The NDSR Application shall be submitted on a form provided by the City 
and shall contain the following information: 

1. The name, address, telephone number and email address of the BMP Owner. 

2. A detailed description of the Project of the potential impacts that the NDSR will have on 
the City, specifically related to stormwater quantity and quality, including supporting 



documentation and all information needed to complete the forms in the Appendix of the 
BMP Manual. 

C. Grading Permit Applieatien Req1:Airements: Unless speeifieall11 eMeepted by tf:iis ef:iapter, an11 
land ewner er eperater desiring a permit for a land dist1:Areanee aeti1Jit1• sf:iall Sl:Aemit te tf:ie 
eity ef Ell,e a grading permit applieatien meeting tf:ie terms ef seetien 9 g 2 "Applieaeility", ef 
tf:iis ef:iapter 1.vf:iief:i applieatien m1:Ast be aeeempanied e11 tf:ie follewing dee1:Aments: 

1. A pesteenstr1:Aetien sterm•.t.'ater q1:Aality management plan demenstrating tf:iat tf:ie prejeet 
11.•ill meet tf:ie req1:Airements ef seetien .. 

2. Prejeet plans sf:iewing a s1:Anieient le'.'el ef detail te demenstrate tf:iat tf:ie prejeet meets all 
applieaele eity ef Elke req1:Airements. 

~- A pesteenstr1:Aetien stermwater q1:Aality management plan demenstrating tf:iat tf:ie prejeet 
will meet tf:ie req1:Airements ef seetien ~ ... ·~ 

4. A stermwater treatment de'.'iee aeeess and maintenanee agreement wf:iief:i meets tf:ie 
req1:Airements ef seetien 9 8 10 ef tf:iis ef:iapter. 

Permits iss1:Aed !:Ander tf:iis seetien sf:iall be 1,alid frem tf:ie date ef iss1:Aanee tf:ire1:Agf:i tf:ie date tf:ie eity 
ef Elke netifies tf:ie permit f:ielder tf:iat all stermwater management praetiees f:ia'.'e passed tf:ie final 
inspeetien req1:Aired !:Ander tf:ie permit er asseeiated dei.•elepment appre'.'als eMpire, wf:iief:ie•,er 
eernrs first. (Ord. 77fJ, 11 12 20H) 

C. PSQMP: The PSQMP shall be written by a design engineer or plan designer and contain the 
following: 

1. Identification of: 

(a) The BMP Owner(s); 

(b) The parties or parties responsible for operation and maintenance of the BMPs; and 

(c) Source(s) of funding for continued operation and maintenance of the BMP(s). 

2. A schedule for BMP implementation, maintenance and monitoring consistent with the 
requirements and guidelines set forth in the SWMP, the BMP Manual (to include, without 
limitation, Subsection 3.2.6) and the Permit (together with any amendments to the 
applicable provisions in either document). 

3. A description of the Stormwater Facility and its components, inspection priorities, an 
inspection schedule for each component, a description of routine and infrequent 
maintenance tasks, and a schematic for each BMP consistent with the requirements and 
guidelines set forth in the BMP Manual. 

4. The planning and design principles described in Section 4 of the BMP Manual. 



5. Any further actions required by the City to bring BMPs into compliance with applicable 

standards. 

6. As-built plans for any Stormwat~r Faciliti~s located on-site after final construction is 
completed. 

7. The elements described in Subpart VI.E. of the Permit (together with any amendments 

thereto). 

D. O&M Contract Elements: The O&M Contract ~h~ contain the following elements: 

1. The contract document signed by the BMP Owner and the City containing the terms and 

conditions set forth in this section; 

2. The PSQMP; and 

3. A drawing of easements on a syst~m location map with sufficient detail and accuracy to 

enable the City or the BMP Owner to locate the BMPs. 

E. O&M Contract Terms and Conditions: The O&M Contract shall contain the following terms and 
conditions: 

1. The BMP Owner shall (a) provide for adequate long-term maintenance and continuation 

of the stormwater control measures (including the BMPs and/or Stormwater Facility) 
described in the PSQMP and shown on an attached location map, deed of easement or 
drawing, and (bl ensure that the BMPs and/or Stormwater Facility are and remain in 
proper working condition in accordance with the SWMP, approved design standards, rules 

and regulations, and applicable laws. 

2. The BMP Owner shall inspect and perform preventative maintenance activities at intervals 
described in the inspection schedule included in the O&M Contract and/or PSQMP, 
together with ongoing and regular landscaping and trash removal as needed. 

3. The BMP Owner shall submit an annual report to the City according to a schedule 
established by the City in the O&M Contrc1ct. The report shall include the PSQMP 
(together with any amendments or revisiQns thereto) documenting the inspection 
schedule; times of inspection; remedial actions taken to repair, modify or reconstruct the 

BMPs and/or Stormwater Facility; the state of control measures; and notification of any 

planned change in the responsibility for the BMPs and/or Stormwater Facility. 

4. The BMP Owner shall grant to the City or its agent or contractor the right of entry at 
reasonable times and in a reasonable manner for the purpose of inspecting, operating, 
installing, constructing, reconstructing, maintaining or repairing the BMPs and/or 
Stormwater Facility. 

5. The BMP Owner shall grant to the City !b~necessary easements and rights-of-way to 
maintain perpetual access from public rights-of-way to the BMPs and/or Stormwater 

Facilit ent or contractor. 



6. If, upon inspection, the City finds that the BMP Owner has failed to properly maintain the 
BMPs and/or Stormwater Facility, the City may order the work performed within thirty 

(30) days. In the event the work is not performed within the specified time, the BMP 
Owner agrees to allow the City to enter the property and take whatever steps it 

reasonabl deems necessar to maintain the BMPs and or Stormwater Facilit . This 
rovision shall not be construed to allow the Cit to erect an structure of a ermanent 

nature on land owned by the BMP Owner without first obtaining the BMP Owner's 
written approval. 

7. The Cit is not re uired to maintain or re air the BMPs and or Stormwater Facilit . The 
BMP Owner shall reimburse the City upon demand for its costs incurred in the 

maintenance of the BMPs and/or Stormwater Facility. 

8. If the BMP Owner fails to pay the City for the above costs within fourteen (14) calendar 

days of receipt of written demand therefor, the BMP Owner authorizes the City to recover 
the cost from the BMP Owner through appropriate legal action and the BMP Owner will 
be liable for the reasonable expenses of collection, court costs and attorney fees. 

9. The BMP Owner and its heirs, administrators, executors, assigns and successors in interest 
shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City and its officers, agents and employees 

from and against any and all damages, accidents, casualties, occurrences, claims, suits, 
actions, costs or attorney's fees which might arise or be asserted, in whole or in part, 

against the City from the construction, presence, existence or maintenance of the BMPs 
and/or Stormwater Facilities subject to the O&M Contract. In the event a claim is asserted 
against the City, its officers, agents or employees, the City shall notify the BMP Owner and 

the BMP Owner shall indemnify and defend at the BMP Owner's expense any suit based 
on the claim. If any judgment or claim against the City, its officers, agents or employees is 
allowed, the BMP Owner will pay all costs and expenses in connection therewith. The City 
will not indemnify, defend or hold harmless the BMP Owner from any claims arising from 
any failure of a BMP and/or Stormwater Facility, regardless of any language in any 

document the BMP Owner may prepare or provide. 

10. The BMP Owner shall not transfer, assign or modify its responsibilities with respect to the 
O&M Contract without the City's prior written consent. 

11. No waiver of any provision of the O&M Contract shall affect the right of any party to 
thereafter enforce such a rovision or to exercise an ri ht or remed available. 

12. The BMP Owner shall record a map showing and accurately defining the easements for 

BMPs and or Stormwater Facilities. The ma must a reference the Count Recorder's 
book and page numbers where the O&M Contract and its attachments are recorded and 
(bl contain a note stating that the BMP Owner is responsible for maintaining the BMPs 
and/or Stormwater Facilities. 

13. The BMP Owner shall record the O&M Contract (including attachments) with the Elko 
County Recorder and the O&M Contract (including attachments) shall constitute a 



covenant running with the land and shall be binding upon the BMP Owner and the BMP 

Owner's heirs, administrators, executors, assigns and successors in interest. 

9-8-6: STANDARDS PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS: 

A. PostcoRstn,.ctioR Stormwater Q1:1ality MaRagemeRt PlaR; The postcoRstr1:1ctioR stormwater 
EIYalit•r maRagemeRt plaR FeE11:1ired iR sectioR 9 8 8 of this chapter shall be prepared by a 
liceRsed professioRal ci11il eRgiReer (PE:), registered iR the state of Ne11ada, aRd shall be 

prepared iR accordaRce with the p1:1blicatioR: "Rest MaRagemeRt Practices MaR1:1al, NPDE:S 
Post CoRstr1:1ctioR Stormwater CoRtrols", KlieRfelder CoRs1:1 ltaRts, 2012, aRd shall satisf\• the 
reE11:1iremeRts of sectioR 9 8 10 of this chapter. The performaRce staRdards are set forth iR the 
"City Of [lko CoRstrnctioR Site Rest MaRagemeRt Practices MaRdbook" together ,.,,ith aR't' 
addeRda, all of which are available for review at the office of the city clerk, a Rd 1.tthich are 
adopted b•r this refereRce a Rd iRcorporated hereiR aRd made part hereof as if set forth iR f1:1II. 
(Ord. 77fJ, 11 12 2013) 

In the event a Project subject to this Chapter is a public works project pursuant to NRS Chapter 338, in 
addition to the other requirements of this Chapter, the Enforcement Official or her or his designee 
may inspect the Project periodically throughout the course of the work thereon to verify compliance 
with this Cha ter the PS MP and O&M Contract. The results of all such ins ections shall be re orted 
to the City of Elko Public Works Department and City Manager. The remedies provided under this 
Cha ter or an O&M Contract shall be in addition to an remedies rovided under a ublic works 

contract. 

9 8 7: WAIVE:RS TO APPblCARlblTY: 

h•erir applicaRt for a permit to c0Rd1:1ct a laRd dist1:1rbaRce activity shall perform all acts, to the 
maxim1:1m exteRt practicable, Reeded to pro11ide stormwater maRagemeRt as reE11:1ired by this chapter, 
1:1Rless a 1.vritteR reE11:1est to wai•te a gi11eR reE11:1iremeRt is graRted by the city of E: lko at its discretioR. 

A, The miRim1:1m reE11:1iremeRts for postcoRstr1:1ctioR stormwater maRagemeRt ma•r be \ttai11ed iR 
whole or iR part ORiy if at least oRe of the followiRg cirn1mstaRces exists: 

1, The proposed de•,elopmeRt is Rot likel•r to impair attaiRmeRt of the objectives of this 
chapter. 

2. AlterRati•,e miRim1:1m reE11:1iremeRts for OR site management of stormwater discharges 
ha•,e beeR established in a stormwater maRagemeRt plaR that has beeR approved by the 
cit>y of E:lko and the implementation of the plaR by the applicant is reE11:1ired by local 
ordinance. 

~- Pro•,ision is made to manage stormwater by aR off site facility . The off site facilit•r is 
reE11:1ired to be in place, aRd is desigRed aRd adeE11:1ately sii!ed to provide a level of 
stormwater coRtrol that is eE11:1al to or greater than that which wo1:1ld be afforded by on 
site practices, aRd there is a legall•r obligated eRtit•r respoRsible for loRg term operat ioR 
and maintenance of the storm· ... •ater practice. 



4. Tl=ie cit•r ef Elke fiRds tl=iat R'!eetiRg tl=ie R'liRiR'l1,1R'I eR site R'laRageR'leRt req1,1ireR'leRts is Ret 

feasible d1,1e te tl=ie Rat1,1ral er eMistiRg pl=i•tsical cl=iaracteristics ef a site aRd tl=ie 

de¥elepR'leRt 11,ill Ret Regati¥el•r iR'lpact eMistiRg p1,1blic iRfrastrnct1,1re. 

S. NeRstr1,1ct1,1ral practices 'Nill be 1,1sed eR sites tl=iat red1,1ce: 

a. Tl=ie geReratieR ef sterR'lwater freR'I tl=ie site; 

b. Tl=ie size a Rd cest ef sterR'l .. vater sterage; aRd 

c. Tl=ie pell1,1taRts geRerated at tl=ie site. 

8. IR iRstaRces wl=iere eRe ef tl=ie abe¥e ceRditieRs applies, tl=ie cit·r ef Elke R'la'( graRt a 1.-.•ai·,er, at 

its discretieR, freR'I strict ceR'lpliaRce witl=i tl=iese sterR'lwater R'laRageR'leRt req1,1ireR'leRts, as 

leRg as acceptable R'litigatieR R'!easmes are pre·,ided. l=lewe·.•er, te be el igible fer a wai·,er, tl=ie 

applicaRt R'11,1st deR'leRstrate te tl=ie satisfactieR ef tl=ie cit'( ef Elke tl=iat tl=ie wai•,er will Ret 

res1,1lt iR aR't' ef tl=ie fellewiRg iR'lpacts te dewRstreaR'I waterwa•rs: 

1. ()eterieratieR ef eMistiRg c1,1l•,erts, bridges, daR'ls, er etl=ier strnct1,1res; 

2. ()egradatieR ef bielegical f1,1RctieRs er l=iabitat; 

3. Accelerated streaR'I baRk er streaR'lbed eresieR er siltatieR; er 

4. IRcreased tl=ireat ef fleed daR'lage te p1,1blic l=iealtl=i, life, prepert'(, (Ord. 776, 11 12 2013) 

Q 8 8; REQUIREMENTS FOR STORM)JJAUR QIJAblTV MANAGEMENT PbAN; 

!'.. SterR'l 1,vater Q1,1ality MaRageR'leRt PlaR Req1,1ired Fer All ()e¥elepR'leRts: Ne applicatieR fer 

de¥elepR'leRt s1,1bject te tl=iis cl=iapter (see sectieR 9 8 3 ef tl=iis cl=iapter) will be appre•,ed 1,1Rless 

it iRcl1,1des a sterR'lwater q1,1alit'( R'laRageR'leRt plaR (alse referred te iR tl=iis cl=iapter as tl=ie 

"plaR") detailiRg l=iew r1,1Reff aRd asseciated water q1,1alit'( iR'lpacts res1,1ltiRg freR'I tl=ie 

de¥elepR'leRt 'Nill be ceRtrelled er R'laRaged iR accerdaRce witl=i tl=ie perferR'laRce staRdards 

establisl=ied iR tl=ie latest editieR ef tl=ie cit•r ef Elke "Rest MaRageR'leRt Practices MaR1,1al, 

NP()ES Pest CeRstrnctieR SterR'!water CeRtrels". Tl=ie plaR sl=iall ceRtaiR s1,1fficieRt iRferR'latieR 

fer tl=ie cit'( ef Ell,e te e1,al1,1ate tl=ie eR•JireRR'leRtal iR'lpact, effecti¥eRess, a Rd acceptabilit'( ef 

tl=ie meas1,1res prepesed B'( tl=ie applicaRt fer red1,1ciRg aa•,erse impacts frem stermwater. Tl=ie 

plaR R'11,1st f1,1ll't• describe tl=ie prepesed preject iR drawiRgs a Rd Rarrafr,e. 

Tl=ie fiRal stermwater q1,1alit't• R'laRageR'leRt plaR R'11,1st be s1,1bmitted 'Nitl=i tl=ie de¥elepmeRt 

plaR(s). Ne permit(s) sl=iall be iss1,1ed 1,1Rtil a satisfacter'( fiRal stermwater q1,1alit'( maRagemeRt 

plaR, er a wai¥er tl=iereef, l=ias beeR appre•,ed b•r tl=ie cit't• ef Elke. 

8. FiRal SterR'lwater Q1,1alit'( MaRagemeRt PlaR Req1,1ireR'leRts; 

1. CeRtact IRfermatieR; Tl=ie applicaRt sl=iall pre¥ide tl=ie Rame, address, aRd telepl=ieRe 

R1,1mber ef all perseRs l=ia¥iRg a legal iRterest iR tl=ie prepert'( aRd tl=ie taM refereRce R1,1mber 

aRd parcel Rl,IR'IBer ef tl=ie prepert't• er preperties affected. Tl=iis iRferR'latieR sl=iall iRcl1,1de a 



lecus map and descriptien ef tl:le eMisting zening and land 1:1se (incl1:1ding all eMisting 
str1:1ct1:1res) at tl:le site as well as tl:le prapesed land 1:1se. 

2. Mydrelegy Repert: Tl:le applicant sl:lall s1:1lamit a "1ydreleg•1 repert, w"1ic"1 m1:1st incl1:1de: a 
map sl:101.t.iing t"1e lecatien(s) ef eMisting and prapesed easements; eMisting and prepesed 
1:1tilities; eMisting and prepesed tepegrapl:ly wit"1 cente1:1rs at twe feet (2'} interi .. als and tl:le 
eMisting site "1•1drelegy. Tl:lis sl:lall censist ef a descriptien and delineatien ef eMisting 
stermwater cenve\•ances, impe1:1ndments, and 1Netlands en er adjacent ta tl:le site er inte 
w"1ic"1 stermwater flews; s1:1rface water drainage ind1:1ding streams, pends, c1:1lverts, and 
ditcl:les; a delineatien ef 1QQ year fleedplains and estimated seasenal "1ig"1 gre1:1ndwater 
ele•.iatien in areas ta be 1:1sed fer stermwater retentien, detentien, er infiltratien (if 
applicable). 

A drainage area map sl:lall accempany tl:le "1't•dralegy repert and sl:lall sl:lew eMisting and 
prepesed vegetatien and gra1:1nd s1:1rfaces, and pre and pest censtr1:1ctien watersl:led 
lae1:1ndaries, drainage area and stermwater flew patl:ls. 

Tl:le plan sl:lall ind1:1de a descriptien and drawings ef all cempenents ef tl:le prapesed 
drainage s•1stem ind1:1ding: lecatiens, cress sectiens, and prefiles ef all lareel,s, streams, 
drainage swales and tl:leir metl:leds ef stalailizatien; all meas1:1res fer tl:le detentien, 
retentien er infiltratien ef water; all meas1:1res for the pretectien ef water q1:1ality; tl:le 
str1:1ct1:1ral details fer all cempenents ef tl:le prepesed drainage s•1stems and stermwater 
management facilities; netes en drawings specifying materials ta be 1:1sed, censtr1:1ctien 

specificatiens, and etl:ler feat1:1res t•/pically sl:lewn in s1:1c"1 plans and drawings, and 
eMpected "1ydreleg11 (calc1:1latiens ta be pra•.iided as described in s1:1lasectien 8~ ef tl:lis 
sectien). 

~- Calc1:1latiens: M11drelegic and h•1dra1:1lic design calc1:1latiens for the prede· .. elepment and 
pestdevelepment cenditiens for tl:le design sterms sl:lall lae pre•.iided in tl:le manner 
specified in tl:le "8est Management Practices Man1:1al, NPDES Pest Censtr1:1ctien 
Sterm .... •ater Centrals", Klienfelder Cens1:1ltants, 2Ql:2. S1:1c"1 calculatiens sl:lall ind1:1de: a) 
descriptien ef tl:le design sterm freq1:1enc•1, intensit't' and d1:1ratien, la} time ef 
cencentratien, c) sail c1:1rve n1:1mlaers er r1:1neff ceefficients, d) peak r1:1neff fie .... • rates and 
tetal r1:1neff vel1:1mes fer eac"1 watersl:led area, e) infiltratien rates, wl:lere applicable, f) 
c1:1lvert capacities, g) flew •.ielecities, "1) data en tl:le increase in rate and vel1:1me ef r1:1neff 
fer tl:le design sterms referenced in tl:le "8est Management Practices Man1:1al, NPDES Pest 
Censtr1:1ctien Stermwater Centrals", Klienfelder Cens1:1ltants, 2Q12, and i) dec1:1mentatien 
ef se1:1rces fer all cemp1:1tatien metheds and field test res1:1lts . 

4. Seils lnformatien: If a stermwater management central meas1:1re depends en tl:le 
"1•1drelegic preperties ef sails (e.g., infiltratien basins), t"1en tl:le applicant sl:lall s1:1lamit a 
sails repert ta tl:le city ef Elke. Tl:le sails repert sl:lall lae based en en site baring legs er sail 
pit prafiles. Tl:le n1:1mlaer and lecatien ef req1:1ired sail laerings er sail pits sl:lall lae 
determined based en ..... !:lat is needed ta determine tl:le s1:1italailit11 and distri la1:1tien ef sail 
t•1pes present at tl:le lecatien ef t"1e central meas1:1re. 

S. Maintenance And Repair Element !=er Prit.iate Stermwater Facilities: The design and 
planning ef all stermwater management facilities shall ind1:1de detailed maintenance and 



repair preeed1:1res te ens1:1re their eentin1:1ed f1:1netien. Cernpenents ef a sterrnwater 
rnanagernent faeilit'; that need te he rnaintained and the eq1:1iprnent and skills er training 
req1:1ired rn1:1st be identified and deseribed in the plan. Pre•.•isien for the periedie review 
and eval1:1atien ef the effeetiveness ef the rnaintenanee pregrarn and the need fer 
revisiens er additienal rnaintenanee preeed1:1res shall be inel1:1ded in the plan. 

G. Maintenanee And Drainage Easernents And .O.greernents: The applieant rn1:1st ens1:1re aeeess 
te all sterrn'l.'ater treatrnent praetiees at the site for the p1:1rpese ef inspeetien and repair 
h'; seeming all the rnaintenanee easernents needed en a perrnanent basis. These 
easernents shall be reeerded with the plan and shall rnn •.vith the land. 

Prier te the iss1:1anee ef an'}' perrnit that req1:1ires a sterrnwater rnanagernent faeilit';, the 
applieant er ewner ef the site rn1:1st e1we1:1te a rnaintenanee agreernent with the eit>; ef 
Elke that shall be binding en all s1:1bseq1:1ent e•A•ners ef land served h•; the sterrnwater 
rnanagernent faeilit•;. The rnaintenanee agreernent shall pre•.•ide for aeeess te the faeilit•; at 
reasenahle tirnes for periedie inspeetien h'I the Cit'; ef Elke, er its eentraeter er agent, and 
fer reg1:1lar er speeial assessrnents ef prepert>; e1 .... ners te ens1:1re that the faeilit'; is 
rnaintained in preper werking eenditien, and that it rneets the design standards and an•; 
ether previsiens established h'; this ehapter. The rnaintenanee agreernent shall be 
reeerded h'; the Cit>; ef Elke with the Elke Ce1:1nt'}' Reeerder. 

Maintenanee ef all pri>.•ate sterrnwater rnanagernent faeilities shall he ens1:1red thre1:1gh 
the ereatien ef a forrnal rnaintenanee agreernent that rn1:1st be appreved h'I the Cit'; ef 
Elke and reeerded inte the land reeerd prier te final aeeeptanee ef the de•.'eleprnent h'; the 
Cit'; ef Elke. As part ef the agreernent, a sehed1:1le shall be develeped for periedie 
inspeetiens and rnaintenanee te ens1:1re preper perforrnanee ef the faeilit'}'. 

All sterrnwater rnanagernent faeilities rn1:1st 1:1nderge, at the rninirn1:1rn, an ann1:1al 
inspeetien te dee1:1rnent rnaintenanee and repair needs, and te ens1:1re eernplianee with 
the req1:1irernents ef this ehapter. These needs rna'}' inel1:1de: rerneval ef silt, litter and 
ether debris frern all eateh basins, inlets, and drainage pipes, grass e1:1tting and vegetatien 
rerneval, and neeessar'}' replaeernent ef landseape \'egetatien . An'; rnaintenanee needs 
rn1:1st be addressed in a tirnel't' rnanner, as deterrnined h•; the Cit'; ef Elke, and the 
inspeetien and rnaintenanee req1:1irernent rna'}' be inereased as deerned neeessar>; te 
ens1:1re preper f1:1netiening ef the sterrnwater rnanagernent faeilit•;. See seetien Q g 10 ef 
this ehapter fer fyrther inforrnatien en rnaintenanee req1:1irernents. 

7. Other Envirenrnental Perrnits: The applieant rn1:1st either attaeh apprepriate eresien and 
sedirnent eentrel plans te the sterrnwater pell1:1tien preventien plan (if req1:1ired 1:1nder 
ether pre•.'isiens ef this Cede) er prepare an eresien and sedirnent eentrel plan ernple\•ing 
praetiees that eenferrn te the "Cit'; ef Ell<e Censtr1:1etien Site 8est Managernent Praetiees 
Mandbeek" fer all eenstrnetien aetivities related te irnplernenting en site str1:1et1:1ral 8MPs 
inel1:1ded in the final sterrnwater q1:1alit't' rnanagernent plan. 

The applieant shall ens1:1re that all ether applieable envirenrnental perrnits ha•.Je been 
aeq1:1ired fer the site prier te appre•.Jal ef the final sterrnwater design plan. 



8. Performance G1,1arantee: The City of Elko may req1,1ire the s1,1bmittal of a performance 
g1,1arantee in a form pro•.•ided 1,1nder s1,1bsection 3 3 228 of this Code in order to ens1,1re 
tl:lat the stormwater q1,1alit·t management plan l:las been implemented or •.viii be 
implemented correctl·t and by a certain date. Tf:ie am01,1nt of the performance g1,1arantee 
sl:lall be the total estimated constr1,1ction cost of tl:le storm•.-.iater management practices 
appro·,ed 1,1nder tf:ie permit. Tf:ie performance g1,1arantee sf:iall contain forfeit1,1re 
pro•.•isions, appro11ed b•t the City of Elko, for fail1,1re to complete -.•,ark specified in tl:le 
stormwater q1,1ality management plan. 

Tl:le Cit·t of Elko ma·t partially release tl:le performance g1,1arantee at its discretion as work 
is satisfactoril•t completed. Notwithstanding tf:ie forego ing, tl:le performance g1,1arantee 
sl:lall be released in f1,1II only 1,1pon s1,1bmission of "as b1,1ilt plans" and 1.vritten certification 
by a licensed professional engineer (PE), tf:iat tf:ie stormwater q1,1ality management plan 

has been folly implemented. Tl:le Cit·t of Elko will make a final on site inspection to ens1,1re 
tf:iat all constr1,1ction is in f1,1II compliance witf:i tl:le appr011eEI plan(s) and tf:ie pro'lisions of 
this cl:lapter. (Ord. 776, 11 12 :ZOH) 

Q 8 Q: CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION PROVISIONS: 

A. Notice Of Constr1,1ction Commencement: The applicant m1,1st notify the City of Elko in aEl'lance 
before the commencement of constr1,1ction. D1,1ring constr1,1ction, inspection of stormwater 
management facilities ma•t be req1,1ireEI b•t tf:ie City of Elko and, if so, tf:ie inspections sf:iall be 
conEl1,1cteEI by a licensed professional engineer (PE) . All inspections shall be doc1,1menteEI b·t 
written reports prepared b·t the licensed professional engineer and sl:lall contain tl:le follo•A•ing 
information: 

1. Tf:ie Elate and location of the inspection; 

2. Whetl:ler constrnction is in compliance witl:1 tl:le appro'led stormwater q1,1ality 
management plan; 

~- If and wf:iere 11ariation from tf:ie appro'leEI constrnction specifications ha'le occ1,1rred . If 
'lariations from tl:le appro·.•ed constr1,1ction plans l:la'le occ1,1rreEI, tl:le professional 
engineer's report will specify tf:ie nat1,1re and location of any ·.iariation(s). 

8. As 81,1ilt Plans; All applicants are req1,1ired to s1,1bmit act1,1al "as b1,1ilt'' plans for any stormwater 
management facilities located on site after final constr1,1ction l:las been completed. One hard 
copy, together with a digital cop•t of the "as b1,1ilt" plans m1,1st be pro'liEled to the Cit·t of Elko. 
Tf:ie plans m1,1st sf:101.v tf:ie final design specifications for all stormwater management facilities 
and m1,1st be certified b\• a licensed professional engineer (PE) registered in tl:le state of 
Ne'laEla. A final inspection b•t the city of Ell,o is req1,1ireEI before the release of performance 
sec1,1rities can occ1,1r. 

C. landscaping And Stabilization Req1,1irements; An·t area of land from •.vhich the nat1,1ral 
'legetati'le co•,er l:las been eitf:ier partiall•t or wf:ioll•t cleared, or remo·.•eEI b·t Ele'lelopment 
acti'lities shall be: 1) stabilized witl:lin fo1,1rteen (14) days of the s1,1bstantial completion of s1,1ch 
clearing and constr1,1ction in order to pre11ent erosion and pro'liEle sediment control and 2) 
re•.•egetateEI no later than tl:le neMt growing season. Tf:ie owner of tl:le property sf:iall be 



respensible for implementing apprepriate fertilizatien and irrigatien measures if deemed 
neeessaru b" the cit .. ef flke ' r 1- r • 

The follet.Ning eriteria shall appl'I ta the revegetatien requirement: 

Cempl:te r_e\•egetatien must be permanentl't' established in aeeerdanee t.Nith ene ef the 
follet.Ning time frames, and at the sale diseretien ef the eit'I ef flke: 

1. \\'i~h~n ti.Ne (2) 'l~ars after the issuanee ef a final eertifieate ef eeeupane'I (C ef O) ef the 
building er premises, subjeet ta the exeeutien ef a perfermanee agreement t.Nith the cit" ef 

flke t.Nhi_eh indudes bending er same etl:ier aeeeptable form ef seeurit't' that guarantees
1 

eemplet1en ef the required .,.,erk; er 

2. Prier ta final a~preval ef the prejeet; er 

~- '.Vithin twe (2) ·1ears after eempletien ef grading aetit1it'1, subjeet ta the exeeutien ef a 
perfermanee ~greement t.Nith the cit'/ ef flke ta inelude bending er same ether aeeeptable 
farm ef seeunt•1 that guarantees eempletien ef the required 'Hark. 

Seed_ing er reseeding sheuld eeeur during the seasen mast apprepriate for the plant 
spee1es and/er t•1pe ef ·.•egetatien being planted. The installatien ef a temperar" irrigatien 

s•1ste~, at the expense ef the ewner, ma\' be required b'I the eit'I ef flke ta ens~re 
establishment ef the seeding er planting prejeet, at the eit•1 ef flke's diseretien. The 
feregeing requirem_en~s ~a•1 ~epend upen faeters sueh as the seasen in t.Nhieh plant ing 
takes plaee and •.•anat1en 1n ehmatie eenditien. 

Reseeding must indude an annual er perennial eever erep in additien ta the primar· and 
s d · 

1 

eeen ar'I revegetat1en speeies. Re11egetatien speeies are preferabl'I eempesed ef native 
draught teler_a~t plan_t speeies, and are aeeempanied b'I the plaeement ef an aeeeptable 
muleh ef suff1e1ent th1ekness and ee•1erage ta limit eresien until sueh time as the ee\·er 
erep equals, a•1erages, er exeeeds a plant ee·1er ef sevent'I pereent (70%) e•ier the entire 
seeded area. Sueh establishment shall be in plaee for a peried ef ene •·ear. The "Cit .. Of 
flk C t · · 

1 
, .eens ruet1en Site Rest Management Praetiees Mandbeek" eentains an extensive list ef 

suitable plant speeies that are adapted ta the elimate and t.Neather eenditiens ef 
nertheastern Nevada and are reeemmended for re•1egetatien ef disturbed sites. 

Replanting with natit1e weed\1 and/er herbaeeeus plant speeies must be aeeempanied b•· 
app_lieatien ef ~n apprepriate muleh ef sufficient thiekness and ee•1erage ta eentrel eresi:n 
until the plantings are established and are themselves eapable ef eentrelling eresien. 
(Ord. 776, 11 12 20H) 

9 8 10; MAI NU NAN Cf AND Rf PAIR OF STORMWAUR FAClblTlfS: 

A. Aee_ess And Maintenanee Agreements: As pre•.•ided in seetien g .~ g ef this ehapter, a fermal 
mainten~nee agreement fer all struetural sterm•.tJater facilities is required b'I the cit'/ ef flke 

un~er this ehapter. Under eertain eireumstanees, the eit•1 ef [Ike ma·1 require that the 
~aintenanee agreement be reeerded t.Nith the eeunt'I reeerder as a eenditien preeedent ta 
final plan appreval. Alse, at the eit'I ef [Ike's sale diseretien under eertain eenditiens and for 



specifie Ele•,elopmeRt t•1pes, tl:ie eit'I of Elko ma'/ aeeept EleElieatioR of existiRg or fytyre 

stormwater maRagemeRt faeilit'l(ies) iR lieY of a maiRteRaRee agreemeRt. Tl:iis exeeptioR will 

be eoRsiElereEI ORI'/ if sYel=i facilit•1(ies) meet all reqYiremeRts of tl:iis el:iapter aREI iRelYEle(s) 
aEleqYate aREI perpetYal aeeess aREI syfficieRt area, b'/ easemeRt or otl:ieri.•,ise, for iRspeetioR 
aREI regYlar maiRteRaRee. Tl:iis exeeptioR will be eoRsiElereEI OR a ease b'/ ease basis aREI at tl:ie 
sole EliseretioR of tl:ie eit'I of Elko, witl:i prefereRee gi•,eR to resiEleRtial Ele1,1elopmeRts. 

8. IRspeetioR Of Stormwater Facilities: IRspeetioR programs ma'/ be establisl:ieEI OR aR'/ 
reasoRable basis, iRelYEliRg, bYt Rot limited to: roYtiRe iRspeetioRs; raRElom iRspeetioRs; 
iRspeetioRs based YpOR eomplaiRts or otl:ier Rotiee of possible 1,1iolati0Rs; iRspeetioR of 

ElraiRage basiRs or areas iEleRtifieEI as l:iigl:ier tl=iaR t•1pieal soyrees of seElimeRt or otl:ier 
eoRtamiRaRts or pollytaRts; iRspeetioRs of bYsiResses or iREIYstries of a t\'pe associated •.vitl:i 

l:iigl:ier tl=iaR YSYal Elisel:iarges of eoRtamiRaRts or pollYtaRts or witl:i Elisel:iarges of a t•1pe wl:iiel:i 
are more likel'I tl=iaR tl:ie t•1pieal Elisel:iarge to eaYse •,iolatioRs of state or federal water or 
seElimeRt qyalit'I staRElarEls or tl:ie NPDES stormwater permit; aREI joiRt iRspeetioRs witl:i otl:ier 

ageRcies iRspeetiRg YREler eR•,iroRmeRtal or safet'I la•Ns. IRspeetioRs ma11 iRelYEle, bYt are Rot 

limited to: re•,iewiRg maiRteRaRee aREI repair reeorEls; sampliRg Elisel:iarges, syrfaee water, 

groYREl'Nater, a REI/or material or water iR ElraiRage eoRtrol faeilities; a REI to e1,1alYate tl:ie 
eoRElitioR of ElraiRage eoRtrol faeilities or otl:ier stormwater treatmeRt praetiees. 

C. Rigl:it Of ERtr>/ For IRspeetioR: Wl=ieR aR'/ Rew stormwater maRagemeRt or eoRtrol facilit>j is 

iRstalleEI OR pri1,1ate propert'I, or wl=ieR aR'/ Rew eoRReetioR is made betweeR pri¥ate propert>j 

aREI a pYblie ElraiRage eoRtrol S'jstem, saRitar'I sewer or eombiReEI sewer, tl:ie propert·1 owRer 

sl:iall graRt to tl:ie eit•/ of Elko tl:ie rigl:it to eRter said propert'I at reasoRable times aREI iR a 
reasoRable maRRer for tl:ie pmpose of iRspeetioR aREl/or maiRteRaRee. Tl:iis iRelYEles tl:ie rigl:it 
to eRter a propert'/ wl=ieR tl:ie eit'I of Elko l:ias a reasoRable basis to belie•,e tl:iat a •,iolatioR of 

tl:iis el:iapter is oeeYrriRg or 1:ias oeeYrreEI, a REI to eRter wl=ieR Reeessar'I for abatemeRt of a 

pyblie RYisaRee or eorreetioR of a ·,iolatioR ef tl:iis el:iapter. 

D. Reeerds Of IRstallatieR AREi MaiRteRaRee Aeti11ities: Parties resp0Rsible for tl:ie 0perati0R aREI 

maiRteRaRee of stormwater maRagemeRt faeilities sl:iall make a REI maiRtaiR reeerds ef tl:ie 
iRstallatieR iRelYEliRg all maiRteRaRee aREI repairs, aREI sl:iall retaiR said reeerds for at least 
se¥eR (7) '/ears frem tl:ie Elate ef e0mpleti0R er iRstallatieR a REI will iRelYEle all maiRteRaRee 

aREI repair aetit,ities. Tl:iese reeerds sl:iall be made a1,1ailable ta tl:ie eit'I of Elke EIYriRg 
iRspeetieR ef tl:ie faeilit>j a REI at etl:ier reas0Rable times Yp0R reqYest. 

E. FailYre Te MaiRtaiR Praetiees: If a respoRsible part11 fails er refYses ta meet tl:ie reqYiremeRts 

of tl:ie maiRteRaRee agreemeRt, tl:ie eit>j ef Elke, after reas0Rable Retiee seRt b·1 eertifieEI mail, 

ma'/ eerreet a 11iolati0R ef tl:ie ElesigR staRElarEls or maiRteRaRee Reeds b'I performiRg all 
Reeessar1 werk to retYFR tl:ie faeilit11 ta preper werl,iRg e0REliti0R. IR tl:ie ei.·eRt tl:iat tl:ie 
stermwater maRagemeRt faeilit·1 beeemes a ElaRger ta pYblie safet•1 er pYblie 1:iealtl:i, tl:ie eit>j 

ef Elko sl:iall R0tif>1 tl:ie part'/ resp0Rsible for maiRteRaRee of tl:ie stermwater maRagemeRt 
facilit>j iR writiRg. YpeR reeeipt of tl:iat Retiee, tl:ie respoRsible persoR sl:iall l:ia1,1e tl:iirt't' (~Q) 
Ela'ls ta effeet maiRteRaRee a REI repair of tl:ie facilit'I iR a maRRer appre·,eEI b'/ tl:ie eit·1 ef Elke. 
After preper Retiee, Eleli1,1ereEI pers0Rall·1 er b•1 eertifieEI mail, tl:ie eit'I ef Elke ma'/ assess tl:ie 
ewRer(s) ef tl:ie faeilit•1 for tl:ie east ef aR•/ repair werk deemed Reeessar1 b'/ tl:ie eit'I ef Elke, 
tegetl:ier witl:i aR'/ peRalties wl:iiel:i ma'/ be assessed YREler tl:iis e0Ele; aREI tl:ie east ef tl:ie werk 



sl'lall be a lieR eR tl'le preperty amt R'la'/ be plaeeel eR tl'le tax bill aRel eelleeteel as ereliRary 

taxes b•1 tl'le eeuRty. (Orel. 77fJ, 11 12 20H) 

9-8-11- Z: ENFORCEMENT ANQ PENAbTIES: 

A. VielatieRs; ARy ele•.ielepR'leRt aetivit•1 tl'lat is eeR'IR'leReeel er is eeRelueteel eeRtrar>/ te tl'lis 
el'lapter R'lay be restraiReel b•t iRjuRetieR er etl'lerwise abateel iR a R'laRRer previeleel by law. 

8. Netiee Of VielatieR (NOV): 'Afl'leR tl'le eity ef Elke eleterR'liRes t l'lat aR aeti>.iit•1 is Rat beiRg 

earrieel eut iR aeeerelaRee witl'l tl'le requireR'leRts ef tl'lis el'lapter, it sl'lall issue a writteR Retiee 
ef vielatieR (NOV) ta tl'le ewRer ef tl'le preperty. Tl'le Retiee ef •.iielatieR sl'lall eeRtaiR: 

1. Tl'le RaR'le a Rel aelelress ef tl'le e•NRer er applieaRt; 

2. Tl'le aelelress ef tl'le faeilitif wl'leR available er a legal eleseriptieR ef tl'le buileliRg, strueture 
er laRel upeR wl'liel'l tl'le •.iielatieR is eeeurriRg; 

~- A stateR'leRt speeifi/iRg tl'le Rature ef tl'le vielatieR; 

4. l\ eleseriptieR ef tl'le reR'teelial R'leasure(s) Reeessary ta briRg tl'le ele•.ielepR'leRt's aetivity 
iRte eeR'lpliaRee witl'l tl'lis el'lapter aRel a tiR'le sel'leelule fer tl'le eeR'lpletieR ef suel'l reR'leelial 

aetieR; 

S. A stateR'leRt ef tl'le peRalt't' er peRalties, if aR'/, tl'lat sl'lall er R'la11 be assesseel agaiRst tl'le 

perseR te wl'leR'l tl'le Retiee ef vielatieR is elireeteel; a Rel 

fJ. A stateR'leRt tl'lat tl'le eleterR'liRatieR ef vielatieR R'lay be appeal eel te tl'le Elke eit•/ eeuReil 
by filiRg a •NritteR Retiee ef appeal witl'l tl'le pre per elepartR'leRt 1.•.iitl'liR tl'lirty (~O) elays ef 

seri.iiee b't• perseRal eleli•,•ery er eertifieel R'lail ef tl'le Retiee ef •.iielatieR. 

C. Step Werk Orelers: A Retiee ef ,..ielatieR sl'lall aut0R'latieall11 eeRstitute a step werk ereler; 

aeeereliRgl•t, perseRs reeeiviRg a Retiee ef •,•ielatieR will be requireel ta eease all eeRstruetieR 
aeti>.iities. Tl'le step werk ereler •Nill be iR effeet uRtil tl'le eity ef Elke eeRfirR'ls tl'lat tl'le 
ele•.ielepR'leRt aeti>.iity is iR eeR'lpliaRee witl'l all eity ef Ell,e requireR'leRts a Rel tl'lat tl'le vielatieR 
l'las beeR satisfaeteril11 aelelresseel. i;;ailure ta aelelress a Retiee ef •.iielatieR (NOV) b11 tl'le elate 
speeifieel iR tl'le Retiee ef •.iielatieR letter eaR result iR eii.•il, eriR'liRal, a Rel/er R'18Retar't' 
peRalties iR aeeerelaRee witl'l tl'le eRfereeR'leRt R'leasures autl'lerizeel iR tl'lis el'lapter. 

Q. Civil AREi CriR'liRal PeRalties: IR aelelitieR ta er as aR altemati>.ie ta a Ry peRalt't' pre•.iieleel l'lereiR 
er b•t lai.•.i, aRy perseR ,...,l'la l'las •.iielateel er eeRtiRues ta vielate tl'lis el'lapter sl'lall be subjeet ta 

a eriR'liRal peRalty up ta eRe tl'leusaRel elellars ($1,000.00) per •.iielatieR per ela•1, 

Tl'le eity ef Ell,e R'lay reeever all atteme•1 fees, eeurt easts a Rel etl'ler expeRses asseeiateel witl'l 

eRfereeR'leRt ef tl'lis el'lapter, iRelueliRg saR'lpliRg a Rel R'IBRiteriRg expeRses. 

E. ResteratieR Of la Reis; AR'/ perseR feuRel iR vielatieR ef tl'lis el'lapter R'la'/ be requireel ta restere 
laRel elisturbeel b11 eeRstruetieR aetivities ta its uRelisturbeel eeRelitieR. IR tl'le e•.ieRt tl'lat 
resteratieR is Rat uRelertakeR witl'liR tl'le tiR'le speeifieel iR a Retiee ef •.iie latieR, tl'le eit•/ ef Elke 



FRay take necessary correcti¥e actien te restere tl-,e land, tl-ie cest ef wl-,ict-, sl-iall beceFRe a lien 
ypen tl-ie prepert't' Yntil paid. Netl-iing 1-ierein sl-iall prei.•ent tl-,e cit'J' ef l:lke freFR Ysing a 
perferFRance gyarantee te ebtain reiFRbYrseFRent fer tl-,e cest ef restering land pYrsyant te 
tl-iis sYbsectien. 

I=. Melds On Occypatien PerFRits: Certificates ef eccYpanq• (C ef O) and/er acceptance ef pYblic 
iFRpre•1eFRents will net be granted Yntil reqyired cerrectiens te all sterFRwater facilities and 
practices l-ia¥e been FRade and accepted by tl-ie city ef l:lke. 

G. lnjYncti>.•e Relief; Tl-ie cit•t' ef l:lke FRay seek injYncti¥e relief in erder te enforce tl-ie pre•1isiens 
ef tl-iis cl-,apter. (Ord. 776, 11 12 20B) 

A. Notice of Violation: In addition to~emedies provided under the O&M Contract, in the 

event the Cit determines that a erson has violated a rohibition or failed to meet a 

herein or an approved PSQMP, the City may compel compliance by serving a written Notice of 
Violation upon the BMP Owner or th~ BMY Qwner's agent or representative by certified mail, 
return-receipt reques~ed. A Notice of Violation issued under this section may require, without 
limitation: 

1. That the acts or omissions resulting in a discharge cease immediately or no later than a 
specified date; 

2. The abatement or remediation of storm~ater pollution or contamination hazards and the 

restoration of any affected property; and 

~3~. ~T~h~e~a~m~e~n~t~of~a_f~in~e~e~s~t=a~b~li~s~h~ed~b~t~h-"--is"-----"C-'-'h~a~~~~~r~e~so~l~u~t ~io~n of the City Council to 
cover administrative and remediation costs; and/or 

4. Implementation of BM~Ps. 

B. Deadline: If abatement of a violation and/or restoration of affected property is required, the 
Notice of Violation shall set forth a deadline by which such remediation or restoration must 
b m I t d. Should the respondent i rf rm r mediation or restoration therein 
s the deadline the work ma or a desi nated overnmental 
agency or contractor and the expense thereof shall be charged to the respondent. 

C. Citations: The Enforcement Official or her or his designee shall have the au_!J1ority to prepare, 
si n and serve written citations on ersons accused of violatin a rovision of this Cha ter 
where there is a criminal sanction. All citations so issued and served shall comply with the 

requirements of NRS 171.1773 and NRS 171.17?51(5). 

D. Civil liability instead of criminal sanction: In addition to any remedies provided under the 
O&M Contract an erson who violates this Cha ter ma be sub·ect to civil liability to the City 
in an amount not to exceed $500 instead of a criminal sanction. 



E. Civil liability; notice of civil infraction: The Enforcement Official or her or his designee may 
issue a Notice of Civil Infraction to any person who violates this Chapter. The Notice of Civil 
Infraction must be issued on a form containing the following information: 

1. The location where the violation occurred; 

2. The date and time of the violation; 

3. The signature of the Enforcement Official or other authorized person who issues the 
Notice of Civil Infraction; 

4. The section of this Chapter that allegedly is being violated; 

5. Information about the manner and time within which the Notice of Civil Infraction must 
be answered; 

6. The amount of the civil fine; and 

7. Any other information relevant to the violation and applicable provisions of this Chapter. 

F. Civil liability; duties of respondent: 

1. A person who responds to a notice of civil infraction must either: 

a. Admit the commission of the infraction and pay the appropriate civil fine; or 

b. Deny liability for the infraction. 

2. A person may admit commission of the infraction by paying to the municipal court the civil 
fine shown on the notice of civil infraction. 

3. A person who denies liability for the infraction must appear in person before the 
municipal court. 

G. Commencement of civil action; procedure: Judicial enforcement of a notice of civil infraction 
must be by way of a civil suit in the municipal court if a person denies liability. A civil action 
may be commenced by the filing of a complaint in the name of the City and the issuance of a 
summons with respect thereto, and service of such complaint and summons on the defendant 
must be made by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the defendant at his or 
her last known address or in any other matter which is authorized by law. The proceedings in 
munici al court for actions commenced ursuant to this cha ter shall be overned b Rules 1 
and 3 through 87 of the Justice Court Rules of Civil Procedure. 

H. Civil Fines: A respondent who commits a civil infraction under this Chapter shall subject to a 
civil fine in the amount of $500.00 per infraction. 

I. Lien: The City shall have a lien pursuant to NRS 108.222 on any property upon which work is 
performed by the City or its contractor in correcting a violation of this Chapter pursuant to this 



Section 9-8-6. The lien shall be calculated, perfected and enforced in accordance with NRS 
108.221, et seq. (Mechanics' and Materialmen's Liens). 

J. Withholding of Approvals: Should the City perform work on the installation, maintenance, or 
removal of stormwater control measures pursuant to this Section 9-8-6, the respondent shall 
reimburse the City the full amount of that expense prior to issuance of any permit, final 

approval or certificate of occupancy associated with property upon which the work is 
performed, and the City shall withhold all permits, final approvals and/or certificates of 

occupancy for the property or which have been requested by the respondent until the 
expense is fully reimbursed to the City. 

9-8-~ 8: APPEAL OF NOTICE OF VIOLATION: 

An'/ l')ersen reeei•.iing a netiee ef >Jielatien ma•1 al')l')eal the Eleterminatien ef the aYtherizeEI 
enforeement agene>/ te the ~Ike eit•/ eeyneil. The netiee ef al')l')eal mYst be reeei>JeEI within thirt1• (~O) 
Ela•1s frem the Elate ef reeeil')t ef the netiee ef >Jielatien. Mearing en the al')l')eal before the ~Ike dt•/ 
eeYndl shall take l')laee within ferty fi>Je (45) Ela1•s frem the Elate ef reeeil')t ef the netiee ef al')l')eal, 
Ynless etherwise extended at the reeiYest ef the al')l')liEant. An aggrie>JeEI l')ersen may seek jYElidal 
re·.iiew ef the Eledsien ef the eity eeyneil by filing an al')l')F91')riate l')etitien with a eeYrt ef rnml')etent 
jYrisElietien within thirty (~O) days ef the Eledsien. (Ord. 776, 11 12 20H) 

A. A Notice of Violation issued pursuant to this Chapter 8 shall include a written notice setting 

forth the respondent's appeal rights pursuant to this Section 9-8-8. 

B. A respondent served with a Notice of Violation, within fourteen (14) calendar days of service 
thereof, may appeal the determination of the Enforcement Official to the City Manager by 
filing a "Notice of Appeal to the City Manager" with the City Clerk containing a statement of 
the basis for the appeal. The City Manager or the City Manager's designee shall schedule and 
conduct a hearing on the Notice of Violation within fourteen (14) calendar days thereafter, 

upon no less than seven (7) calendar days' advance notice to the respondent, unless 
otherwise agreed by the respondent and the City. At the hearing before the City Manager or 
the City Manager's designee, the respondent and the City shall each be given an opportunity 
to present arguments and evidence, to include witness testimony. The rules of evidence shall 
not apply. The City Manager or the City Manager's designee may terminate the hearing at a 
time determined in advance by the City Manager or the City Manager's designee, provided a 
reasonable time shall be given to permit the respondent and the City to present their 

respective arguments and evidence. The City Manager or City Manager's designee may 
terminate a hearing at any time upon a determination that the additional evidence and 
argument to be proffered by the respondent and the City will be duplicative or not relevant to 
the issues to be resolved. The City Manager or the City Manager's designee shall issue and 
serve a written decision upon the respondent with five (5) business days of the hearing. 

C. A respondent may, within fourteen (14) calendar days of service thereof, appeal the decision 
of the City Manager or the City Manager's designee to the City Council by filing a "Notice of 
Appeal to the City Council" with the City Clerk containing a statement of the basis for the 

appeal. The City Council shall, within forty-five (45) calendar days thereafter, conduct a 
hearing on the decision of the City Manager or City Manager's designee. At the hearing before 
the City Council, the respondent and the City shall each be given an opportunity to present 



arguments and evidence, to include witness testimony. The rules of evidence shall not apply. 
The City Council may terminate the proceeding at a time determined in advance by the City 
Manager or the City Manager's designee, provided a reasonable time shall be given to permit 
the respondent and the City to present their respective arguments and evidence. The City 
Council may terminate a hearing at any time upon a determination that the additional 
evidence and argument to be proffered by the respondent and the City will be duplicative or 
not relevant to the issues to be resolved. The City Council shall render a decision at the 
hearing, to include a continuation thereof in the event the hearing is tabled. 

D. Service upon the respondent for purposes of this Section 9-8-8 shall mean service by certified 
mail, return receipt requested. 

E. A respondent to whom a Notice of Violation has been issued must comply with the 
requirements stated therein pending an appeal or appeals pursuant to this Section 9-8-8. 

F. The failure of a respondent to appeal a decision within the times required by this Section 9-8-8 
shall result in the waiver of those appeal rights. 

G. The decision of the City Council at an appeal hearing pursuant to this Section 9-8-8 shall be 
final for purposes of judicial review. Any action for judicial review shall be commenced by 
filing a petition with the District Court for the Fourth Judicial District, in and for the County of 
Elko, State of Nevada, no more than thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the decision of 
the City Council at an appeal hearing pursuant to this Section 9-8-8. 

9-8-9: INJUNCTIVE RELIEF: 

If a person has violated or continues to violate the provisions of this chapter, the City agency may 
petition for a preliminary or permanent injunction restraining the person from activities which could 
create further violations or compelling the person to perform abatement or remediation of the 
violation. 

9-8-10: VIOLATIONS DEEMED A PUBLIC NUISANCE: 

In addition to the enforcement processes and penalties provided, any condition caused or permitted 
to exist in violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter is hereby determined to be a threat to 
public health, safety, and welfare, and is declared and deemed a nuisance, and may be abated 
pursuant to the provision of Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 268 or restored at the violator's 
expense, and/or civil action to abate, enjoin, or otherwise compel the cessation of such nuisance may 
be taken. The provisions of this Section 9-8-10 and the City Nuisance Code are in addition to and not 
in lieu of the other enforcement provisions set forth in this Chapter 8. 

9-8-11: CRIMINAL PENALTIES: 

Any person who has violated or continues to violate the requirements of this Chapter, to include any 
requirement set forth in a Notice of Violation issued under this Chapter, shall be subject to a criminal 
penalty of one thousand dollars {$1,000.00). Each day a person violates this Chapter or remains in 
violation of this Chapter shall be a separate violation. In addition, any person who has violated or 
continues to violate this Chapter may be subject to criminal prosecution under federal or state laws. 



The Cit ma recover all attorne fees court costs and other ex enses incurred in the enforcement of 
this Chapter, including sampling and monitoring expenses. 

9-8-1¼ 12: REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE: 

The remedies listed in this €~hapter are not exclusive of any other remedies available under any 
applicable federal, state, or local law and it is within the discretion of the eity ef E:11,e authorized 
enforcement agency to seek cumulative remedies. (Orc:t. 776, 11 12 20H) 

Section 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed, but only 
to the extent of such conflict 

Section 5: If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this ordinance shall for any reason be 
held to be invalid, unenforceable, or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity, 
unenforceability, or provision shall not affect any remaining provisions of this ordinance. 

Section 6: Upon adoption, the City Clerk of the City of Elko is hereby di rected to have this 
ordinance published by title only, together with the Councilmen voting for or against its passage in a 
newspaper of general circulation within the time established by law, for at least one publication. 

Section 7: This Ordinance shall be effective upon the publication mentioned in Section 4. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this_ day of_, 2021 by the following vote of the Elko City Council. 

AYES : 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

APPROVED this __ day of ___________ 2020. 

CITY OF ELKO 

BY: ______________ _ 

REECE KEENER, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

KELLY WOOLDRIDGE, City Clerk 



Action Item V.B. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 18-21, a 
resolution providing for the transfer of appropriations between accounts within the 
City of Elko 2020/2021 Fiscal Budget pursuant to N.R.S. 354.598005, and matters 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: RESOLUTION 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: This is the annual year-end housekeeping item to transfer 
funds between functions, and funds as required to fund all budgetary changes that 
occurred during the fiscal year. JB 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: 
Budget amount available: 
Fund name: 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: 

9. Recommended Motion: Approve Resolution No. 18-21, a Resolution providing for the 
transfer of appropriations between accounts within the City of Elko 2020/2021 
Fiscal Budget pursuant to N.R.S. 354.598005 

10. Prepared by: Jan Baum, Financial Services Director 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: At the pleasure of the Council 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 6/16/2021 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



Upon introduction and motion by Councilmember ________________ and seconded by 

Council Member _______________ the following Resolution and Order was passed and 

adopted: 

CITY OF ELKO 

RESOLUTION NO.  18-21 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE TRANSFER OF APPROPRIATIONS BETWEEN ACCOUNTS 
WITHIN THE CITY OF ELKO 2020/2021 FISCAL BUDGET 

PURSUANT TO N.R.S. 354.598005 

WHEREAS, THE City of Elko 2020/2021 Fiscal Year Budget has the need for transfers of Appropriations 
between functions and accounts.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that pursuant to N.R.S. 354.598005, the attached transfers of 
appropriations be accomplished:  

A detailed schedule is attached to this Resolution and by reference is made a part thereof. 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon adoption of this Resolution by the Elko City Council, it shall be 
signed by the Mayor and attested to by the City Clerk and shall be in full force and effect after its adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 22nd day of June, 2021. 

CITY OF ELKO 

By: ______________________________ 
REECE KEENER, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________________ 
KELLY C. WOOLDRIDGE, CITY CLERK  

VOTE: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 



Fund DEPARTMENT DIVISION
A/C 

DETAIL A/C DESCRIPTION DETAIL
 Budget 
Transfer 

General Fund 
City Manager Non Division 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries 15,000.00  
City Manager Non Division 580-01 Travel & Training Travel (15,000.00)  
City Clerk Non Division 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries 1,000.00   
City Clerk Non Division 420-01 Employee Benefits Group Health Insurance 2,000.00   
City Clerk Non Division 550-02 Printing Services Microfilm Expense (3,000.00)  
Human Resources Non Division 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries 500.00  
Human Resources Non Division 420-01 Employee Benefits Group Health Insurance 1,500.00   
Human Resources Non Division 540-02 Advertising Services Recruitment Expense (2,000.00)  
Finance Non Division 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries 500.00  
Finance Non Division 420-01 Employee Benefits Group Health Insurance 7,000.00   
Finance Non Division 432-10 Professional Auditing Services (7,500.00)  
Central Services Non Division 420-01 Employee Benefits Group Health Insurance (10,000.00)  
Central Services Non Division 520-03 Insurance Services Insurance Deductibles 10,000.00  
Planning / Zoning Non Division 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries 1,500.00   
Planning / Zoning Non Division 420-01 Employee Benefits Group Health Insurance 2,000.00   
Planning / Zoning Non Division 434-23 Technical Other Consulting Services (3,500.00)  
Police Non Division 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries (65,000.00)  
Police Non Division 420-01 Employee Benefits Group Health Insurance 65,000.00  
Fire ARFF Fire Station 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries (104,000.00)   
Fire ARFF Fire Station 431-05 Official / Administrative Services Plans Review Services 10,000.00  
Fire Downtown Fire Station 420-10 Employee Benefits Social Security 1,000.00   
Streets Non Division 450-02 Construction Services Hotmix AC 8,000.00   
Fleet Maintenance Non Division 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries 20,000.00  
Engineering Non Division 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries 3,000.00   
Engineering Non Division 420-01 Employee Benefits Group Health Insurance 3,500.00   
Engineering Non Division 434-12 Technical GIS Expense (6,500.00)  
Community Development Non Division 410-90 Salaries / Wages Part Time Salaries (1,000.00)  
Community Development Non Division 420-01 Employee Benefits Group Health Insurance 1,000.00   
Parks Non Division 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries 30,000.00  
Parks Non Division 420-01 Employee Benefits Group Health Insurance 35,000.00  

General Fund Total -   

Capital Equipment Fund
City Clerk Non Division 700-04 Capital Outlay Equipment 3,300.00   
Information Systems Non Division 700-04 Capital Outlay Equipment (13,950.00)  
Fire Non Division 700-04 Capital Outlay Equipment 1,550.00   
Facilities Non Division 700-04 Capital Outlay Equipment 200.00  
Parks Non Division 700-04 Capital Outlay Equipment 8,900.00   

Capital Equipment Total -   

Facility Improvement Fund
Fire Non Division 700-03 Capital Outlay Improvements O/T Bldgs (11,000.00)  
Fire Non Division 700-04 Capital Outlay Equipment 11,000.00  
Facilities Non Division 700-03 Capital Outlay Improvements O/T Bldgs (9,000.00)  
Animal Shelter Non Division 700-02 Capital Outlay Buildings 9,000.00   

Facility Improvement Total -   

Water Enterprise Fund
Water Administration 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries (55,000.00)  
Water Administration 420-01 Employee Benefits Group Health Insurance (25,000.00)  
Water Administration 610-01 General Supplies Office Supplies (15,000.00)  
Water Operations 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries 22,000.00  
Water Operations 420-01 Employee Benefits Group Health Insurance 45,500.00  
Water Operations 443-03 Maintenance & Repair Outside Repairs 190,500.00  
Water Wells 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries (25,000.00)  
Water Wells 420-20 Employee Benefits Retirement Regular (8,000.00)  
Water Wells 434-04 Technical V O C Water Testing (120,000.00)   
Water Miscellaneous 900-95 Miscellaneous Depreciation Expense 40,000.00  
Water Non Division 100-800 Fund Cash Equity in Fund Cash (50,000.00)  

Water Enterprise Total -   

City of Elko
FY 2020/2021 Fund Transfers/Augmentations



Fund DEPARTMENT DIVISION
A/C 

DETAIL A/C DESCRIPTION DETAIL
 Budget 
Transfer 

City of Elko
FY 2020/2021 Fund Transfers/Augmentations

Sewer Enterprise Fund
Sewer Administration 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries (8,500.00)  
Sewer Administration 434-14 Technical Computer Consulting 8,500.00   
Sewer Operations 420-20 Employee Benefits Retirement Regular 1,000.00   
Sewer Operations 434-23 Technical Other Consulting Services (1,000.00)  
Sewer Water Reclamation Facility 420-01 Employee Benefits Group Health Insurance 7,500.00   
Sewer Water Reclamation Facility 443-13 Maintenance & Repair Pump Repair (75,000.00)  
Sewer Water Reclamation Facility 443-14 Maintenance & Repair Clarifier Maintenance (10,000.00)  
Sewer Water Reclamation Facility 443-15 Maintenance & Repair Digester Maintenance (30,000.00)  
Sewer Water Reclamation Facility 610-05 General Supplies Repair Supplies/Materials (42,500.00)  
Sewer Water Reclamation Facility 620-05 Energy WWTP Pumping (85,000.00)  
Sewer WRF Laboratory 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries 1,000.00   
Sewer WRF Laboratory 420-01 Employee Benefits Group Health Insurance 1,500.00   
Sewer WRF Laboratory 434-15 Technical Lab Services (2,500.00)  
Sewer Miscellaneous 900-95 Miscellaneous Depreciation Expense 235,000.00  

Sewer Enterprise Total -   

Landfill Enterprise Fund
Solid Waste Administration 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries (5,000.00)  
Solid Waste Administration 420-20 Employee Benefits Retirement Regular (5,000.00)  
Solid Waste Operations 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries 15,000.00  
Solid Waste Operations 420-01 Employee Benefits Group Health Insurance 16,000.00  
Solid Waste Operations 620-09 Energy Gasoline (56,000.00)  
Solid Waste Miscellaneous 900-95 Miscellaneous Depreciation Expense 35,000.00  

Landfill Enterprise Total -   

Airport Enterprise Fund
Airport Operations 420-01 Employee Benefits Group Health Insurance 9,500.00   
Airport Operations 434-23 Technical Other Consulting Services 15,000.00  
Airport Airport Terminal 443-03 Maintenance & Repair Outside Repairs (10,000.00)  
Airport Airport Terminal 443-20 Maintenance & Repair Landscaping (25,000.00)  
Airport Airport Terminal 610-19 General Supplies Non-Capital Equip Replacement (13,500.00)  
Airport Miscellaneous 900-95 Miscellaneous Depreciation Expense 6,000.00   
Airport Miscellaneous 900-96 Miscellaneous Deprec Expense Federal Portion 18,000.00  
Airport Non Division 100-800 Fund Cash Equity in Fund Cash (100,000.00)   
Airport Non Division 160-09 Capital Outlay Infrastructure 100,000.00  

Airport Enterprise Total -   

Golf Enterprise Fund
Golf Administration 434-14 Technical Computer Consulting 2,000.00   
Golf Operations 410-10 Salaries / Wages Full Time Salaries (70,000.00)  
Golf Golf Management 510-22 Contract Services Golf Expenses 5,000.00   
Golf Golf Management 510-23 Contract Services Food & Beverage Expenses 25,000.00  
Golf Golf Management 510-24 Contract Services Golf G&A 25,000.00  
Golf Miscellaneous 900-95 Miscellaneous Depreciation Expense 13,000.00  

Golf Enterprise Total -  



Agenda Item VI.A. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a petition for the vacation 
of a 13,600 square foot portion of the 15th Street Right-of-Way, filed by the City of 
Elko, and processed as Vacation Nos. 3-21 and 4-21, and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: PETITION 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: Staff has determined that keeping the small amount of 
Right-of-Way on 15th Street is not in the best interest of the City due to the cost of 
constructing and maintaining a road that goes nowhere. Staff approached both 
adjacent property owners about the possibility of vacating the Right-of-Way back to 
them, to which they agreed. Because there are utilities in the area to be vacated, an 
easement will need to be recorded to allow future access. In addition, a Reciprocal 
Easement Agreement between the property owners is also required. MR 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: N/A 
Budget amount available: N/A 
Fund name: NIA 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Staff Memo, Exhibits, Application 

9. Recommended Motion: Accept the petition for vacation and direct Staff to commence 
the vacation process by referring the matter to the Planning Commission. 

10. Prepared by: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: Flyers Energy, LLC 
Attn: David Dwelle 
dmdwelle@4flyers.com 

The Igloo, Inc. 
Attn: Mike Shanks 
shankseng@gmail.com 

Created on 06/15/2021 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



City of Elko 
1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV 89801 
(77 5) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL PETITION DATE: 
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: 
APPLICATION NUMBER: 
APPLICANT: 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

June 22, 2021 
July 6, 2021 
Vacation 3-21 and 4-21 
City of Elko 
15th Street north of Silver Street 

Vacation of a portion of 15th Street consisting of approximately 13,600 square feet. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

RECOMMEND to ACCEPT petition and refer the matter to the Planning Commission for 
further consideration. 

Page I of3 



PROJECT INFORMATION 

VACATION 3-21 and4-21 
City of Elko 

PARCEL NUMBER: Between APN 001-375-001 and APN 001-373-001 

EXISTING ZONING: GI - General Industrial 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: NIA 

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped street right-of-way 

BACKGROUND: 
1. The property is an undeveloped street right-of-way that serves only two lots (APNs 001-

375-001 and 001-373-001). 
2. The area proposed to be vacated is approximately 13,600 square feet to be divided 

equally between the two adjacent lots mentioned above. 
3. The existing right-of-way stretches from Silver Street north 170 feet to the Union Pacific 

right-of-way and dead ends. 
4. Utilities currently exist through this area so utility and drainage easements will need to be 

approved in conjunction with this vacation. 
5. The adjacent properties have, and will continue to use, this area as a driveway. 

Therefore, a Reciprocal Easement Agreement will also need to be approved in 
conjunction with this vacation. 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 
The property is surrounded by: 

North: General Industrial (GI)/ Undeveloped 
East: General Industrial (GI)/ Undeveloped 
South: Light Industrial (LI) / Undeveloped 
West: General Industrial (GI)/ Developed 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 
1. The property is currently undeveloped street right-of-way. 
2. The property is slopes to the south towards Silver Street. 

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODES: 
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are: 

NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive 
City of Elko Master Plan- Land Use Component 
City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component 
City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 
City of Elko Code - Section 8-7 Street Vacation Procedures 

MASTER PLAN - Land Use: 

1. As right-of-way, 15th Street does not have a land use designation. 

Page2 of3 



VACATION 3-21 and 4-21 
CityofElko 

2. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the surrounding area as Industrial Business Park 
and Industrial General. 

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use component. 

MASTER PLAN - Transportation: 

1. 15th Street is accessed from Silver Street. 
2. This section of Silver Street is classified as a Commercial/Industrial Collector street. 

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component. 

NRS 278.479 TO 278.480 (INCLUSIVE) 

All provisions outlined in this section of the NRS are being followed as part of the proposed 
vacation. 

SECTION 8-7: STREET VACATION PROCEDURES 

All procedures outlined in this section of City Code are being followed as part of the proposed 
vacation. 

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN 

• The area is located inside the Redevelopment Area. 

FINDINGS 

• The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use 
Component 

• The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan 
Transportation component 

• The proposed vacation is in conformance with NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive. 

• The proposed vacation is in conformance with City Code Section 8-7 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the City Council accept this petition and forward this item to the Planning 
Commission for further consideration. 

Page3 of3 



Exhibit A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF 151H STREET VACATED TO THE IGLOO 

(TRANSFERES TO APN: 001-375-001) 

The northeasterly half of the remaining right-of-way shown as Vanderbilt Street, between Block 7 and 

Block F, on the map of Ballou's Addition to the Town (now City) of Elko, Nevada, recorded in the office of 

the Elko County Recorder as file no. 2, lying southeasterly of the Union Pacific Railroad right-of-way and 

lying northwesterly of the Silver Street right-of-way, located within the northwest quarter of Section 14, 

Township 34 North, Range 55 East, M.D.B.&M., and is further described as follows: 

Beginning at the southerly most corner of said Block F of the Ballou's Addition; 

Thence, southwesterly, along right-of-way of Silver Street, 40 feet, more or less, to the centerline of 

Vanderbilt Street as shown on said Ballou's Addition, sometimes referred to as 15th Street today; 

Thence, northwesterly along the centerline of Vanderbilt Street, 170 feet, more or less, to the 

southeasterly edge of the right-of-way of the Union Pacific railroad, which has been widened by 

approximately 50 feet to the southeast since the mapping of Railroad Street as shown on said Ballou's 

Addition; 

Thence, northeasterly along said southeasterly boundary of the right-of-way of the Union Pacific 

railroad, 40 feet more or less to the southwesterly boundary of said Block F of Ballou's Addition; 

Thence, southeasterly along said southwesterly boundary of the Block F of Ballou's Addition, 170 feet, 

more or less, to the point of beginning. 

This right-of-way hereby vacated and transferred to Block F (APN: 001-375-001) contains ±6,800 square 

feet. 

The Basis of Bearings for this description is the map of Ballou's Addition to the Town (now City) of Elko, 

Nevada, recorded in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 2, in January of 1900. 

Description prepared by: 

Robert Thibault, PE, PLS 

Civil Engineer for the City of Elko 



SECTION 
SECTION 

400' 

/ 

/ 
/ 

6,800 SF BEING 
VACATED TO BLOCK F 

CETERLINE OF 
VANDERBILT STREET 

AKA 15TH STREET 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 

/ 

1 oo· 

/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 

EXHIBIT B 

CITY OF ELKO 
1751 COLLEGE AVE 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 
775-777-7210 

DISPLAY MAP OF 

IGLOO VACATED PROPERTY 



Exhibit A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF 15TH STREET VACATED TO FLYERS 

{TRANSFERES TO APN: 001-373-001} 

The southwesterly half of the remaining right-of-way shown as Vanderbilt Street, between Block 7 and 

Block F, on the map of Ballou's Addition to the Town (now City) of Elko, Nevada, recorded in the office of 

the Elko County Recorder as file no. 2, lying southeasterly of the Union Pacific Railroad right-of-way and 

lying northwesterly of the Silver Street right-of-way, located within the northwest quarter of Section 14, 

Township 34 North, Range 55 East, M.D.B.&M., and is further described as follows: 

Beginning at the easterly most corner of said Block 7 of the Ballou's Addition; 

Thence, northwesterly along the northeasterly boundary of said Block 7 of the Ballou's Addition, 170 

feet, more or less, to the southeasterly edge of the right-of-way of the Union Pacific railroad, which has 

been widened by approximately 50 feet to the southeast since the mapping of Railroad Street as shown 

on said Ballou's Addition; 

Thence, northeasterly along said southeasterly boundary of the right-of-way of the Union Pacific 

railroad, 40 feet more or less to the centerline of Vanderbilt Street as shown on said Ballou's Addition, 

sometimes referred to as 15th Street today; 

Thence, southeasterly along said centerline of Vanderbilt Street, 170 feet, more or less, to the 

northwesterly right-of-way of Silver Street; 

Thence, southwesterly, along said northwesterly right-of-way of Silver Street, 40 feet, more or less, to 

the point of beginning. 

This right-of-way hereby vacated and transferred to Block 7 (APN: 001-373-001) contains ±6,800 square 

feet. 

The Basis of Bearings for this description is the map of Ballou's Addition to the Town (now City) of Elko, 

Nevada, recorded in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 2, in January of 1900. 

Description prepared by: 

Robert Thibault, PE, PLS 

Civil Engineer for the City of Elko 



400' 

CETERLINE OF 
VANDERBILT STREET 

AKA 15TH STREET 

6,800 SF BEING 
VACATED TO BLOCK 7 

/ 

/ 

/ 

1 oo· 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 

CITY OF ELKO 
1751 COLLEGE AVE 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 
775-777-7210 

/ 

/ 
/ 

EXHIBIT B 

DISPLAY MAP OF 

FL YEAS VACATED PROPERTY 

/ 



Agenda Item VI.B. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to vacate seven feet of· the 
southwesterly portion of Golf Course Road for approximately 294 lineal feet 
northwest from the intersection of College Ave. and Golf Course Road involving 2 
properties, filed by City of Elko and processed as individual Vacations l-21 and 2-
21, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: PETITION 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: In discussion with the proposed Great Basin Child 
Advocacy Center, staff requested that the new curb, gutter and sidewalk line up 
with existing infrastructure at the intersection of Cedar St. and Golf Course Rd. 
This vacation will align the Right-of-Way from College Ave. to Cedar Street where 
it currently is not aligned. CL 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: N/ A 
Budget amount available: N/A 
Fund name: NIA 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, display maps, legal descriptions 

9. Recommended Motion: Findings are that it is in the best interest of the city and that 
-no person will be materially injured thereby, move to approve the petition for the 
proposed individual Vacations 1-21 through 2-21 involving 2 properties and direct 
Staff to commence the vacation process by ref erring the matter to the Planning 
Commission. 

10. Prepared by: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: Tyler Ingram 
tingram@elkocountynv.net 

Created on 6/15/2021 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR VACATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY 

A strip of land, being the southwesterly 7 feet of Golf Course Road, adjacent to APN 001-200-002, in the 

City of Elko, Nevada, lying within Sections 10 and 11, Township 34 North, Range 55 East, which is further 

described as follows; 

Beginning at the easterly most corner of said APN 001-200-002 as described in the deed between the 

Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-Day Saints and the City of Elko, recorded in the office of the Elko County 

Recorder as file no. 221822, which bears North 1 °18'56" East, a distance of 804.85 feet from the 

monument at the intersection of Court Street and 13th Street; 

Thence, along the northeasterly boundary of the above referenced parcel, North 48°11'00" West, a 

distance of 264. 70 feet, more or less, to the northerly most corner of the above referenced parcel; 

Thence, North 41 °49'00" East, a distance of 7 .00 feet; 

Thence, South 48°11'00" East, a distance of 257.70 feet; 

Thence, along a tangent circular curve to the right, with a radius of 7.00 feet, an arc length of 11.00 feet, 

and a central angle of 90°00'00", more or less, to the point of beginning. 

This strip of land being vacated contains a total of ±1,842 square feet. 

The Basis of bearings for this description is the Map of the Smith's Addition to the City of Elko, recorded 

in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 43255, on November 5, 1927. 

Description prepared by: 

Robert Thibault, PE, PLS 

Civil Engineer for the City of Elko 



.....-1----~-----✓ 

• 

SCALE 
CITY 0/F ELKO 
1751 C0U..EllE AVE. "_ 

• ELKO, NEV.W. 89801 HORZ.1..:.::..6.0 
m1-m-1210 

VERT ..til.O.t::J.£. 

~\(IUHID ........ 

APN: 001-200-002 
EXISTING AREA = 57,268 SF 

NEW AREA = 59,110 SF 

EXHIBIT B 

I 

0 

AREA 
_ VACATED BY 
~SEPARATE 

1 RESOLUTION 
I 
I 

73.0'-

C') 
0 
i;; 
C") 

0 
C 
:::0 
(/) 
ITI 

~ 

/ 

L=11.00', R•7.00' 
11=90"00'00" 

60' 

/ 
/ 

/ 

I 

120' 

MAP OF AREA VACATED 
TO APN: 001-200-002 

DRAWN BY 
BT 

CHECKED BY 
BT 

DATE 
6/14/21 



CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
1751 College Avenue* Elko* Nevada * 89801 * 

(775) 777-7160 * (775) 777-7219 fax 

APPLICATION FOR VACATION OF CITY STREET, EASEMENT 
OR OTHER PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 

---~ ----- - --
- - ----- - - ----- --- ---- - --

APPLICANT(s) __ C_it __ y...,o_f E_l_ko ____________________ ---i 

MAILING ADDRESS: 1751 Colle e Ave. ,-;-----------..,......-------------....... _,, PHONE NO (Home 775-777-7160 Business 
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different): Elko Count & Nevada Health Centers Inc. 

(Property owner's consent in writing must be provided.) 

MAILING ADDRESS:,_!--------------------
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED Attach if necessa 
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.: 001-200-002 & 009 Addres 1401 College Ave. & 762 14th St. 

Lot(s), Block(s), &Subd,...iv_is_i __ o_n ____________________ ---1 

Or Parcel(s) & File No.--------------------------

FILING REQUIREMENTS: 

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form 
must be complete and signed. Applications go before the City Council, Planning Commission, 
and back to City Council twice. 

Fee: A $600.00 non-refundable fee. 

Plot Plan: A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the existing condition 
drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed buildings, building setbacks, 
parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent information must be provided. 

Legal Description: A complete legal description of the area proposed for vacation along with an 
exhibit depicting the area for vacation. 

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible, 
reproducible plans 8 ½" x 11" in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x 
36" plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted. 

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation 
to support the request. 

Revised 12/04/15 Page 1 



OWNERS OF THE PROPERTY ABUTTING THE AREA BEING REQUESTED FOR VACATION: 

Nevada Health Centers Inc. 3325 Research Way Fl 2 Carson City, NV 89706-7913 

(Name) (Address) 

I 

OWNER S OF THE PROPERTY ABUTTING THE AREA BEING REQUESTED FOR VACATION: 

Elko County 540 Court Street Elko, NV 89801 
(Name) (Address) 

1. Describe the nature of the reauest: !city of Elko is the applicant to apply for the vacation 

to allow for the development of the Great Basin Child Advocacy Center new curb, 

gutter and sidewalk to align with the existing on the adjacent parcel owned by 

Nevada Health. Centers Inc. There is a small portion of the Nevada Health Centers Inc. 

parcel which will also require a separate resolution to vacate that excess right-of-way 

to their parcel. 

2. Describe any utilities currently located in the area proposed for vacation, and if any are present 

how thev will be addressed: I No known utilities 

Use additional pages if necessary 

This area intentionally left blank 

Revised 12/04/15 Page 2 



By My Signature below: 

0 I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property only for the sole purpose of 
inspection said property as part of this application process. 

D I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of 

this application. (Your objection will not effect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination 
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.) 

0 I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by 

the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in 
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses. 

CZI I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either I or my 

designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is 
scheduled. 

0 I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the 
best of my ability. 

Applicant/ Agentlcity of Elko, City Planner 
(Please print or type) 

Mailing Address I 1151 College Ave. 
Street Address or P.O. Box 

!Elko, NV 89801 
City, State, Zip Code 

Phone Number: 77 5-777 -7160 
Email address: claughlin@elkocitynv.gov 

SIGNATURE: .... I _________________ __, 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

File No.: Date Filed: Fee Paid: ---- -----

Revised 12/04/15 Page 3 



LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR VACATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY 

A strip of land, being a portion of the southwesterly 7 feet of Golf Course Road, adjacent to APN 001-

200-009, in the City of Elko, Nevada, lying within Section 10, Township 34 North, Range 55 East, which is 

further described as follows; 

Beginning at the easterly most corner of Parcel No. 1, of the Parcel Map for the Nevada Health Centers, 

Inc., recorded in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 770198, which bears North 10°19' 42" 

West, a distance of 997.28 feet from the monument at the intersection of Court Street and 13th Street; 

Thence, along the northeasterly boundary of said Parcel No. 1, North 48°11'00" West, a distance of 

30.00feet; 

Thence, continuing along the northeasterly boundary of said Parcel No. 1, North 41 °49'00" East, a 

distance of 7.00 feet; 

Thence, South 48°11'00" East, a distance of 30.00 feet; 

Thence, South 41 °49'00" West, a distance of 7 .00 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning. 

This strip of land being vacated contains a total of ±210 square feet. 

The Basis of bearings for this description is the Map of the Smith's Addition to the City of Elko, recorded 

in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 43255, on November 5, 1927. 

Description prepared by: 

Robert Thibault, PE, PLS 

Civil Engineer for the City of Elko 



a 
C 

~ 
(Tl 
(Tl 

~ 

I 

0 60' 

I CEDAR STREET 

120· 

APN: 001-200-009 
EXISTING AREA = 2.455 ACRES 

NEW AREA = 2.460 ACRES 

8 
c;; 
("') 
0 
C 
;:o 
(/) 
l"'1 

~ 

--73.0'--

N41•49•oo·E AREA 
7.00' HEREBY 

N48"11 '00"W <~~VACATED 
30.00'~; 210 SF 

1.0: ~ '-.,S4a·11 ·oo"E / 
~ - 30.00' / -----------------flMIJ 

S41'49'00"W / 
7.00' / 1/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
V AREA 

, l ~ VACATED BY 
./ A" SEPARATE 

/ RESOLUTION 
/ 

~/ 
~~ ~ 

4- ~~ 
~•/4-

~/.~· ½~ .. 
,$>' ~ 

~v/,"' 
~~v 

/ '"7 

• 

SCALE 
Cl1Y OF ELKO 
1751 COLLEGE AVF. HOR2.1.::.60 

• EI..KO, NEVADA 89801 -
1111-m-1210 

VERT .tili:lliE. 

EXHIBIT B 
MAP OF AREA VACATED 
TO APN: 001-200-009 

DRAWN BY 

BT 
CHECKED BY 

BT 

- \al,DMfl ...... DATE 6/9/21 



Agenda Item·:JL_L:. , (:_ · 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review and consideration of a request from Ms. Yvonne Samper regarding 
the lack of a handicap access sidewalk at 307 Elm St., and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: PETITION 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: A copy of Ms. Samper's letter has been enclosed in the 
agenda packet for review. CC 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: 
Budget amount available: 
Fund name: 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Letter from Ms. Samper 

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council 

10. Prepared by: Curtis Calder, City Manager 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12; Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: Yvonne Samper 
\'vonncsamper(a'yahoo.com 

Created on 6/16/2021 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



Yvonne Sam per 
307 Elm St 
Elko Nv 89801 

Elko City Council 
Elko,Nv 

Dear Members; 

I would like to attend your next meeting . I have some questions and concerns regarding our sidewalk at our 
residence at 307 Elm St. We live on the corner of 3rd and Elm and are the only house on the corner that does not 
have a handicap access sidewalk. All three of the opposing houses have new handicap sidewalks. 

I called Dennis at the street department, he was very nice and explained that your budget doesn't allow to put in a 
handicap sidewalk unless it warrants other work I am curious what you consider other work since I think our 
sidewalk is as much in need of repair as our neighbors. 

When Vince Smith was with the Water Dept he told us our water main would need to be replaced in the near 
future maybe that would also warrant replacing our sidewalk. 

I would also like to mention that we have a handicap ramp at our house due to the fact that my husband was 
totally paralyzed from an unknown virus for over a year and it was the only way we could transport him. He is 
better but still has problems and is 80 years old so I due worry about future problems . 

Any consideration you could give us on this matter would be appreciated. 

Thank you, 

Yvonne Samper 
775 7781803 
Yvonnesamper@yahoo.com 

Quick Notes Page 1 



Agenda Item VII.A. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Second reading and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 862, an Ordinance 
adopting a requirement for a Nonpublic Hospital License and Establishing a 
License Fee, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: June 22, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARING 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: On April 27, 2021, the City Council voted to initiate an 
ordinance which would create a "Local Hospital Licensure Fee." As a result of that 
action, City Staff has drafted Ordinance No. 862 for review. A copy of the proposed 
Ordinance has been enclosed in the agenda packet for review. CC 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: 
Budget amount available: 
Fund name: 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: 

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council 

10. Prepared by: Curtis Calder, City Manager 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 6/16/2021 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



CITY OF ELKO 
ORDINANCE NO. 862 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A REQUIREMENT FOR A NONPUBLIC 
HOSPITAL LICENSE AND ESTABLISHING A LICENSE FEE 

WHEREAS, Northeastern Nevada Regional Hospital (NNRH) is a nonpublic hospital that 
provides a substantial amount of unreimbursed care, to include inpatient treatment and services, 
to Medicaid patients in the City of Elko. 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Nonpublic Hospital License Fee established by this Ordinance is 
to increase the amount of funding available for reimbursement to NNRH through the Medicaid 
supplemental payment program. 

WHEREAS, the Nevada Medicaid program is administered by the Nevada Department of 
Health and Human Services, Division of Health Care Financing & Policy (DHCFP). 

WHEREAS, the Nevada Medicaid program is funded jointly by the federal and state 
governments; the federal portion, also referred to as Federal Financial Participation (FFP), is 
calculated on the basis of a formula specified in the Social Security Act. 

WHEREAS, State Plan Amendment 10-002C provides the manner in which state funds may be 
used to fund the non-federal share of Medicaid supplemental payment program payments. 

WHEREAS, subject to federal requirements, the DHCFP may use "broad based health care
related taxes," sometimes referred to as "provider taxes," to cover the non-federal share of 
Medicaid expenditures, which is then used to calculate the FFP. 

WHEREAS, qualifying funds from public agencies, such as the City of Elko, that are paid to the 
DHCFP may be considered in calculating the non-federal share in claiming FFP. 

WHEREAS, under federal law, a provider tax includes "any licensing fee, assessment, or other 
mandatory payment, but does not include payment of a criminal or civil fine or penalty ( other 
than a fine or penalty imposed in lieu of or instead of a fee, assessment, or other mandatory 
payment);" the Nonpublic Hospital Licensee Fee established by this Ordinance is intended to 
satisfy the foregoing definition of "provider tax." 

WHEREAS, increasing the FFP will increase the total amount available for Medicaid 
reimbursement to NNRH; the resulting Medicaid reimbursement amount is expected to be 
several times greater than the Nonpublic Hospital License Fee itself. 

WHEREAS, at the time of enactment of this Ordinance, NNRH will be the only hospital subject 
to the Nonpublic Hospital License Fee. 

WHEREAS, in sum, by increasing the State of Nevada's share in claiming FFP, it is anticipated 
that the federal share will increase substantially, resulting in increased Medicaid reimbursement 

1 



( 

to NNRH. Although this is not expected to compensate NNRH for the full amount of care it 
provides to Medicaid patients - many of whom are residents of the City - the increase in 
Medicaid reimbursement is expected to significantly offset this expense. The Nonpublic Hospital 
License Fee will therefore provide a substantial benefit to the inhabitants of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ELKO, NEV ADA. 

For amendment purposes, words which are bold and underlined are additions to the 
Ordinance, and words which are bold and stricken are deletions from the Ordinance. 

SECTION 1: Title 4, Chapter 2, entitled "Nonpublic Hospital License," is hereby added to the 
Elko Municipal Code, as follows: 

4-2-1: SHORT TITLE: 

This Chapter shall be known as NONPUBLIC HOSPITAL LICENSE. 

4-2-2: DEFINITIONS: 

For purposes of this Chapter, the following terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them: 

CITY: The City of Elko, Nevada. 

CITY COUNCIL: The Elko City Council. 

NET PATIENT REVENUE: Revenue earned by a Nonpublic Hospital for the provision of 
routine services to patients from sources such as Medicare, Medicaid, commercial insurance and 
private pay, minus contractual allowances and bad debt. The term "Net Patient Revenue" does 
not include pass-through income, crisis care revenue, physician billing revenue, or revenue 
received from community support or fundraising. 

NONPUBLIC HOSPITAL: An institution owned by a person that is primarily engaged in 
providing, by or under the supervision of physicians, inpatient diagnostic and therapeutic 
services or rehabilitation services. Institutions that do not provide inpatient services are not 
"Nonpublic Hospitals" for purposes of this Chapter. 

PERSON: Except where otherwise indicated, a natural person, any form of business or social 
organization and any other nongovernmental legal entity including, but not limited to, a sole 
proprietorship, limited liability company, corporation, partnership, association, trust or 
unincorporated organization. For purposes of this Chapter, the term "person" does not include a 
government, governmental agency or political subdivision of a government. 

4-2-3: LICENSE REQUIRED: 

2 



It shall be unlawful for any Nonpublic Hospital, either directly or indirectly, to provide medical 
care or services in the City without procuring and maintaining in effect a Nonpublic Hospital 
License. 

4-2-4: LICENSE APPLICATION: 

Every Nonpublic Hospital required to procure a license pursuant to this Chapter shall submit an 
application to the City Clerk containing the following information: 

A. The name of the Nonpublic Hospital to whom the license is to be issued. 

B. The location for which the license is sought. 

C. A description of the medical care .and services provided. 

D. The date when the license is proposed to become effective. 

E. The signature of a person authorized to submit the application on behalf of the Nonpublic 
Hospital. 

4-2-5: APPROVAL, DENIAL OF APPLICATION; ISSUANCE OF LICENSE BY CITY 
CLERK: 

( The City Clerk is hereby authorized to approve or deny all applications for Nonpublic Hospital 
Licenses. 

A. Conditions for Denial: An application for a Nonpublic Hospital License shall be denied if 
the City Clerk determines that any one or more of the following exist(s): 

1. The application contains false, fraudulent or misleading material statements or 
information; or 

2. The activity for which the license is sought is unlawful under any ordinance, 
code, rule or law of the City, State or Federal government; or 

3. The applicant is indebted to the City for any unpaid license fee. 

B. Notification of Denial: Upon any denial of an application for a Nonpublic Hospital 
License, the City Clerk shall notify the applicant in writing and state the reason(s) for the 
denial. Such notification shall be delivered to the applicant personally or by mail at the 
address indicated on the application. 

C. Revocation: The City Clerk may revoke a Nonpublic Hospital License if the licensee 
violates any provision of this Chapter. 

3 



,. 

D. Approval; Fee, Issuance: Upon approval of an application for a Nonpublic Hospital 
License, the City Clerk shall collect the appropriate Nonpublic Hospital License Fee 
required by this Chapter and issue the Nonpublic Hospital License. 

E. Appeal: Every applicant denied a Nonpublic Hospital License by the City Clerk and any 
licensee whose Nonpublic Hospital License has been revoked shall have the right to 
appeal the decision to the City Council by submitting a notice of appeal to the City 
Manager within thirty (30) days of the denial or revocation. The failure to timely submit 
a notice of appeal to the City Manager shall be deemed a waiver of the applicant's or 
licensee's appeal rights. 

4-2-6: TRANSFER OF LICENSE: 

A. Validity: No Nonpublic Hospital License shall be valid except for the location and owner 
for which the original application therefor was made and the license issued. 

B. New Business Location: If a Nonpublic Hospital changes location, but does not change 
the ownership or character of the services provided, the Nonpublic Hospital may apply to 
transfer the existing Nonpublic Hospital License to the new location. 

C. New Owner: If a Nonpublic Hospital is sold or otherwise transferred to a new owner, the 
new owner must make application for a Nonpublic Hospital License. 

( 4-2-7: ESTABLISHMENT OF NONPUBLIC HOSPITAL LICENSE FEES: 

A. Rates: Every Nonpublic Hospital shall pay to the City a Nonpublic Hospital License Fee 
in an amount determined by resolution of the City Council not to exceed six percent (6%) 
of the Nonpublic Hospital's Net Patient Revenue as shown on or calculated from data 
contained in the hospital's Medicare Cost Report submitted to the Centers for Medicare 
& Medicaid Services for the applicable period. 

B. Payment of Fee: The Nonpublic Hospital License Fee shall be paid following a resolution 
of the City Council setting the rate and payment schedule. The rate and payment schedule 
may be amended from time-to-time by resolution of the City Council. 

4-2-8: USES OF REVENUE BY CITY; LIMITATIONS: 

A. Nonpublic Hospital License Fees shall only be used for the following purposes: 

1. Funding intergovernmental transfers from the City to the State of Nevada 
Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Health Care Financing and 
Policy to provide the nonfederal share of Medicaid payments for supplemental 
payments authorized under Medicaid State Plan Amendment 10-002C; 

2. Refunding Nonpublic Hospital Fees collected in error from a Nonpublic Hospital; 

4 



( 

3. Refunding to a Nonpublic Hospital any portion of the Nonpublic Hospital Fee the 
City receives from the State of Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, 
Division of Health Care Financing and Policy that is not used to fund the nonfederal 
share of Medicaid supplemental payment program payments under State Plan 
Amendment 10-002C, or that cannot be used to fund the nonfederal share of 
Medicaid supplemental payment program payments under State Plan Amendment 
10-002C; and 

4. Reimbursing the City for its reasonable administrative costs to perform the activities 
authorized under this Chapter, to include, without limitation, legal fees incurred in 
preparing correspondence, documents, ordinances and resolutions pertaining to this 
Chapter. 

B. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, with respect to an intergovernmental 
transfer of funds by the City to provide the nonfederal share of Medicaid payments for 
supplemental payments authorized under Medicaid State Plan Amendment 10-002C, any 
funds received by the City as a result of the transfer may not be used by the City to fund 
the nonfederal share of payments available through Medicaid programs other than those 
outlined in State Plan Amendment 10-002C. 

C. The City shall not collect Nonpublic Hospital License Fees for the purpose of raising 
general revenue nor shall the City collect any amount in excess of that which is 
reasonably necessary to fund the uses specifically authorized under this Chapter. 

4-2-9: NO CHARGE TO PATIENTS: 

A Nonpublic Hospital may not add any portion of the Nonpublic Hospital License Fee as a 
charge or surcharge to a patient. 

SECTION 2: All ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed, but only to the extent of 
such conflict. 

SECTION 3: If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall for any 
reason be held to be invalid, unenforceable or unconstitutional by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, the invalidity, unenforceability or unconstitutionality of such section, paragraph, 
clause or provision shall not affect any remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 4: That upon adoption, the City Clerk of the City of Elko is hereby directed to 
have this Ordinance published, by title only, together with the Councilmen voting for or against 
its passage, in the Elko Daily Free Press, a newspaper printed and published in the City of Elko, 
for at least one publication. 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective upon the publication mentioned in Section 4. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this_ day of _____ , 2021 by the following vote of the 
Elko City Council. 

5 



VOTE: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

APPROVED this_ day of ____ , 2021. 

CITY OF ELKO 

By: _____ ~-------
REECE KEENER, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

KELLY WOOLDRIDGE, City Clerk 

6 


	6/22/21 Agenda
	6/8/21 Minutes
	I.A. - Urijah Lortie donation
	I.B. - National Night Out
	I.C. - 2020 Public Works Year in Review
	II.A. - Animal Control Officer
	III.C. - Alley Water Line Replacement
	III.D. - Airport Liability Ins.
	IV.A. - Deed of Dedication
	IV.B. - Grant of Easement
	IV.C. - Sanitary Sewer
	IV.D. - Investment Policy
	IV.E. - Focused Planning Study
	IV.F. - Parks and Recreation Advisory Board
	V.A. - Ordinance No. 863
	V.B. - Resolution No. 18-21
	VI.A. - Vacation No. 3-21 & 4-21
	VI.B. - Vacation No. 1-21 & 2-21
	VI.C. - handicap aceess
	VII.A. - Ordinance No. 862



